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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
1ASB IFRS HKICPA
A. 2015 11 30
2.1
A. 2015 11 30
2.3 14
11 30
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
3,991 3,700 3,341 2,696 2,472
19,876 19,211 17,808 15,360 14,442
) 18,812 17,229 15,862 13,181 12,415
5,645 5,352 4,958 4,277 3,946
24,457 22,581 20,820 17,458 16,361
16,056 14,980 14,002 11,696 10,966
2,468 2,139 1,934 1,641 1,649
1,658 1,636 1,537 1,340 1,253
391 336 279 146 124
20,573 19,091 17,752 14,823 13,992
- 14 14 16 12
3,884 3,504 3,082 2,651 2,381
(655) (579) (566) (482) (451)
3,229 2,925 2,516 2,169 1,930
AlA 3,209 2,910 2,506 2,159 1,922
20 15 10 10 8
2,714 3,468 2,849 3,029 1,608
2015 12
2015 2014 2013 11 30
A. 2015 11 30
48 49

25/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)

oOoOooodn
11 30
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
139,083 138,809 121,354 112,569 92,254
1,386 1,384 1,128 1,035 896
1,992 1,835 2,316 2,982 4,303
17,092 16,593 15,738 14,161 12,818
8,069 8,298 6,866 4,731 4,190
167,622 166,919 147,402 135,478 114,461
122,986 121,034 112,134 99,478 87,112
3,195 2,934 1,950 493 559
11,901 11,996 8,491 8,714 5,375
138,082 135,964 122,575 108,685 93,046
29,540 30,955 24,827 26,793 21,415
139 149 145 131 102
AlA
29,401 30,806 24,682 26,662 21,313
26,380 24,513 21,759 19,553 17,106
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2015 2014 2013 11 30
A. 2015 11 30
48 49
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IFA
2015
2015
18
AlA 120,000 16
2015
AlIA
2015 iPoS
AIA 2014
AlIA AIA Asia
Benefits Network AlA
AlA
AlIA The Real Life Company
2015
Love is in Every Moment
10
AlA AlA
White Hart Lane stadium
AlA 29 16
AlIA
Customer Understanding Programme
4,000
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Lifestage Plan Option
2014 24
2014

30/664



EDINETOOOO

000000000000 0O(E24847)

OooooOodd
2015
60
2015 AlA AlA Vitality
AlIA
AlA
2015
AlA
2015
2015 iPoS iMo
Innovator of the Year
AIA
2014 AlA AlA Accelerator
2015 AlA
2015 AlA The Institute for Infocomm Research 12R
12R
Nanyang Technological University
AIA
2015 2014
820 619 32% 32%
62.0% 62.3% (0.3) pps (0.3) pps
1,263 952 33% 33%
5,115 4,330 18% 18%
1,049 905 16% 16%
2015 AIA 32 820
33 1,263 62.0
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Gen-Y Gen-Y club AlA 2015 35
60 AlA
21 AlA MDRT
AlIA AlA
2015 IFA
iPoS
2015
MPF
AIA 90
2015
AIA AlA
Vitality
2015 2014
395 361 15% 9%
75.8% 63.2% 12.6 pps 12.6 pps
520 572 @)% )%
3,324 3,334 5% -
551 544 6% 1%
AlIA 15
AIA
96 2014
12.6
IFRS 2015 11 551 27
27
2015 20 2016 30
2014
AlA 2015
90
AlIA
AlA 2014 77 AlA
80
2014
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2015 2014
341 299 24% 14%
72.4% 61.2% 11.1 pps 11.2 pps
471 489 5% (O
2,283 2,339 6% @)%
430 429 9% -
2015 AlA 24 341
AlA
72.4 IFRS
2014
2015
HealthShield
iPoS iPoS
iMO
2015 iPoS 70
iPoS 10 iMo
AlA
MDRT 2014 17
IFA
IFA
2015
AIA AIA Employee Care
AlIA 43
2015 2014
172 161 27% %
57.9% 50.1% 8.3 pps 7.8 pps
292 320 7% %
1,825 2,084 3% (12)%
259 280 8% (8)%
2015 AlA 27
2015
22
57.9
AlA
2014 24
2015 20
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2015
90 iPoS
2015 18
2015 40
Public Bank
12.4
iPoS
2015
85
AlA
iPoS
2015 2014
366 258 45% 42%
83.5% 83.1% 0.4 pps 0.4 pps
438 311 44% 41%
2,028 1,786 16% 14%
356 283 28% 26%
2015 AlA 2014
45 366
44 438 83.5
IFRS 2014 28
2015
2014 50
iPoS MDRT 2014
71
90
AlA
2015
2015 2014
46 82 (B9)% (44)%
18.8% 21.7% (2.7) pps (2.9) pps
248 380 (B0)% (35)%
2,031 2,205 D% (@)%
179 165 15% 8%
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AlA 18
2015
2014 6.1
2015 AlA
30 65 OECD
40
2015
2015 2014
250 212 32% 18%
32.9% 31.3% 2.0 pps 1.6 pps
759 676 24% 12%
3,270 3,133 19% 4%
359 314 25% 14%
AlA Tata Group 26
IFRS
2015 32 250
24 759 2.0 32.9
IFRS 25 359
2015 AlA IFA
IFA
IFA IFA
AlA
AlA
IFRS
2014
2014 AlA
37 2015
AlA Premier Bank Consultant
100 iPoS
2015 AlA
2015
IFA 27 2014
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Doing the Right Things, in the Right Way, with the Right People... and the results will
come
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RMF
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19,535,000,000

2015 11 30

2015 11 30

2015

11 30

19,970

14

14

A. 2015 11 30

1,530
2,200
950
3,040
2,660
680
1,020
2,090
5,160
640

19,970
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2016 2019 1A1G 1A1G
2014 2015 1AIS
G20 2015 11 30
1AIS
2008
2015
HKICO
2014
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IASB  HKICPA

IFRS 1ASB HKICPA

1ASB 2013 20

2013 10 25 1ASB 2015 12
IFRS 9
2021
IFRS 9
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AIA 18
AIA
26 2,198
39,818

10 3,719 AlA

AlIA
2015 AlA

2014 26 2,198
2014
32
27 24
14 3,991
54.0
17 5,068 2015
2015 11 30 39,818
IFRS
AIA IFRS
2014
2015 370
814
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2015 11 30 AlA
6,761 AIA 428 2014 11
427
AlIA
2015 2014 28 2,195
50 51.00 2016
2015 69.72
AlA
2015 2014
820 62.0% 1,263 619 62.3% 952 32% 32%
395 75.8% 520 361 63.2% 572 15% 9%
341 72.4% 471 299 61.2% 489 24% 14%
172 57.9% 292 161 50.1% 320 27% %
366 83.5% 438 258 83.1% 311 45% 42%
46 18.8% 248 82 21.7% 380 (€))L 4%
250 32.9% 759 212 31.3% 676 32% 18%
2,390 58.9% 3,991 1,992 53.1% 3,700 26% 20%
72) n/m n/m (50) n/m n/m n/m n/m
(120) n/m n/m (97) n/m n/m n/m n/m
2,198 54.0% 3,991 1,845 49.1% 3,700 26% 19%
2014 26 2,198
45 32
27 24
32
25 1,691 2014 29 658
14 3,991 15 2015
88
2015 4.6 54.0
192
2014 17 5,068
2,198 2,698
248
735
2015 2014
5,068 4,535 17% 12%
11,970 11,968 n/a n/a
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42.34 37.89 17% 12%
2015 2014
5,068 4,535 17% 12%
12,007 12,009 n/a n/a
42.21 37.76 17% 12%
A. 2015 11 30
39
1,804 145
369
1,907 814
2016 2016 30 20
2015 10
2015 11 30 IFRS
IFRS
2015 2016 30
2014
2016
2015
15,351 21,802 37,153
(902) 3,100 2,198
3,364 (666) 2,698
29 245 274
(112) 86 (26)
(76) - (76)
2,303 2,765 5,068
(1,494) (310) (1,804)
- 145 145
436 (67) 369
1,245 2,533 3,778
(814) - (814)
12 - 12)
(581) (1,326) (1,907)
15,189 23,009 38,198
2014

13,462 20,356 33,818
(800) - (800)
12,662 20,356 33,018
(995) 2,840 1,845
3,531 (896) 2,635
(126) 314 188
(13) 67) (80)
(53) - (53)
2,344 2,191 4,535
610 110 720
6 116 122
530 (507) 23
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3,490 1,910 5,400

(689) - (689)

14 - 14

(98) (464) (562)

15,351 21,802 37,153

2015 11 30 2014 11 30

38,198 37,153

1,620 1,889

39,818 39,042

IFRS
2015 11 30 39,818

17
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2015 11 30 2015 2014 11 30 2014
38,198 2,198 37,153 1,845
10 38,924 n/a 37,914 n/a
10 37,458 n/a 36,377 n/a
50 38,305 2,336 37,232 1,923
50 38,087 2,036 37,014 1,748
IFRS
IFRS
2015 2014
1,049 905 16% 16%
551 544 6% 1%
430 429 9% -
259 280 8% @)%
356 283 28% 26%
179 165 15% 8%
359 314 25% 14%
26 (10) n/m n/m
3,209 2,910 16% 10%
AlA
2014 16 3,209
2014
28 16
2015 11 551
2015 94.2
25
2015 2014
5,115 4,330 18% 18%
3,324 3,334 5% -
2,283 2,339 6% @)%
1,825 2,084 3% (12)%
2,028 1,786 16% 14%
2,031 2,205 D% @)%
3,270 3,133 19% 4%
19,876 19,211 10% 3%
2014 10 19,876
2015 2014
5,009 4,801 10% 4%
509 428 26% 19%
127 123 6% 3%
5,645 5,352 11% 5%
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2014 11 5,645
2015 2014
1,658 1,636 8% 1%
2015 2014 8.5 8.3
1,658
2015 2014
3,209 2,910 16% 10%
(@370) 508 n/m n/m
(148) 32 n/m n/m
2,691 3,450 (18)% (22)%
AlA
IFRS
AIA IFRS 2015 2014
IFRS 2014 18 2,691
2015 370 2014
508 148
2015 2014
24,513 21,759
2,691 3,450
(98) 91)
(814) (689)
88 84
1,867 2,754
26,380 24,513
2015 11 30
1,867 26,380 2,691
814
IFRS
A. 2015 11 30
37
IFRS
2015 IFRS 16 26.81
2015 IFRS
18 22.48
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IFRS  —
2015 2014 2015 2014
2,691 3,450 3,209 2,910
11,970 11,968 11,970 11,968
22.48 28.83 26.81 24.31
IFRS  —
2015 2014 2015 2014
2,691 3,450 3,209 2,910
12,007 12,009 12,007 12,009
22.41 28.73 26.73 24.23
AlA
A. 2015 11 30
39
2015 11 30
10 3,719 2015 26
2014 1,655
10 1,488
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 7,794 7,528
3,719 1,488
1,467 814
2015 2014
7,794 6,727
- (800)
7,794 5,927
3,719 3,552
(1,488) (1,655)
(1,467) 845
(128) (119)
(814) (689)
(88) (67)
7,528 7,794
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 6,614 19 7,843
28 2,195
2015 745
490
2015 2014
6,614 5,556
Q4 (63)
850 752
708 641
329 267
188 112
1 (100)
31 24
88 22
2,195 1,718
- (800)
183 985
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98) 91)
(814) (689)
(CV) &)
7,843 6,614
IFRS
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
139,083 138,809 -
1,386 1,384 -
1,992 1,835 9%
17,092 16,593 3%
8,069 8,298 3%
167,622 166,919 -
122,986 121,034 2%
3,195 2,934 9%
11,901 11,996 (D%
138,082 135,964 2%
29,540 30,955 B)%
139 149 (D%
AlA 29,401 30,806 (B)%
26,380 24,513 8%
2015 2014
30,806 24,682
2,691 3,450
(1,662) 3,807
(1,608) (430)
(98) (91)
(814) (689)
86 77
(1,405) 6,124
29,401 30,806
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
126,435 86% 124,801 86%
19,794 14% 20,974 14%
146,229 100% 145,775 100%
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
4,182 21% 4,215 20%
211 1% 185 1%
14,948 76% 16,076 7%
450 2% 496 2%
3 — 2 -
19,794 100% 20,974 100%
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
7,866 6% 8,271 6%
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11,190 % 11,321 9%
1,917 2% 2,095 2%
— 20,973 17% 21,687 17%
4,915 4% 5,044 4%
436 - 494 1%
204 - 292 -
34 - 136 -
26,562 21% 27,653 22%
35,425 28% 35,983 29%
45,977 36% 42,273 34%
5,083 4% 5,374 4%
— 86,485 68% 83,630 67%
7,296 6% 7,707 6%
4,718 4% 4,637 4%
1,338 1% 1,047 1%
36 — 127 —
99,873 79% 97,148 78%
126,435 100% 124,801 100%
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
166,919 167,622
2015 11 30
2014 11 30 145,775 146,229
2015 11 30 146,229 126,435
19,794
2015 11 30
2014 11 30 105,317 107,458
2014 11 30
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 42 40
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 51 53
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 12,751
12,211
4,915
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 1,835 1,992
2015 750
490 814
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
5,131 5,154
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
16,593 17,092
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 135,964 138,082
2015 11 30
2014 11 30 121,034 122,986
2015 11 30 2015 750
3,195
2015 11 30 2014 11 30 11,996 11,901
A. 2015 11 30
42
AIA
2015 11 30 AlA 6,761 AIA
2014 11 427 428
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AlA
2015 11 30 2014 11 30
6,761 6,730
100 1,579 1,577
428% 427%
2015 11 30
AlA AlA AlA
150
GMTN 30 50
AlA 2015
10 750 3.2 2015 11 30 GMTN
2,872
2015 11 30 AlA AA- Very Strong
Aa3 Very Low Credit Risk AIA
A Strong A3 Low Credit Risk
2016 50
51.00 2015 69.72
AlA
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AlA

AlA

29,881
321,640
16
4,612
49,647

514,438,623

734

AlA

102,355
1,101,749
43
61,838
665,620

2,640,191,397

1,162

72/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)

OooooOodd
AlA
AlA 46,906 504,82?
251,715,000 458
64,744 696,900
157,780
AIA 1’698’3417 510,157,378 2,039
71,400.37
768,553.53
41,461
AlA ’
446,291 505,846,505 408
506 5,446
AlA 61,291 659,736 185,382,474 163
182
AIA 121,064 2,101
1,302,648
31
147,650
AlA Bhd. 1’589’3029 182,077,556 2,282
53,812
579,234
2015 11 30 AlA Two AIA Financial Center
15,000 80,000

2058
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2015 11 30
12,048,349,319
2015 11 30
12,048,349,319
12,048,349,319
2015 11 30
2010 11 30 - 12,044,000,001 - 12,044
2011 11 30 - 12,044,000,001 - 12,044
2012 11 30 - 12,044,000,001 - 12,044
2013 11 30 - 12,044,000,001 - 12,044
2014 31 754,859 12,044,754,860 1,917 13,961
2014 11 30 362,365 12,045,117,225 1 13,962
2015 31 2,179,991 12,047,297,216 13,967
2015 11 30 1,052,103 12,048,349,319 4 13,971
2014 11 30 1,117,224 754,859 2014
31
2014 31 1,917 a 2014 1,914
2014 b
2015 11 30 2,190,404 1,138,301 2015
31 2015 11 30 1,041,690
2015 31
2015 11 30
A. 2015 11 30
39
40,458,104 27.35 47.73
2015 11 30
22,311 25,368,617 0.21%
73 823,800 0.01%
5 12,022,156,902 99.78%
22,389 12,048,349,319 100%
2015 11 30
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L L
S S
P P
1,083,128,432(L) 8.99(L)
10043 6,083,940(S) 0.05(S)
299 3,703,592(P) 0.03(P)
19899 1,074,197,000(L) 8.92(L)
856,100(S) 0.01(S)
1209
10043 1,074,197,000(L) 8.92(L)
856,100(S) 0.01(S)
399
8001 1,074,077,000(L) 8.91(L)
856,100(S) 0.01(S)
1,054,334,400(L) 8.75(L)
50
1,054,334,400(L) 8.75(L)
50
1,054,334,400(L) 8.75(L)
209 GT
Jp 10017 1,024,230,622(L) 8.50(L)
35,706,024(S) 0.30(S)
270 746,082,158(P) 6.19(P)
90071
860,799,987(L) 7.14(L)
333 55
19801 679,597,039(L) 5.64(L)
2,008,200(S) 0.02(S)
1209
1,054,334 ,400 .
10,009, 240 6,083,940
3,703,592 -
15,081,200 -
1,059,115,800 856,100
15,081,200 -
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1,058,995,800 856,100
15,081,200 -
JP

80,622,708 35,706,024

197,345,088 -

180,668 -

746,082,158 -
- - 1,059,562, 240 - - - 5,227,840 -
- - 1,054,334,400 - - - - -
- - 1,054,334,400 - - - - -
- - 1,054,334,400 - - _ _ ~
- - 1,054,334,400 - - _ _ B
- - 1,054,334,400 - - - - -
- - 1,054,334,400 - - - - -

P
6,426,120 481,800 235,299 5,375,004 7,418,000 4,879,800 2,910,718 20,413,906
2,828,748 - - - - - - -
- - - 559,200 - - - 2,008,200
2015 11 30 12,048,349,319
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2015 28 18.72 2014 16.00
2015 11 30 51.00
2015 11 30
69.72 2014 50.00
2015 28 73,464,556
1.77
2016 11
2016 27
2015 11 30
2,785 2014 2,102
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
11 30 11 30 11 30 11 30 11 30
29.90 31.90 40.45 45.65 47.20
436.54 465.74 590.57 666.49 689.12
19.84 22.45 29.30 34.65 45.70
289.66 327.77 427.78 505.89 667.22
2010 10 29
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
10 11
53.50 52.50 50.50 44.50 47.75 48.80
781.10 766.50 737.30 649.70 697.15 712.48
49.00 45.50 40.40 38.85 40.85 44.80
715.40 664.30 589.84 567.21 596.41 654.08
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2016 25
10.00
/
] 1038 3,560,400
1957 12 29 4,367, 111
- 1945 12 260,000
j 1950 86,000

1056 50,000

- 1954 13 100,000
1964

- 1944 12 12
- 1959 16

1945

- 78 2010 27

2011 AIA
AIG 50 2009 2010 12 AIA
2000 2009 1983 2000
2005 2015
2012 2014
2004 2014
2001 1998
2002 2003
58
2010 AIA AIA
2010 10 29 AIA 1PO 2010 10 12 2010 12 31
AIA 2012 11
2009
2012
2005 2009
1994 2003
1999 2003 2004
2005 1985



2012 26

2013 10
2007 2015
- 65
2003 2011
2003
1997 2001
2008 2014
2013
1987
2014
2013
2012
1988
1988

70

2015 12

2007

2012

59

2003

61

2011
1972

52

1998

71

2011
1985 1992
2002 2015
2013
2010
2011
2015
2012 2014
2008 2010
1977
2012
2014 11
1988
PLUS
2013
2007
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2010 28
2007 2010 AlA
2008
28
2013
2000
2001
1997 2008
2012 11
2014
2014 24
2012
2014 18



2012

12

2010

1992

56

MAS

1981

MAS

Our Hong Kong Foundation

2004 2010
2014
1966
1966
2006
2015 14
MAS
MAS
1982
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70 2016 15
2012 11 21 2014 31
2005 12 2010
2007 10 2012 2009 2013 2011
11 2014
MFC
ABICO
2016 25
10 9.09
53
AlA AlA
2011
12
2014 10 HK1CO
61
AlIA AlA
2010 10
2008 12
1989 2008 2005 2008
1985
52
AIA
AlA AIA
2011
30 AlA AlG ALICO ALICO
ALICO
50
2012 12 2015 AlA
2012 ING
AlA AIA
2011 2009 2010
2008 2009 2005
2008 2002 2004 ICICI 2001
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45

2010
2006
54
2011
52
2011
52
2014
1989
53
2015
AIA
RCM CEO
UK
49
2011 2015 AIA
2005
2010 2013 2011 2013
2008 2015
)
A. 2015 11 30
40
2015 11 30 SFO XV

SFO 352
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21,392,926(L) 0.18
_ 3,560,400(L) 0.03
. 86,000(L) 0.01
- 260,000(L) 0.01
50,000(L) 0.01
- 100,000(L) 0.01
4,381,460 13,101,399
3,907,091 2,976
2015 11 30 12,048,349,319
2015 11 30 SFO XV
SFO 352
)
2015 11 30
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2015 Report of the Directors Corporate Governance Report

2015 Financial and Operating Review
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2015 11 30
2014 12 2015 22
F.1.3

2015 22
F.1.3

2015 11 30

2016 25
10

)
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2015
2015
- 6/6 5/5 1/1 - 4/4 1
6/6 - - /7 4/4 1
- 6/6 5/5 1/1 77 - 1
- 6/6 - 0/1 - 4/4 1
6/6 5/5 1/1 - 4/4 1
- 6/6 4/5 1/1 6/7 - 1
6/6 - 1/1 77 - 1
- 6/6 - 1/1 - 4/4 1
- 2/2 - n/a - 1/1 n/a
2015 14 2015 11 30
2015 11 30
www.aia.com
2016 12 31
2015 14 2016 15
104 2016
2015
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2016 15 2016 15
2015 11 30
2015 14 2016 15
2013
3.13
2015 11 30
2016 15 2016 15
2015 11 30
2015 14
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2015 11 30
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2015 2014
11.5 11.1
0.3 1.2
1.0 1.8
0.5 0.5
13.3 14.6
2015 2015 2015 11 30
0.7 2014 0.6
2015
2015 22
15
www.aia.com
2015
2015 2015 2015 11
72 Grand Bal lroom, 2/F, New

World Millennium Hong Kong Hotel, 72 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Hong Kong

2014 11 30
2014 11 30 34.00

2015 10

10
2015 10
2015 2.5
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2016 2016
AlIA 35/F 35/F, AIA Central, No. 1
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong ir@aia.com
566 568
2.5
50
AlA 35/F 35/F,
AIA Central, No. 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong ir@aia.com
615
616
www_aia.com
2016 25
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2015 11 30
2016 15
2015
2015 12
2016 25
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www.aia.com

2015
2015 11 30

2015 11 30

2015

2014 2012
2015
2016 2016
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AIA

2015

2015

IFRS IFRS
10 30 2015 2016
2015 11 30
13,384,600
A.2015 11 30
40
2010 28 10
A. 2015 11 30
39
AIA

2015 11 30 17,933,566
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AlA Dow Jones
Insurance Titans 30 DJTINN
DJTINN
50
DJTINN
2015 11 30
DJTINN 25%
75
2015 2011 12 2014 11 30 2012
2013 2016 11 2012 12 2015 11 30
2013 AlA DJTINN
HSI
DJTINN EUHSI A HEL-AIAOBEITERELEORRK
100%%
Bl
G0
40%%
20
0%
-20%
200211211 136l 20035121 Mol4/6/1 201471271 2005:6/1 01571241
2015 11 30
2014 12 2015 11 30 2015 11 30 2015 11 30
( D ( )
(8)
1/6/2011 @) 537,432 - (268,715) - 268,717
15/3/2012 15/3/2015(3) 1,434,842 - (956,610) (478,232) -
11/3/2013 11/3/2016(3) 1,314,873 - - - 1,314,873
5/3/2014 5/3/2017(3) 1,261,874 - - - 1,261,874
12/3/2015 12/3/2018(4) - 1,061,627 - - 1,061,627
1/6/2011 ) 2,486,217 - (1,243,104) 247,919 1,491,032
15/3/2012 15/3/2015(3) 1,949,178 - (1,299,521) (649,657) -
11/3/2013 11/3/2016(3) 1,779,549 - - 414,704 2,194,253
5/3/2014 5/3/2017(3) 1,546,053 - - 355,746 1,901,799
14/4/2014 14/4/2017() 203,016 - - - 203,016
14/4/2014 ®) 487,238 - (243,619) - 243,619
12/3/2015 12/3/2018(4) - 1,348,419 - 286,050 1,634,469
12/3/2015 12/3/2017(6) - - - 54,696 54,696
1/9/2015 [©) - 678,753 - - 678,753
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1/6/2011 @) 1,703,244 - (851,615) (247,919) 603,710
15/3/2012 15/3/2015(3) 13,863,942 - (8,996,504) (4,867,438) -
6/9/2012 6/9/2015(3) 218,664 - (145,786) (72,878) -
11/3/2013 11/3/2016(3) 14,434,112 - (53,669) (1,446,385) 12,934,058
1/8/2013 1/8/2016(3) 264,994 - - (27,954) 237,040
1/8/2013 11/3/2016(3) 75,865 - - - 75,865
5/3/2014 5/3/2017(3) 14,976,409 - (28,602) (1,382,796) 13,565,011
11/9/2014 11/972017(3) 48,724 - - - 48,724
11/9/2014 5/3/2017(3) 4,193 - - - 4,193
12/3/2015 12/3/2018(4) - 13,467,026 - (882,423) 12,584,603
12/3/2015 12/3/2017(6) - 1,357,425 - (88,895) 1,268,530
1/9/2015 1/9/2018(4) — 20,316 — — 20,316
2011 2011 15 2012
2012 15 2012 2013 2013 11 2013
2014 2014 2014 14 2014 11 2015
2015 12 2015 1FRS2
2014 2015 2016
2015 14 2016 14
2017 12
2017 2018
2015 11 30
2015 11 30 5,937,871
301,100,000 2016
25 2.5
12
0.25
10
2012 2015 15 2015
2018 A. 2015
11 30 39
2015 11 30
014 12 2015 11 30 | 2015 11 30 2015 11 30 015 11
30
( )
) ( ) )
©) ( )
veron | S| 2,140,724 - - - - 27.35| 2,149,724 n/a
veron | NS 2,418,430 - 806, 146 - - 27.35| 2,418,439 n/a
/32012 | | SSA0ES| 212,263 - 2,152,263 - - 28.40| 2,152,263 n/a
ussns| SN 2,183,144 - - - - 34.35| 2,183,144 n/a
szaou| S0 | 2,160,274 - - - - 37.56| 2,169,274 n/a
w2/3/2015| 2208 - 2,028,555 - - - 47.73| 2,028,555 n/a
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1/4/2014-
V62011 | g oS (3) 3,380,346 75,576 (235,573) 27.35| 3,220,349 46.20
1/4/2014-
V62011 | g oS (3) 4,919,047 1,639,679 676,526 (640,917) 27.35| 4,954,656 48.03
15/3/2015-
18/3/2012( 200 (3) 2,923,765 - 2,923,765 536,111 (216,044) 28.40| 3,243,832 46.72
11/3/2016-
10732013 o000 (8) 2,954,666 - - 534,679 - 34.35| 3,489,345 n/a
5/3/2017-
5/3/2014 4/372094(6) 2,657,795 - - 475,634 - 37.56| 3,133,429 n/a
14/4/2017-
147402014 000 (7Y 332,282 - - - - 39.45 332,282 n/a
12/3/2018-
12/3/2015( 200 (8) - 2,576,553 - 426,550 - 47.73| 3,003,103 n/a
1/4/2014-
VY pberss) 898,849 (102,450) (313,551) 27.35| 482,848 48.62
1/6/2011 17472044 3,090,660 - 1,160,768 (676,526) (356,062) 27.35| 2,058,072 49.56
31/5/20213) e e ’ ’ : R :
15/3/2015-
16/3/2012( o (B 1,751,548 1,715,141 (585,787) (421,339) 28.40 744,422 49.08
11/3/2016-
10/3/2013( 00 () 1,605,023 (686,672) (6,918) 34.35 911,433 45.60
5/3/2017-
5/3/2014 47372024(8) 1,519,094 (603,651) 37.56 915,443 n/a
12/3/2018-
12/3/2015 2T 0 (8) 1,332,763 (465,272) 47.73 867,491 n/a
2011 2011 15 2012
2012 15 2013 2013 11 2014
2014 2014 2015 2015 12 IFRS2
2014
2014 2015
2016
2015 15
2016 11
2017
2017 14
47.10
2018 12
2015 11 30
2014 2015
2014 12 2015 11 30
A.2015 11 30
40
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2015 1,471,500 2,207,300 6,253,900 9,932,700
2014 1,414,800 2,122,200 6,012,900 9,549,900
2014 12 2015 11 30
- 2015 14
155,000
25,000 10,000
2015 11 30
2015 11
30
A. 2015 11 30
40
2015 12

485,000 160,000

55,000 40,000

25,000 15,000

45,000 30,000

45,000 30,000
2016
2015 11 30 49,398,959

A. 2015 11 30

40

2015

15,000
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2015 11 30 AlA 100
5 1 5.4 0.5
566.55 113.31 611.87 56.66
6 2 6.1 1.3
679.86 226.62 691.20 147.30
11 3 11.5 1.8
1,246.41 339.93 1,303.07 203.96
2014 2015
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HKICPA HKFRS

IFRS
38 59
131
2014 11 30 2015 11 30
23 103
23 25 193
134
2016 25
113.31
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A. 2015 11 30

@
11 30
2015 2014

19,781 | 2,241,385 18,225 | 2,065,075
(1,165) |  (132,006) @1,173) | (132,913)
18,616 | 2,109,379 17,052 | 1,932,162
4,462 505,589 8,204 929,595
196 22,209 177 20,056
23,274 | 2,637,177 25,433 | 2,881,813
16,134 | 1,828,144 17,828 | 2,020,001
942) | (106,738) (1,024) | (116,029)
15,192 | 1,721,406 16,804 | 1,904,061
2,468 279,649 2,139 242,370
1,658 187,868 1,636 185,375
152 17,223 103 11,671
454 51,443 420 47,590
9 19,924 | 2,257,588 21,102 | 2,391,068
3,350 379,589 4,331 490,746
14 1,586
3,350 379,589 4,345 492,332
(33) (3.,739) (125) (14,164)
3,317 375,849 4,220 478,168
10 (636) (72,065) (877) (99,373)
33 3,739 125 14,164
(603) (68,326) (752) (85,209)
2,714 307,523 3,468 392,959
AlA 2,601 304,917 3,450 390,920
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1 7 133 141
45,672 25,930 30,664 14,731 17,081 14,462 16,766 8,846 174,152
37,154 20,758 27,761 13,212 14,280 11,841 12,664 2,742 140,412
8,518 5,172 2,903 1,519 2,801 2,621 4,102 6,104 33,740
6,000 4,201 2,567 1,479 2,622 1,873 2,749 6,111 27,602
( ) (420) (400) (188) 31 21 443 (575)
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( )
2014 11 30
ANP 952 572 489 320 311 380 676 3,700
TWPI 4,330 3,334 2,339 2,084 1,786 2,205 3,133 19,211
4,138 3,391 2,685 1,888 1,668 1,602 1,855 2 17,229
( )
1,381 1,086 915 624 545 459 583 271 5,864
5,519 4,477 3,600 2,512 2,213 2,061 2,438 273 23,003
3,635 2,817 2,667 1,836 1,496 1,403 1,301 @ 15,153
473 575 265 141 144 240 301 2,139
219 172 153 175 210 155 373 162 1,619
87 36 17 15 9 8 34 72 278
4,414 3,600 3,102 2,167 1,859 1,806 2,009 232 19,189
1 17 0 14
« )
1,105 877 498 346 354 255 446 37 3,918
79 (218) @2) (56) (58) (61) (96) Q) (647)
1,026 659 426 290 296 194 350 30 3,271
AlA 1,016 659 426 289 296 194 338 30 3,248
10 1 12 23
5.1 5.2 6.5 8.4 11.8 7.0 11.9 8.4
25.5 26.3 21.3 16.6 19.8 11.6 14.2 20.4
19.3 15.1 18.6 18.0 16.4 11.0 14.1 12.9
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2014 11 30
42,993 26,028 30,206 15,512 15,661 13,786 16,363 8,309 168,858

1 7 123 131

42,993 26,028 30,207 15,519 15,661 13,786 16,486 8,309 168,989

34,504 20,599 27,430 13,831 13,397 11,346 12,503 2,602 136,212

8,489 5,429 2,777 1,688 2,264 2,440 3,983 5,707 32,777

5,639 4,446 2,424 1,658 2,112 1,803 2,609 5,700 26,391

« ) (752) (641) (267) 112) 100 24) @2 1,022 (696)
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2014 31
ANP 401 256 214 161 152 189 317 1,690
TWPI 1,929 1,555 1,134 1,027 850 1,087 1,422 9,004
1,805 1,597 1,199 920 775 779 866 3 7,944
(
676 530 448 303 261 220 290 129 2,857
2,481 2,127 1,647 1,223 1,036 999 1,156 132 10,801
1,577 1,310 1,211 879 699 700 605 1) 6,980
205 294 112 62 65 107 148 993
96 85 74 86 100 71 173 71 756
40 16 9 7 4 4 16 31 127
1,918 1,705 1,406 1,034 868 882 942 101 8,856
9 0 5
« )
563 422 241 189 168 117 223 27 1,950
(35) (99) (38) “3) 9) @ 49) ®) (323)
528 323 203 146 139 90 174 24 1,627
AlA 523 323 203 145 139 90 168 24 1,615
5 1 6 12
5.0 5.5 6.5 8.4 11.8 6.5 12.2 8.4
29.2 27.1 21.3 18.4 19.8 10.8 15.7 21.7
20.4 15.0 17.4 18.4 17.3 10.1 14.1 13.2
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2014 31
40,377 24,523 29,764 15,517 12,826 13,850 15,828 7,661 160,346
1 7 94 102
40,377 24,523 29,765 15,524 12,826 13,850 15,922 7,661 160,448
32,443 19,604 26,969 13,935 11,302 11,632 12,028 2,684 130,597
7,934 4,919 2,79 1,589 1,524 2,218 3,804 4,977 29,851
5,356 4,314 2,516 1,597 1,708 1,848 2,585 5,027 24,951
« ) @377) (292) (108) 24) 19 295 487)
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( )
2013 11 30
ANP 781 565 400 319 249 338 689 3,341
TWPI 3,770 3,364 2,150 2,036 1,599 2,049 2,840 17,808
3,344 3,498 2,369 1,899 1,498 1,504 1,740 10 15,862
( )
1,238 1,110 877 585 464 400 586 207 5,467
4,582 4,608 3,246 2,484 1,962 1,904 2,32 217 21,329
2,959 2,959 2,438 1,827 1,357 1,345 1,289 @ 14,172
381 559 191 144 145 206 308 1,934
189 183 146 168 194 138 360 141 1,519
78 34 14 14 7 6 33 42 228
3,607 3,735 2,789 2,153 1,703 1,695 1,990 181 17,853
1 19 (6) 14
« )
975 873 457 332 259 209 355 30 3,490
(66) @17) (59) 74) (36) (51) (89) 1) (633)
909 656 398 258 223 158 266 an 2,857
AlA 899 656 398 258 223 158 258 a1 2,839
10 8 18
5.0 5.4 6.8 8.3 12.1 6.7 12.7 8.5
25.9 26.0 21.3 16.3 16.2 10.2 12.5 19.6
18.6 14.8 18.7 22.8 16.9 9.6 12.5 12.4
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2013 11 30
36,660 24,065 27,687 14,821 11,728 12,631 14,309 7,207 149,108

1 7 81 4 93

36,660 24,065 27,688 14,828 11,728 12,631 14,390 7,211 149,201

30,529 19,445 25,406 13,278 10,601 10,675 10,950 1,869 122,753

6,131 4,620 2,282 1,550 1,127 1,956 3,440 5,342 26,448

4,909 4,294 2,163 1,549 1,505 1,727 2,177 5,549 23,873

« ) (839) (700) (222) 1,636 101 @n 183 (748) (616)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

E
Yoar eaded H
0 Moawmber

l_-bir' Notes _H_ii

REVENUE

Premiurms and fee incomé 19,781 18,225 z

Premiums caded to reinsurers {1,165} (10731 E

Net premiums and lee income 18,416 17.052 =

Imvestment return 8 &a82 B,204 E

Other operating revenue ] 1% 177 =

Total revenus T E

EXPENSES ;

Inswrance and mvestment contract benefits 16,134 17,6248 E

Insurance and mvestment contract benehits ceded 19421 {1,024} z

Mat insurance and investmant contract banafits 15,152 16 604

Commissian and other acquisition expenses 1,448 b bl

Operating expenses 1,458 1,636

Finance costs 182 103 a )

Other expenses 4564 420 E

Total expenses v 19,924 21,102 %

Prafit bafere share of profit from associates and E
joint venture 3,350 £33 =

Share of profit fram associates and joint venturs - 14 %

Profit bafora tax 3,350 4,345 g

Income tax expense attributable to policyholders” returns {33} 1125}

Profit before tax attributable to sharehelders’ profits !'.iﬂﬂ‘ -i-i_ﬂtl_

Tax #xpin s L} 1434} 187N

Tax attributable to pelicyholders returns 33 125

Tax expense altributable to shareholders profits 1603p 1752)

Met profit 2,714 3,465 "

Net profit attribetabie to: ‘E
Shareholdar s of AlA Group Limited 2,671 3,450 E
Non-controlling interests 3 15 i

EARMINGS PER SHARE (U55) E

Basic ' 0.22 0.2 -

Diluted 1 b.22 029

x
]
=
o
x
i
o
s
]
o
I
z
=
=
=]
o
a

ANMUAL REPDRT 2045 | 119

264/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year saded e e
) Hovernler 30 Mervambac
ol JEIN: L
Wat prafit M4 488
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item$ that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair value (lossesh/'gains on available for sale financial assets
inet of tax of: 2015 USS48im, 2014 USHERLimE {1,639 3,813
Fair value gains on available for sale financial assets transferred to income on disposal
{net of tax of: 2015; US%2m; 2014: US$EIm}p {42} 2%
Foreign currency transiation adjustments {1,607 1433)
Cash Flow hedges 3 &
Share of other comprehensive income from associates and joint venture 3 22
Subtatal (3,282} 33n

Iterns that will not be reclassified subseguently to proht or loss:
Effect of remeasurement of net liability of defined benefit schemes

(net af tax of: 2015; US$S5m; 2014: USE 1m) (4]51]
Sublotal i o)
Tetal other comprehensive {expensel/income 2347
Tetal comprehansive {mlnmﬁmnml & 8535
Tata comprofonsie foxmeeselineomo aitrbutalin fo:

Shareholders of AlA Group Limited =81 £.521

Mon-controlling interests 8 14

120 | A& BROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

x
s 0t E
0 Hoaember
l_-bir' Notes _H_ii
ASSETS
Intangible assets k] 1,834 2,152 z
Ieve sterients in associates and josnt venture i 137 13 E
Property, plant and equipment i 500 841 :
Inve stment property %, 17 1,386 1,384 E
Reinsurance assets 1 1,452 1,657 E
Deferred acquisition and ariginatien costs gl 17,092 16,593 E
Financial inve stmants: 0. 3
Leans and deposits 7.211 7,454 E
Available for sale E
Dubit securities B0, 940 TI.744 i
At fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities 23,700 24,319
Equity securities 7,159 28,627
Derivative financial instruments iy 73 245 L
139,083 138,509 S
Deterred tax a5sets ] ¥ 10 =
Currént tax recoverable 45 54 E
Other assets e 3,892 3,753 ;
Cash and cash equivalents -] 1,992 1,835 é
Total assets Ll LA :5;
LIABILITIES
Inswrance cantract liabilities 2 115,870 113,007
Ifve stment Contract Liabalite s ki 7,114 7.937
Borrowings el 3,195 2934
Obligations under securities lending and repurchase agreements o 3,088 1,783
Derivative financial instruments l 495 m "
Provisions : <} 245 213 k1
Deterred tax Liabitities ] 2,954 307 ‘f
Current tax Liabilities 245 198 5
Other Liabilities k<] L 457 4542 ;
Total Uabilities 138,082 135,944 ‘%
F3
&

x
]
=
o
x
i
o
s
]
o
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=
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o
a

ANMUAL REPDRT 2045 | 129

266/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ko an A
30 Heawe o besir ol Nt B
LIS Noles I0V5 paars
EQUITY
Share capital <" 13,971 13,962
Emgloyee share-based trusts £ 1 {32 (Z54)
Other reserves ) (11,978} (11, 594)
Retained earnings iL,T08 22831
Fair value reserve A 4414 5,074
Foraign currency translation reserae 1] (1,381} n7
Othars 112} [
Amounts reflected in other comprehensive income 3,021 5,203
Totad pgquity attrbutabio fo:
Sharehelders of AlA Group Limited 29,401 30,804
Non-contredling interests ) 137 14%
Total equity _ a%sa 30,555
Total liabilities and equity 167622 166,519

Appraved snd authorised for (ssue by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2014

f »

Mark Edward Tucker Edmund Sze-Wing Tse
D¥roctor Throctor

122 | Al GROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

x
Ot comprahensive income E
Employes Foreign
EL Far  currency Hisfi=
Shate b aned Ofier  Relsined value trasslafon conlrallisg Talal
Lt Bt capital brusks  reserves  eammings FESErve  TESEIVE Others mleresbs equity
Balance at | December 2014 13,962 (288F (11,994 2283 £,07% 227 [A1:}] 149 30,988 :
Mt profit - - - 247 - - - 23 274G z
Fair value lesses on available E
for sale financial assats - - - = 1,43 - - M LEN 'é
Fair value gaans on available E
for sale financial assets et
tranaferred Lo BRCOmMe on E
disposal - = - - [[¥4] - - - {62} o
Fereign currency translation S
adustments = = = = = {1,599} = @y 1,807 ;
Cash fAow hedges - - - - - N 3 n 3 -
Share of other comprehensie
incomeexpensel lram
a5socuates and point venture - - - - 12 {7k - - 3

Effect of remessurement of
net lability of defined
benefit schemes - - - - - - (5) - {5)

Tatal comprehensive income)
{expensa) for the year - - 2691  (1,682) (1,608} (23 B 1573)

Dividends ] - - - (814} - - - 118} (832)

Shares issued under share
oplion scheme and agency
share purchase plan ¥ - - - - - - - bl

Share -based compendation - - 7 - - - i i 79

Purchase of shares held by

employee share-based

trusts = 198) - = = " = = (98)
Transfer of vested shares

from employes

share -based trusts - &3 163) - - - - s =

Balance at 30 Novembar 2015 13,9M (321} (11,978) 24708 L4146 (1,381) (12} 138 29,540

-
]
-
=
z
i
=
k]
]
w
-
é
5
T
]
o
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY

Cahar soenprotandive [ nooeme

Shata  Emgicysss Farisses
camin share: Far  curancy M
i it Bk Difid Rl faisd Wik b i i fa Tengpd
(1. % Mobs  premm Bubs  fesends GGETEOGS Py [ Oifers  IRbiresis by
Balance at 1 Decembar 2013 13,958 274 (11,995 20070 2270 457 (41 145 24827
Net profit - - - 3450 - - - 18 1458

Fair value gainsflosses) on
available for sale financial
Assets - - - - 3814 - - in 3813

Fair value gains on available
for sale financial assets
transferred to income an

dispasal - - - - 1293 - - - 1291
Foreign currency transiation

adjustments - - - - - (4301 - i3 (433
Cash flaw hedges - - - = = = 4 = &

Share of other comprehensive
incarne fram associates

and joint venture - - - - 2 - - - 2
Effact of remeasurament of

net lability of defined

benefit schemes LRI 11
Total comprehansive income/

{axpense) for the year - - - 3,450 3507 =30 L] 14 4835
Dividends 12 - (4EW) - - 1 (700}
Shares issued under share

option scheme & - - . - - i - i
Acquisibon of non-controlling

interests - - - - 41 - - 1 -
Share-based compensation . B3 - . . - - 83
Purchase of shares held by

employee share-based

trusts - LA ] - - - - - - 1711
Transfer of vested shares

from employes

share-based trusts - 9 i - - - - - -
Dthers B - (3 B - < - - (3
Balance at 30 November 2014 13,962 (268 (011,994) 22831 4078 227 10 14% 30955

124 | K& BROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

x
Yoar eaded H
10 Mowember
st Notas s
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before bax 3,350 4345 z
Adjustments for: E
Financial investments (9,429} (15,679 E
Insurance and investment contract liabilites 8,343 10430 =
Obligations under securities lending and repurchase agreements o0 {662h 1,592 =
Other non-cash operating items, including investment income (5,501} 15,084} E
Dperating cash stems; ;
Imterest recened L9464 4,678 E
Dividends received £14 535 z
Interest paid (78} 57 )’
Tax pard {546} 1518}
Met cath provided by operating activities 1,237 Tk
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paymaents for intangible assets =} {103} 1711} E
Contribution to @ jaint venture W (L] -
Leans toa jeint venture - (R 13 E
Paymants for investment property and property, plant and equipment 158 1139} {458} ;
Proceeds from sale of investment property and property, plant and equipment - - é
Disposal of & subsidiary, net of cash disposed Fal - E
Net cash usad in investing sctivities 1230} 11,368 i
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTWITIES
Issuance of medum tem noles ] 745 90
Interest paid on medivm term notes (76} (49}
Proceeds from other borrowings Fil 3 357
Repayment of other barrewings el {690} {3481 3
Dividénds paid during the ygar {832} 1700} ;:-
Purchase of shares held by employee share-based rusts |78) %1 -
Shares issued under share option scheme and agency share purchase plan ¥ [ E
Met cath (used inl/previded by financing activities 173%) 153 g
MNet ncrease/idecreassl in cash and cash equivalents 258 1&51) E
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 1,431 2.140 -
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (148} (58
Cash and cash squivalents at end of the financial year 1,750 1,631
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
COMSOLIDATEDR STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash and cash equivalents in the above consolidated staterment of cash Flows can be Further analysed as follows:

Year swded Wagr greiad
3 Hoveesber ) Mowamar
Motes 2016 1L
Cagh and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position =5 19%2 183
Bank overdrafts (242} 12_{}4:1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS 1,750 1,631

124 | A& FROUP LIITED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

OVERVIEW

1. CORFPORATE INFORMATION
AL& Growp Limited (the "Company’] was established as a company with lemited liability incorporated in Hong Kong on 26 August 2009
The address of its registerad office is 35/F, Al4 Central, Mo, | Connaught Read Central, Hong Kong

ALA Growp Limited is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the stock code " 1299”7 with American
Depositary Receipts {Levirl 1} being raded on the aver-the-counter market (icker symbal: "AAGIY)

Al Growp Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively "AIA" or the "Group™) is a life insurance based financial services provider operating
in 16 markets throughout the Asia-Pacific region. The Group's principal activity is the writing of life insurance business, providing Life
insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans throughout Asia, and distributing related investrent and ather finamcial
services products to its customers

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The eansalidated financisl statements have been prepared i sccordance with all applicable Heng Keag Financial Reparting Standards
(HKFRS), International Financial Reporting Standard s (IFRS} and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. IFRS is substantially consistent
with HKFRS and the accounting pelicy selections that the Group has made in preparing these consolidated financial staternents are
such that the Group is able to comply with bath HEFRS and IFRS. References to IFRS, International Acceunting Standards (IAS) and
Interpresaticns developed by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC)in these consolidated financial statements should be read
a5 referring to the equivalent HEFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKAS) and Hong Keng (IFRICH Interpretations (HEIIFRIC] -
Inth as the casa may be. Accordingly, there are not any differences of accounting practice between HKFRS and IFRS affecting these
consalidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

The consolidated financial statements have bean approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2016,

The consalidated hinameial scatements have been prepared using the historical cost comvention, as madified by the revaluation of
available for sale financial assets, certain financial assets and liabélives designated at fair value throwgh profit or less and derivative
financial instrements, all of which are carmed at faer valus,

i
g
g

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured in the currency of the primary
eConomIc enviranment bnwhich that entity operatesithe functional currency). The Company’s functional currency and the presentation
currency of the Company and the Group is the LIS dollar, The consolidated financial statements are presenbed in millions of U5 dellars
[USHm) unless otherwise stated.

The sccounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except as described below.

{a} The tollowing relevant new interpretation, amendments to standards and implementation of new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
{Cap. 422} are mandatory for the first time fer the financial year beginning 1 December 2014 and do not have material impact to
the Group:

= IFRIC2Y, Levies;

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

»  Amendment o |5 24, Related Parties Disclasures, Mey management persannel;
*  Amendments to IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Pressntation on offsatting financial assets and Rnancial abilities;

*  Amendment ta 185 40, Investment Property, Clarifying the interrelatrnship between IFRS 3 and 145 &40 when classdying
property as investment property or owner-pocupied property;

*  Amendment to IFRS 2, Share -based Payment, Definitien of vesting condition;
= Amendment to IFRS 3, Business Combinations, Accounting for contingent consideration i a business combination;

* Amendments to IFRS 8, Operating Segments, Aggregaticn of operating segments and Reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assels o the entity’s sssets; and

« The annual report requirements of Part § 'Accounts and Audit of the new Heong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 22} come
inte operation during the hnancial year beginning 1 December 2014, as a resul?, there are changes to preésentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consplidated financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES [cortiruad)

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance fontinees

(b} The fellowing relevant new standards and amendmaents to standards have beon issued but are not effectiee for the financial year
ended 30 Hovernber 2015 and have not been early adopted (the financial years for which the adoption is required for the Group
are stated in parentheses). The Group has assessed the full impact of these new standards on its financial position and results of
eperations and they are not expected to have a material impact on the knancial position or results of operations of the Group but
may require additional disclnseres

= Amendmaents to 145 1, Disclosure Initiatioe (2007)

= Armendments to 1AS 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (20185

= Amendments to |AS 16 and 145 38, Clarilication of Acceptabie Methads of Depreciation and Amertsation (2017);
* Amendmaents bo 1AS 19, Employes Benefits, Discount rate: reglonal market issue 2017;

« Amendments ta LAS 27, Equity Methad in Separate Financial Stabements (2017,

*  Amendments te 145 34, Interim Financial Reporting, Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim fnancial repert’
{201,

* Amendmants to IFRS 5, Nea-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, Changes in methods of disposal
T

#  Amendments ta IFRS 7, Financial lnatruments: Disclosure, Servicing contracts and applicability af the amendments ta IFRS 7
to condensed interim financial statements (20171

= Armendments to IFRS 11, Acquasitions of Interests in Joint Dperations {2017,
* IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (2019%; and

*  Amendmentsto IAS 7, Disclosure Initiatiee 2018}

[} The fellowing relevant new standard and requirements have been issued but are not effective for the financial year ended 30

Hewember 2015 and have not been early adopted:

* IFRS 9, Financial Instrements, addresses the classsfication, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilitees. IFRS 9 requires finameial assets to be classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value
and those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made at inival recognition, The classlication depends on the
entity's business medel for managing its financialinstruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.
In addition, & revised expectad eredit losses madel wall repiace the incurred loss imparment madel in A5 39. For financial
liabilitees, the standard retains moest of the 145 37 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value
option is wken for financial Babilities, part of the fair value change dus to am entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. In addition, the new standard
rivises the hedge accounting model to more closely align with the antily's risk management strategies. The Group is yot to
fully assess the impact of the standard en its hnancial position and results of operations. The standard is mandatorily effective
Far annual periods beginning om or after | January 2015,

The IA5E has published an exposure dralt on 9 December 2015 seeking puble comment oh bwo altérnative measures Lo
address the different effective dates of IFRS ? and the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. These measures include a
temporary optson for companies predeminantly issue insurance contracts to defer the effectroe date of IFRS 9 until the earber
of the effective date of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard and the annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021, as well as an approach that allews an entity te remeove from profit or loss the effects of certain accounting
mismatches that may occur before the Forthcoming insurance contracts standard is applied. The Group will monitor the
development of this matber and evaluate available alternatraes in determining the adoption date of the relevant standard

128 | AI& BROUP LIMITED
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OVERVIEW

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES {ortimuma

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance continues

{c} The fellowing relevant new standard and requirements have been ssued but are not effective for the financial year ended 30
Hevember 2015 and have net been early adopted: (rontiruad

* IFRS 16, Leases, sets out the principles for the recogmition, measurement, presentatoon and disclosure of leases The standard
introduces a single lessee sccounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilases for all leases with &
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. & lessee is required to recognise a right-of-uss
assol representing its right 1o use the underlying leased asset and a lease liabilty representing its cbligation to make lease
payments. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting require ments in 145 17, Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance Inases, and to account for those twa types of leases differently. The Group
s yel to assess the full impact of the standard on its hinancial pesition and resules of sperations The standard is mandaterily
effectrve for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 217

I additien, for the pericds beginning 1 December 2015, the Group revised certamn accounting policies and basis of presentation
and assessed the impact te the consalidated financial statements {see note 48 and note £9). The Group will report Bs results
including these palicies for the first time for the six manths ending 31 May 2014

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been applied consistently in all pericds presented,

2.2 Dperating profit

The lang-term nature af much of the Group's sperations means that, ler management’s decision-making and internal perfermance
management purposes, the Group evaluates its results and its operating segments using a financial performance measure referred
to as “operating profit”. The Group defines operating profit before and after tax respectively as profit excluding the Following nen
operating items:

i
g
g

= imvestment experience twhich consists of realised gains and losses. Foreign exchange gains and losses, impasrments and
unrealised gains and losses on imvestments beld at fair value threugh profic or lass);

* investment income related to unit:linked contracts iconsisting of dividends, interest income and rental incomid

* investment management expenses related to unit-linked contracts;

* correspanding changesin msurance and investmant contract Liabilities in respect oF unit-linked contracts and participating funds
{see note 2.4) and changes in third-party interests in conselidated investment funds;

+ policyholders’ share of tax relating to changes in insurance and imvestment contract liabilities; and
= gther significant tem s that management considers to be non-operating income and expenses

Whilst these ewcluded non-operating item s are significant companents of the Group's profit, the Group considers that the presentation
of operating profit enhances the understanding and comparability of its performance and that of its aperating segments. The Group
considers that rends can be more clearly identified wthout the Nuctuating elfects of these non-operating items, many of which are
largely dependent on market factors

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Operating profit & provided as additional information to assi4t in the comparison of business trends in different reparting periods an
aconsisient basks and enhance overall understanding of inancial performance
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES |cortirad)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entites including structured entities) over which the Group has control. & structured entity is an entity that
has been designed so that voting or simiar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controds the entity, such as when any
voting reghts relate to administrative tasks only, and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements. The
Group has determined that the investment lunds and structured securities, such as collateralised debt obligations, mortgage-backed
securities and other asset-backed securities that the Group has interest are structured entities.

The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invelvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date onwhich control is
tramsferred to the Group and are excluded from consolidation from the date at which the Group no longer has contral. Intercompany
tramsactions are eliminated

The Group utilises the acquisition method of accounting to account far the acquisition of subsidiare s, unless the acquisition forms part
of the Greup rearganisation of entities under commen contrel. Under this methed, the cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair
value of conssderation payable, sharesissued or liabalites assumed at the date of acquisition, The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired is recorded as goodwill see 2.10 below). The Group recognises, separately
fram goodwill, the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilties assumed and any noen-contralling interest in the subsidiary, Any surplus
of the acquirer’s interest in the subsidary’s net assets over the cost of acquisition is eredited to the consolidated income statement.

The consalidated Financial statements of the Group include the assets, liabilities and results of the Company and subsidiaries in which
AL4 Group Limited has a contralling interest, using accounts deawn up to the repesting date.

Investment funds

Ivestment funds in which the Group has interests and power to direct their relevant activities that alfect the return of the funds are
conselidated in the inancial staternents. In conducting the assessment, the Group considers substantive contractual rights as well
as de facto control. De facto contral of an entity may arise from circumstances where the Group does not have more than 30% of the
voting power but it has the practicat ability ta direct the relevant activities of the entity, If the Group has pewer 1o remove or control
ower the party having the ability to direct the relevant activities of the fund based on the facts and circumstances and that the Group
has exposure to variahle returns of the investment funds, they are conselidated, Variable returns include both rights to the prodes or
distributions as well as the obligation to absorb losses of the investees.

Employes share-bazed trusts

Trusts are set up to acquire shares of the Company for distnbution te participants in future periods throwgh the share-based
compensation schemes The consolidation of these trusts is evaluated in accordance with IFRS 10; where the Group is desmed to
cantral the trusts, they are consolidated. Shares acquired by the trusts te the exbent not provided te the partcipants upan vesting are
carried at cost and reported as “employes share -based trusts” in the consolidated staterment of financial position, and as a deduction
fram the equity in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

Mon-controlling interasts

MHom-controlling intere sts are presented within equity exceplwhen they arise through the minority’ s interest in puttable liabilities such
a5 the unit holders” intérest in consolidated imvestment funds, when they are recognised as a liability, reflecting the net assets of the
eonsalidabed entity.

Acquisitiens and dispesals of non-contredling interests, except when they anse through the minarity’s interest in puttable liabilities,
are treated as transacbons bebween equity holders. As a result, any difference between the acquisition cost or sale price of the non
cantralling interest and the carrying value of the non-contralling interest is recognised as an increase of decrease in equity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES fotiruma

2.3 Basis of consolidation icontirued

Associates and joint ventures

Associales are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but which it does not control. Generally, it is presumed that the
Group has significant influence if it has bebaeen 20 per cent and 50 per cent of voting rights. Joink ventures are entities whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic actvity which s subpct to pint control ansing frem a contractual agreement,

Gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joink ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the associates and joint venture s, L osses are also eliminated, uniess the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of an asset
tramsferred between entities

[Fvei SEPnEs im associates and joint véntures are accounted for using the aquity methed of accsunting Under this methed, the cost
of the investrnent in-an asscciate or joint venture, tegether with the Group's share of that entity's post-acquisition changes to equity,
i% intluded a5 an assat in the consolidated statement of financial position. Cost includes goodwill ansing on acquisition. The Group's
share of post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised im the consolidated income statermnent and its share of pest-acquisition
movement in equity is recognised in other comprehensive income. Equity accounting is discontinued when the Group no longer has
significant influence gver the investment. If the Group s share of losses in an assotiate or joint venture equals or exceeds B4 interes
In the umdertaking, additional losses are provided for, and a liability recagnised, anly to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
ar constructive cbligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. The Group also accounts for investments in
pint ventures that are subpect to joint controd using the equity methad of accounting.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

The Campany’s investmants
In the Company's statement of financial pesttion, subsidiarses, associates and joint ventures are stated at cost, enless impaired. The
Company's interests in nvestment funds such as mutual funds and unit trusts are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts
Consistent accounting policies for the measurement and recognition of insurance and mvesiment contracts have been adopted
thraughout the Group to substantially all of its busineas

i
g
g

In a limited number of cases, the Group measures insurance contract Habilities with reference to statutory requirements in the
applicable jerisdiction, without deferral of acquisition costs.

Product classification

The Group classilied its contracts written as ¢ither insurance contracts or imsstment contracts. depending on the level of insurance
risk, Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk, while svesirment contracts are those contracts
wathout significant insurance risk. Some insurance and inve stment contracts, referred to as participating business. have discretionary
participation features, OPF", which may entitle the custamer to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefns, additiomal men-
guaranteed benefits, such as policyholder dividends or bonuses. The Group applies the same accownting policies for the recognition
and measurement of obligations arising from mnve stment contracts with DPF as it does lor insurance contracts,

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

In the event that & scenario (other than those Lacking commercial substance) existsin whichan insured event would require the Group
to pay significant additional bemefits to its customers, the contract isaccounted far as an msurance contract, For investment contracts
that do not contain DPF, 1AS 39, Finanoal Instruments: Measarement and Recogrehum, and, if the contract includes an investment
management element, |45 18, Revweore Recogmbion, are applied. IFRS & permits the continued use of previcusly applied accounting
policies for insurance contracts and investment contracts with OFF, and this basis has been adopted by the Group in Sccounting for
such contracts. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance or investment contract. reclassification s not subsequently
perfarmed unless the erms of the agreement are later amended.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |cortirads

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts joos ruad)

Product classification (onimae)

Certain contracts with OPF supplement the amount of guaranteed benehits due to policyholders These contracts are distinct from
other insurance and investment contracts as the Group has discretion in the amouent and/or timing of the benefits declared, and how
such benefits are allocated between groups of pelicyholders. Customers may be entitled to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed
benefits, addiional benefits or bonuses:

*  that are likely to be a significant partion of the total contractual benefits;
* whose amownt or timing is contractually at the discretion of the Group; and
®  that are contraciually based on:
= the perfermande of 3 specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract;
- realised and/er unrealised investment returns on 4 specifoed pool of assets held by the issuer; ar
the prafit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.

The Group applies the same accounting policies For the recognition and measurement of obligations and the deferral of acquisition
costs arising from investment contracts with DPF s & does to insurance contracts. The Group refers to such contracts as participating
business. In some jurisdictions participating business is written in a participating fund which is distinct from the other assets of the
Company or branch, The allocation of Benefits from the assets held in such partcipating funds is subject to minimum policyholder
participation mechanisms whbch are established by regulation. The extent of such palicy participation may change over time. The
current pelicyholder participation in declared dividends for locations with participating funds is set out below

Couniry Carreal pelicylolder parteopaiion
Sengapore 0%
Malaysia 0%
China 0%
Australia B0%
Brunei B0%

In Sarme purisdic bons participating busaness is not writtén in & distinct fund and the Broup relers Lo this As other participating busangss,
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Product classification (oot
The Group's products may be diided into the fellowing main categories:

Dwscnption of benadits payatia

Traditasnal participating
Ife aswurance wih DPF

Haon-participating ke
LA FEDCE, AnniElas and
ather protec tmn preducts

Urwazizal bie

Ui« finbed

In thie notes to the financial staternents, unit-linked contracts are presented together with pension contracts lor disclosure purpeses.

Participating funds

Elihar par L apaling
bursmens

Participating prodecis combime
protnction with a savings
wlement, The basic sum assured,
payable an death or maturity,
may bt wnhanced by dmdends af
bomuses, the aggregale amaund
@l walic ks 1 debei runsd by ke
perlormance of & dstiedcd Fund of
astols and babilitis

Tk laming of dvidend amd banus
declarations i at the discretian
of the msurer. Local regulstmns
gueerably proscrlss & meniminm
proportion of policybolder
participation in declaned

dsde nade

Participating products cormbies
protechion with a savings
lerreenl, The basic £um ascured,
payable an desth ar ratuidy,
may be enhanced by dvdends o
basuses, the bimeng or amous) of
which are al the discreton of 1he
insarnr Lk indo accounl
lactors soch aw imves lirenl
EEpETEnCe

Bemelin pavahble are mot ab the
dicietion ol thi nawr e

Bemelde sre badod on an accouml
balance, credied wah miterest al
a radn sal by (b ansused, and a
desih beneli, which may be
il by Uhe cusbomer

Thewe may be pramandy savings
prodiscts e rmay combing
wivimgs wilh an clement of
peiection
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Baes of pogounting for

Freseirancs confrac b labilias

Insurance comract liabilites
ik prosminn bor the presost
value of quaranteed benelils lews
estimated fubure net promssie
1o be colleched from
pelicyholders, bn sdddion, an
wrrkuif ance bakolily o recorded Por
thex progertien of the nel ascets
ol the par ri;-pl-ng Tunds that
weoiald b allocated tn
palicyholders, answmng all
perbarmance wonld be declared
at a dindend baved wpon bacal
renulatens

Inswrance comarac labditis
make provision bor the precent
valiss of guarantesd Benolils and
nor-guadanteed participation
Bees ectomated fulure net
proemig to by collecked lrarm
palicyhalders

Insurance cordract labilities
seltac) thi pracinl vales of
Butune palecy bere s 1o ke pawd
s dbe present value of
extimated lubure pal premesrs
10 be colleched from
pelicyhobiers, In sdddian,
deleried prolit halnbtes lod
limiled paymrent contracts are
seoognned

Inswrsnce conlract lubildns
wellect the asccammlation value,
sepreteniing prenwure reoeved
wnd imvestment return credited,
Bews deductnns lor Iront-end
Roade, mariality and mgr badsty
costs and exponse charges. In
additgn, Labildes fog osearned
revenue and additienal seurance
Eenehis are recanded

Insurance comrac labiltes
soleat Bhe sccmmmilation walue,
ropresenting premiuns receted
andl invesiment retuen crediled,
s deductmne lor fronl-end
Soads, rarialiy and mod bidsy
coste and expense charges. in
addition, labildies lor unearmed
revinias and addibenal msurance
benefis are recorded

Irvesimact Cohlract
bablibas

Hot applcable, as
IFIRS & parrevats
confracts with BPF 1o
be accounted far as
insutande conltacls

Hat appleablo, as
IFIRS 4 permls
contracks wilh PF ta
bz accounted fer as
insurance conliacis

Investrment confract
|aadbsi lities are
measured at
amarlised cost

Not appleable od
such contracts
qunerally conlam
signaicant nsurance
Tk

|eesiment cankrack
lsabnlites are
maeasured af fan
winluar fdo bermmieed
wilh relerence 1o the
accuimaslaten valus)
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES |cortiruad)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts {ooo= nuadp

Product classification o

The basis of accounting for insurance and investrment confracts is discussed in notes 2 4.1 and 2 4.2 below,

2.4.1 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DFF

Fremiums

Premiums from [ife insurance contracts, including participating policies and annuity policies with life contingencies, are recognised
as revene when due from the policyholder. Benefits and expenses are provided in respect of such revenue so 2% to recognise profits
ower the estimated life of the pelickes. For limited pay contracts, premiums are recognised in profit or loss when due, with any excess
prafit deferred and recognised in incame in a constant relationship to the insurance in-force or, for annuities, the amount of expected
benefit payments

Ampunts collected as premiums from insurance contracts with investment features but with sufficient insurance risk to be considered
Insurance contracts, such as uniersal life, and certain unit-lnked contracts, are accumulated as deposits. Revenue lrom thess
contracts consists of poticy fee s for the cost of insurance, adeministration, and surrenders during the period.

Upfrent fees are recognised over the estimated life of the contracts to which they relate. Policy benefits and claims that are charged
to expenses include benefit claims incurred in the peried in excess of related policyholder contract deposits and interest credited to
policyholder deposits

Unearmed revenue tiability
Unearned révenue liabilty arisng from insurance cantracls répresentsng uplron? lees and ather non-bevel charges s deferred and
refeased to the consolidated income statement over the estimated life of the business

Delerred scquisition costs

The easts of acquiring new insurance contraces, including commissions and distribution costs, underariting and other pobicy issus
expenses which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new business or renewal of ensting business, are deferred as
anasset Delerred acquisition costs are asdessed for rec overability in the year of policy [Ssue to ensure that these costs are rec overable
cut of the estimated future margins to be earned on the pelicy. Deferred acquisition costs are assessed For recoverabiity at least
annyally thereafter. Future investment income is also taken into account in assessing rocoverability. To the extent that acquisition
costs are not considered (o be recoverable at incepbion or thereafer, these costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement

Dwferred ac quisition co4es for life insurance and annuity policies are amortised aver the expected life of the contracts 23 a conatant
percentage of expected premiums. Expected premiums are esbimated at the date of policy issue and are consistently applied
throughout the life of the contract unless a deficiency eccurs when performing liability adeguacy testing {see belowt

Deferred acquisition costs lor universal lile and unit-linked contracts are amaortised over the expected I#e of the contracts based
on a constant percentage of the present value of estimated gross profits expected to be realised over the life of the contract cron a
strasght-line basis. Estimated gross profits include expected amounts to be assessed lor mortality, adminkstration, investment and
surrenders, less benefit claims in excess of palicyholder balance s, administrative expenses and interest credited. Estimated gross
prafits are revised regularly. The interest rate used Lo compute the present value of revised estimates of expected gross profits is
the latest revised rate applied to the remaining benefit period. Deviations of actual results from estimated experience are reflected
In earnings.

Deferred sales inducements
Delerred sales inducements, consisting of day one bonuses, persistency bonuses and enhanced crediting rates are deferred and
amortised using the same methodology and assurmplions used to amortise acquisition costs when:

*  the sales inducements are recognised as part of insurance contract liabilitie s;
*  they are explicitly identified in the contract on inception,
*  thiry are mcremental (o amounts credited on similar contracts without sales inducemints; and

* they are higher than the expected ongoing crediting rates for periods after the inducement
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING FOLICIES j:or
2.4 Insurance and investment contracts corsruod

2.4.1 Insurance contracts and inve stmaent contracts with DPF gentimem

Unbundling

The deposit compenent of an insurance contract is unbundled when bath of the fallowing conditiens are mat:

o}

*= the deposit component lincluding ary embedded surrender optiont can be méasured separately (i, without taking inte account
the insurance companentk and

* the Group's accounting policies do not otherwise require the recognithon of all obligations and rights arising fram the deposit
companent.

Bifurcation
Ta the extent that certain of the Group's insurance contracts include embedded derivatives that are not clearly and closely related to
the hast contract, these are bifurcated from the insurance contracts and sccounted for as dervatives,

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

Benefits and claims
Inswrance contract benefits reflect the cost of all maturities, surrenders. withdrawals and claims arising during the year, as well as
policyhalder devidends acerved in anticipation of dnidend declarations

Accident and health claims incurred include all losses accurring during the year, whether reported or not, related handling costs, a
reduction for recoverss, and any adjustments to ¢ laims outstanding from previous years.

Claims handling costs include internal and external casts inturred in connection with the negotiation and settlement of claims, and
are included in operaling expenses.

Insurance contract liabifities {including liabilities i respect of investment contracts with DPF)
Insurance contract liabibites represent the estimated Future policyhalder benefit Lisbdity for Life insurance policies.

i
g
g

Future policy banefits for bfe insurance policies are calculated using a net level premium valuation method which represents the
present value of estimated future policy benefits ta be paid, less the present value of estimated future net premiums to be callected
from policyholders

Fer contracts with an explicit account balance, suchas universal life and unit-linked contracts, insurance contract labilities are equal
te the accumulation value, which represents premiums received and inve stment mturns credited to the policy less deductions for
martality and rorbidity ¢ 0sts and expense charges.

Settlement options are accounted for 35 an integral compaonent of the underlying insurance or investment contract unless they provide
annuitisation benehits, i which case an additional liability is established to the extent that the present value of expected annuftisation
payments at the expected annuitisation date exoeeds the expected account balance at that date, Where settlement optiens have
begn issued with guaranteed rates loss than market interest rates, the insurance or investment contrack liabdity dees not reflect any
provision for subsequent declines in market interest rates unless a deficiency is identified through liability adequacy testing.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

The Group acc cunts for participating policies within participating funds by establishing a Labifity fer the present value of guaranteed
benefits less estimated future net premivms te be collected from policyhelders. In addition, an insurance lability is recorded for the
proportion of the net assets of the participating funds that would be allocated to policyhelders assuming all parformance were to be
declared a5 a dividend based upon local regulations. The Group accounts for other participating business by establishing a liability for
the present value of guaranteed benefits and non-guaranteed particpation, less estimated future net premiums to be collected fram
policyholders
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES |cortirad)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracks jooos ruad)

2.4.1 Insurance contracts and inve stmant contracts with DPF (enbruedl

Liability adequacy testing

The adequacy of habilities is assessed by portfolio of contracts, in accordance with the Growp's manner of acquiring, servicing and
measuring the profitability of its insurance contracts. Liability adequacy testing is performed for each geographical market.

For traditional life insurance contracts, insurance contract liabilities reduced by deferred acquisition costs and value of business
acquired on acquired insurance contracts, are compared to the gross premium valuation calculated on a be st e stimate basis, a5 of the
valuation date. If there is a deficiency, the unamortised balance of deferred acquisition cost and value of business acquired on acquired
Insurance contracts are written dawn to the extent of the deficiency. IF, after writing down the unamertised balance for the specific
portfalic of contracts vo nil, a deficsency still exists, the net liabitity is increased by the ameunt of the remaining deliciency

Fer universal Ife and investment contracts, deferred acquisition costs, net of unearned revenue Liabalite s, are compared to estmated
gross profits. If a deliciency exists, deferred acquisition costs are written down,

Financial guarant ees
Financial quarantees are régarded a5 insurance contracts, Liabilities in respect of such contracts are recognised as loss is incurred
by a holder.

2.4.2 Investment contracts

Investment contracts de not contain sufficient insurance risk bo be considered insurance contracts and are accounted for as a fimancial
Liability, ather than nvestment contracts with DPF which are excluded Irom the scope of 1AS 19 and are sccounted for a3 insurance
contracts.

Revenue from these contracts consists of various charges (policy fees, handling lees, management fees and surrender charges)
madé against the contract lor the cost of insurance, expenses and early surrender. First year charges are amortised aver the life of
the contract as the services are provided

Irvestment confract fee revenue

Customers are charged fees for policy administration. investment management, surrenders or other contract services. The fees
may be fixed amounts or vary with the amounts being managed, and vill generally be charged as an adpustment to the pelicyholder’s
accownt balance. The fees are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are received unless they relate to services to be
provided m future periods, inwhich case they are deferred and recognised as the service is prowded.

Originatign and other “upfront” fees (fees that are assessed against the account balance as consaderation for grignation of the
contracth are charged on some non-participating imestment and pension contracts. Where the investment contract is recorded at
amortised cost, these fees are amartised and récagnised aver the expected term af the palicy as an adustment to the eNective yield.
Where the investment contract i1s measured at fair value, the front-end fees that relate to the proviston of mve stment management
services are amortised and recognised a5 the services are provided

Deferred origination costs

The costs of acquiring investrent cantracts with investment management services, including commissions and other necremental
expenses directly related to the issue of each new contract, are deferred and amortised over the period that services are provided
Defersed arigination costs are tested lar recaversbility at each reporting date.

The costs of acquiring new iInvestrent canfracts without imvestment manage ment servicesare included as part of the effective Interest
rate wsed 1o calculate the amartised cost of the related investment contract labilibes,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES fortiruma

2.4 Insurance and investment contracks jconbmed

2.4.2 Investmaent contracts fooos nuedp

Irvestment contract liabilities

Deposits recetved in respect of investment contracts are not accounted for through the consolidabed income statement, excepl for
the investment income and fees attributable to those contracts, but are accounted for dwectly through the conselidated statement of
financial position as an adjustment to the investment contract liabdity, which reflects the account balance

The majerity of the Group s contracts classified 8% investment contracts ane unit- linked contracts, with measuremaent directly linked
to the underlying investment assets. These represent imvestment portfolios maintained to meet specific investment obpctives
of pelicyholders who generally bear the credit and market risks on those mvestments. The Liabilities are carried at fair value
determinedwith reference to the aceumulation value (current unit value) with changes recognised in prafit or lass The cosis af pelicy
administration, investment management, surrender charges and certain policyholder taxes assessed against customers’ account
balances are include d in revenus, and accounted for as descnbed under “Investment contract fee revenue” abeve,

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

Nam unit-linked investment contract liabilities are carried at amortised cost, being the fair value of consideration received at the
date of mitial recegnition, less the net effect of principal payments such as transaction costs and front-end fees, plus or minus the
curnulative amertisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturicy valee, and
less any write- down for surrender payments. The efective interest rate equate s the disccunted cash payments to the inikal amount.
A each reporting date, the unearned revenue liability is determimed as the value of the future best estmarte cash Rows discaunted
at the effective interest rate. Any adjustment is immediately recognised as mcome or expense in the consolidated income staterment

The armortised cost of the financial lability is never recorded at Lless than the amount payable on surrender, discounted far the time
value of money where applicable, # the investment contract is subject to a surrender option

2.4.3 Insurance and investment contracts

Reinsurance

The Group cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business, with retentions varying by line of business. The cost of reinsurance
is accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured policies, using assumptions consistent with those used to account fer such
policies

Premiums ceded and claims reimbursed sre presented on @ gross basis in the consolidated income statement and statement of
financial position.

i
g
g

Reinsurance assets consist of amounts receivable inrespect of ceded msurance liabilitles. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the reinsured insurance or investment contract liabilities or benefits paid and in accordance
wvath the relevant réinsurance contract

Ta the extent that reinsurance contracts principally transfer financial risk (a5 opposed to insurance riski they are accounted for
directly through the consslidated staternent of financial position and are not included in reinsurance assets or liabilities A deposit
asset or liability is recognised, based on the consideration paid or received less any explicitly identified premiums or fees to be
retained by the reinsured

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

It a reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the canrying amount accordingly and recognises that impairment foss in the
consalidated income statement A rélnsurance assel i impasred if thers is obpctive evidence, as & result of an event that securred
after inial recagnition of the reinsurance asset, that the Group may not receive all amounts due to @ under the terms of the contract,
and the impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsyrer can be reliably measured

Value of business acqguired (VOEA)

The VOBA in respect of a portfolio of leng-term insurance and investment contracts, either directly or through the purchase of a
subsidry, s recognised a5 an asset. If this results from the scquisition of an investrent in & joint vienture or an associate, the VOBA
is held within the carrying amount of that investment. In all cases, the V0BA is amortised over the estimated life of the contracts in
the ac quired portfolio on & systematic basis, The rate of amortisation reflects the profile of the value of in-force business acquired
The carrying value of VIOBA is reviewed annually for impairment and any reduction is charged to the consolidated income statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |cortirads

2.4 Insurance and investment contracks jooos ruad)

2.4.3 Insurance and investment contracts forsmd

Shadow accounting

Shadow acc ounting is applied to insurance and certain investment contracts with discretionary participation feature where financial
assets backing insurance and investment contract liabilities are classified a3 available for sale. Shadow accounting is applied to
delerred acquisition costs, VOBA, deferred origination costs and the contract liabilites for investment contracts with OFF ta ke into
accownt the effect of unrealised gains or Losses on insurance liabilities or assets that are recognised in gther comprehensive incoma
In the same way a5 lor & realised gain or Loss recognised i the consolidated income statement Such assets or Habilities are adjusted
with corresponding charges or credits recognised directly in shareholders” equity as a component of the related unrealised gains and
[LEETES

tker assessments and [evies

The Group is potentially subject to various periodic insurance-related assessments or guarantes fund levies Related provisions are
established where there is a present obligation {legal or constructivel a5 a result of a past event Such amownts are not included in
insurance or investment contract liabilities but ane included under “Provisions” in the consolidated statement of fmancial position

2.5 Financial instrumants

2.5.1 Classitication of and designation of financial instrumants

Firancial assets and abilities at falr valve threogh profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss comprise two categories:

* financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through profit er loss upon initial recegnition; and
= financial assets or liabilitie s classihed as held for trading

Management designates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  this eliminates a measurement
inconsistancy or if the related assets and liabilties are actrely managed on a Fair value basis, including:

= financial assets held to back enit-linked contracts and participating funds,

+ other Binancial assets managed on a fair value basis; consisting of the Group's equity pertfolio and investments held by the Group's
fully consolidated imvestment funds; and

* campound instruments containing an embe dded derivative, where the embedded derivative would othe raase reguire bifurcation.

Financial assets and liabilities classified a5 held for trading include financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling
them in the near luture and those that ferm part of a portfclio of linancial asselsinwhich there is evidence of short-term profit taking,
aswell as derivative assets and liabilities.

Dividend income From equity instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in investment income in the
consolidated income statement, generally when the security becomes ex-dividend. Interestincome is recognised on an accrued basis,
For all Financial assets designated ot fair value threugh profit or loss, changes in fair vabue are recognised in Myestment exparience,

Transaction costs i respect of financial assets and liabilities at fair wvalue through profit or loss are expensed as they are incurred
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2.5 Financial instruments (contires)

2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instruments {cocainueah

Awaillabie for sale inancial asseis

Financial assets, other than these at Fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables, are classifed as available for sale

The svadable for sale category is used where the relevant investments backing insurance and investmant contract labilites and
shareholders’ equity are not managed on a fair value basis. These principally consist of the Group's debt securities {other than thoss
backing participating funds and unit- bnked contracts), Avaslable for sale Bnancial assels are initially recognised at Fair value plus
attributable transaction costs. For available for sale debt securities, the diference between their cost and par value is amortised.
Available for sake financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interestincome from debt securities classified as available
for sale ks recognised in imvestrent income in the consolidated incame statement using the effective interest method.

Unrealised gains and losses on securitie s classified as available for sale are analysed between differences resultsng From toreign
currency translation, and cther fair value changes. Foreign currency translation differences om monetary available for sale
imvestments, such s debt securities are calculated as if they were carried at amortised cost and sa are recognised in the consalidated
income statement as investmaent experence. For impairments of available for sale hinancial assets, reference i made to the section
“Impairment of financial assets™.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

Changes in the fair value of secunties classled as available For sale, except For impairment losses and relevant foreign exchange
gains and losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated im a separate fair value reserve vathin equity.
Impairment losses and relevant foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income statement

Realised garns and losses on financial assets
Realised gains and losses on available for sale hinancial assets are delermined as the difference bebween the sale procesds and
amortised cost Amortised cost i determined by specihic identification,

-
H
-
-
E
o
]
-
-5
£
T
o
L ¥

Recognition of financial instruments
Purchases snd sales of financial instruments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date at which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the assets

Derecagnition and offser of Nnancial assers

Financial assets are derecognised when the nghts to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group
has transterred substantially all risks snd rewards of ownership. f the Group neither transfers nor relains substantially all the risks
and rewards of cwnership of a financial asset, it derecognises the financial asset f it no longer has control over the asset. In transfers
where contred over the asset is retained, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing invelvement. The
extent of continuing invelvement is determined by the extent to which the Group is exposed to changes in the fair value of the asset,

Financial assets and Labilities are offsat and the net amount reported in the consclidated statement of inancial position anly when
there is a legally enfarceable right 2o affset the recognised amounts and there is &n (ntention to settle on a net basis, o realise the
asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Leans and recelvables

Leans and recerables are non- dervative financial assets vath Fived or detérminable payments that are not quoted in an active market
They are initsally recognised at lair value plus transaction easts. Subsequéntly, théy are carried ab amortised cost using the efféctive
interest methad less any impairment Iosses. Interest incams from Loans and receivables is recognised in investment income in the
consolidated income statement using the effectrve interest me thod.

Term deposits

Deposits include time depositswith financial institutons which do net mest the definition of cash and cash equivalents as their matuwrity
at acquisition excesds three months. Certain of these balances are subject to regulatory or other restriction as disclosed in note 20
Loans and deposits. Deposits are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method

LCash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liguid mvestments with
maturities at acquisition of three menths or less, which are held for cash management purposes. Cash and cash equivalents also
include cash recehed as collateral for derrvative transactions, securities lending ransactions, and repo and reverse répo transactions,
a5 well as cash and cash equivalents held for the benefit of policyholders in conmection with unit-linked products. Cash and cash
equivalents are measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest method,

g
-
i
-
[
=]
a
=
a
L
z
-1
B
=
o
E

ANMUAL REPORT 2015 | 139

284/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
ooOooood

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |cortirad)

2.5 Financial instruments (contirued

%.5.2 Fair values of non-derivative financial instruments

The fair value of & financial instrument is the amaunt that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
tramsaction betaeen market participants at the measurement date, having regard to the specific characteristics of the asset or liabality
concerned, assuming that the transfer takes place in the most advantageous market bo which the Group has access. The fair values
of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as fmancial instruments at fair value through predit or [oss and available for
sale securities) are based on quated market prices at the date of the conselidated statement of financial position. The queted market
proce used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price, which is considered to be the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of the fair value in the circumstances. The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in active
markats are dolermined using valuation techrigued, The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions at the date of each conselidated statement of financial position: The obpctive of using a valuation technigue is
to estimate the price at which an orderly fransacticn would take place bebweon market participants at the date of the cansslidated
staternent of financial pesition.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured using a fair value hierarchy described in note 22

2.5.3 lmpairment of financial assets

Ganeral

Financial assers are assessed for impairme nt on & régular basis, The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 13 objgctive
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset. or group of financial assets, is impaired and
Impairment lodses are incurred only if thife 13 abjective evidines ol impairment 3% & result of one aF More events that have occufred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that foss event (or eventsh has an #mpact on the estimated future cash Rows
of the financial asset of group of hinancial assets that can be reliably estimated,

Far lnans and receivables, the Group lirst assesses whether abpetive evidence ol impairment exists for Gnancial assets that aré
individually significant. If the Group determines that cbjective evidence of impairment does not exist for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset ina group of financial assetswith samilar credit risk characteristes and
collectively assesses them for impairment Assets that are individually assessed for im pairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continue s to be recognised are not included in a collectrae assessment of Empairment

Available for sale financial instruments

When a decling in the far value of an avallable for salé as5et has been recognised in other compréhensie intome and there i ob jective
endence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative toss already recognised directly in other comprehensive income is recognised in
current period profit or loss

It the fair wvalue of & debt instrument classified as available for sale inereasesin g subseguent period, and the increase can be obpetively
refated to an event sccurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loas, Where, following the recognitsan of an impairment Lloss in respect of &n available for sale debt security. the asset suffers
Further falls in value, such further falls are recognised as an impairment only in the case when ebjective evidence exists of a further
imipairment ewent o which the losses can be attributed

Leans and receivables

For loans and recérables, impairment s conaidered ta have taken place if it i probable that the Group will not be able to callect
principal and/or intere st due according to the contractual terms of the instrument. When impairment is determined to have eccurred,
the carrying amount is decreased through a charge to profit or less. The carrying amount of mortgage loans or recevables is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amaunt of any allowance s recognised as an mmpairment loss in profit or loss,
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2.5 Financial instruments. iconfirued)

2.5.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments primarily include foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps that derive their value mainly
from underlying foreign exchange rates and interest rates. All derivatives are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair value, which regresents their cost excluding transaction costs, which are expensed, giving rise to a day
one loss. They are subseguently remeasured at thelr fair value, with movements in this value recognised in profit or Loss, Fair values
are obtained from quoted market prices or, if these are not available, by using valuation techniques such as discounted cash Aow
models or option pricing models. All derrvatives are carried a5 assets when the fair values are positive and as liabdlitses when the far
values are negative

Dertvative instruments fer ecenomie hedging

‘Whillst the Group enters nto denvative transactions bo provide econgmic hedges under the Group's risk management framewark, it
adopts hedge accounting te these transactions only in bm#ted circurmstances, This is either because the transsctions would not rmest
the specific IFRS rules to be eligible for hedge accounting or the documentation reguirements to mest hedge accounting criteria
would be unduly cnerous. Where hedge accounting does not apply, these transactions are treated as held for trading and fair valus
movements are recognised immediately in investment experisnee

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives.are derivatives embedded within other non-dervatiee host linancial instruments to create hybrid instruments
‘Where the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative s are not closely related to the economic characteristics and
risks of the host instrument, and whire thi hybeid instrument is not measured ot Fair valug with changes in fair value recognised in
prafit or loss, the embedded dervative is bifurcated and carried at fair value as a derivative in accordance with 145 39,

2.6 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a compeonent of the Group that engages in busine ss activity from which it éarns revenues and incurs expenses
and, for which, discrete hinancial infermation is svailable, and whese operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group's chiel
operating decision-maker, considered to be the Executive Committee of the Group (ExCol,
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2.7 Foreign currency translation

Income statements and cash flows of foreign entites are translated into the Group's pre sentation currency at average exchangs rates
for the year 4% this spproximates to the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dats, Their statements of Fnancial pasition are
transiated ab year or period end exchange rates. Exchange differences arising from the transtation of the net investrment in foreign
operations, are taken to the currency translation reserve within equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, such exchange differences
are transferred out of this reserve and are recognised in the consolidated income staternent as part of the gain o loss on sale,

Foreign currency transactions are acccunted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions, Gains and losses
resulting from the settement of such transactians, and from the translation of monetary assets and babilities denomdnated in foreign
currencies into functional currency, are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Translation differences on financeal assets designated at fair value threugh profit or loss are included im bnvestenent expenence. For
monetary financial assets classified as available for sale, translation differences are calculated as if they were carried at amortised
cast and 50 are recognised in the consolidated income statement. Foreign exchange movements on non-monetary equities that are
accounted far as available for sale are included in the fair value reserve,
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2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment i stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impakrmant losses
Historical cast inludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Depreciation is calculated wsing the
straight-line method to allecate cost less any residual value over the estimated useful life, generally:

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment S years
Buildings 20-LQ years
Other assats A-Syvars
Freeheld Lland Mot deprechated

Subsequént costs are inclided in the carrying amount or recognised 4 a separaté assel, as appropraste, when it is probable that
future economic benefits will fow to the Group. Repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during
the fnancial period in which they are incuerred

Residual values and uselul lives are reviewed and adjusted, if applicable, at each reporting date. An asset is written down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value is greater than the estimated recoverable amount.

Arny gain and loss arising on desposal of property, plant and equipment (s measured as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Where the cost of the Group's leasehold land is known, or can be reliably determined at the inception of the lease, the Group records
its interest in leasehold land and land wse rights separately as operating leases ar finance lease s depending on whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental bo swnershap of the land are transferred to the Group. These leases are recorded at original cast
and amortised over the term of the lease (see 2.19)

2.9 Investment property
Property held for long-term rental that is not eccupied by the Group is classdied as investment property, and is carried at cost less
accumnulated depreciation and any atcumulated mmpairment losses

Investment property comprises freehold or leasehold land and buidings. Buildings located on leasehold land are classified as
imvestment property if held for long-term rental and not occupled by the Group Where the cost of the land s known, or can be
reliably determined at the inception of the lease, the Group records its interest in leasehald land and land use rights separately as
operating lesses or hnance leases depending on whether substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to ownesship of the Land
are transferred to the Group (see 2.19), These leases are recorded at original cost and amartised over the term of the leass. Buildings
that are held as investment properties are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lrves of 20 to 40 years.

It an ivestment property bec omes held for own use, @ (s reclassiied as property, plant and equipment. Where a property is partly used
asan investment property and partly for the use of the Group, these elements are recorded se parately within inve stment property and
praperty, plant and equipment respectively, where the component wsed as investrment property would be capable of separate sale or
finance lease,

The fair value af imvestrment property and property held for own use s disclosed under nate 17, It is the Group's policy to obtain
external property valuations annually except in the case of 3 discrete event occurring in the interim that has a significant impact on
the Fair valus of the properties
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2.10 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Boodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition ever the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary, associate or joint venture at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions prior to | December 2005 (the date of
transition te IFRSI is carried at book value {eriginal cost less cumulative amortisation) on that date. less any impairment subsequently
Incurred. Goodwill arising on the Group's imvestrment in subsidiaries since that date is shown 35 & separate asset and is carried atcost
less any acoumulated impairment losses. whilst that on associates and joint venteres is included within the carrying value of those
investrents. All acquistion-related costs are expensed as incurred

Other intangible assets

Other intamgible assets conskst primanty of acquired computer safpwvare and contractual relationships, sueh as sccess ta distribution
networks, and are amortised over their estimated useful lives. The amertisation charge for nghts to acce 55 distribution networks is
included im the consolidated income statement under "Commission and other scquisition expenses”

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

Acquired computer saftware Ucences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring touse the specific sofoware

Costs dimectly asscciated with the internal preduction of identifiable and unique software by the Group that will generate economic
benefits exceeding those costs over a period greater than a year, are recognised as intangible assets. All other costs associated with
developing or maintaining com puter saftware programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs of acquiring computer
saftware licences and incurred in the internal production of computer software are amortised using the straight-tine methad over the
estimated useful life of the software, which does not generally exceed a period of 3 to 15 years, The amortisation charge for the year
1% included in the consolidated iheome statement uhder " Operatifg & penses

2. 11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property. plant and equipment, goadwill and other non-financial assets are revsewed for impairment whenever events or changes
i circemstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset excerds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair valee of the asset less cost to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped into cash-generating units at the level of the Group’s
operating segments, the lowest level for which separately identiRable cash Rows are reported. The carrying values of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed at least annually or when cercumstance s or events indscate that there may
be uncertainty over this value,
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any ohjective evidence that @is investments in associates
and joint ventures are impaired. Such obgctive evidence includes whether there has been any significant adverse changes in the
technological, market. economac or legal environment in which the associates and joint ventures operate or whether there has been
a significant ar prolonged decline in value below their cost. If there (s an indication that an sterest in an associate o a foint venture is
impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire carrying amaount of the investment Encluding goodwalll is recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss for the amount By which the carrying amount is lower than the higher of the investment’s fair valus
less costs bo sell or value in use. Any reversal of such impairment loss in subsequent pericds is reversed through profit or loss

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

In the staternent of hnancial positen of the Company, impairment testing of the imwestrments in subsidares, assockates and point
ventures is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dridend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiaries, associates o point venlure s in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the retevant investment in
the Company’s statement of financial position exceeds its carrying ameunt in the consalidated financial statements of the investess’
net assets including goodwall.
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2.12 Securities lending including repurchase agreements

The Group has been a party te various securibes lending agreements under which securities are loaned to third parties on a short-
term basis. The loaned securities are not derecognised and so they continue to be recognised within the appropriate investrent
classification.

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

Assets sald under repurchase agreements continue te be recognised and a liabdity is e stablished for the consideration received. The
Group may be mequired to provide additional coliateral based on the fair value of the underlying assets. and such collateral assets
remain on the consolidated staterment of financial pesition

Assebs purchased under agreamants to resell (reverse repos)

The Group enters into purchases of assets under agreements ko resell (reverse reposl. Reverse repos are nitially recorded at the cost
of the loan or collateral advanced within the caption "Leans and depesits” in the consolidated statement of financial position, |n the
event of failure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group has the right to the underlying assets.

2,13 Collateral

The Group receives and pledges collateral in the form of cash or non-cash assets in respect of derivative transactions, securities
lending transactions. and repe and reverse repe transactions. in order to reduce the credit risk of these transactions. The amount and
type of coblateral depends eh an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Collateral received in the lorm ol cash, which is ot
legally segregated from the Group, is recognised as an asset in the consolidated statement of financial position with a corresponding
Liabitity Tor the repayment. Mon-cash collateral received is nat recogrised on the consolidated statement of financial postion unless
the Group ekher sells or repledges these assets in the absence of default, at which poent the obligation to return this collateral is
recognised as a liabalsty, To further minkmise credit risk, the knancial cendition of counterpartees is monitored on a regular basis,

Callateral pledged in the farm of eash which is legally segreqated from the Group is derecognisad from the consolidated statement of
financial position and a corresponding receivable established for its return, Non-cash collateral pledged is not derecognised (except in
the svent of delaultl and therelfore continwes to be recognised in the consolidate d staterment of financial position within the appropriste
financial instrument classification.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mitially at their issue proceeds less transaction costs incurred, Subseguently, borrowings are stated at
amortised ¢ ost, and any diffsrence betweden not proceeds and redemption valus is recognised in the congolidated income statemant
ower the period of the borrewings using the efective interest method. All borrewing costs are expensed as they are incurred, except
For borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the development of inve stment properties and other qualdying assets, which are capitalised
a5 part of the cast of the asset.

164 | 1A BROUP LIMITED

289/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

OVERVIEW

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES fotiruma

2.15 Income taxes

The current tax expense s based on the taxable profits for the year, including any adpstments in respect of prior years. Tax is
allocated to profit or loss before taxation and amounts charged or credifed Lo equity as appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognebed in respect of tomporary differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated hnancial statements, except as described below

The principal temporary differences arise from the basis of recognition of insurance and investment contract liabilites, revaluation
of cereasn Hnancial assets and Labdities including derivative contraces, deferred acquisition costs and the future taxes arising on the
surplus in life funds where the relevant local tax regime is distributions-based. The rates enacted or substantively enacted at the date
of the consalidated staternent of financial position are used to determing deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary diferénces can be utilised. In countries where there is 3 histary of tax losses, deferred tax assets are only récagnised in
excess of deferred rax Liabilities if there is evidence that future profits will be available.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

Deferred taxes are not proaded in respect of temp orary differences arising from the inital recognition of goodwill or from goodeall for
which amartisation is not deductibile for tax purposes, or from the initial rec ognition of an asset or Lability in a transaction which is not
2 busine ss combination and whach affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax related to Fair value remeasurement of available for sale investments and other amounts taken derectly to equity, is
recognised initially within the applicable compenent of equity. It is subsequently recognised in the consolidated income statement,
together with the gain or loss arising on the underlying item.

In addition ta paying tax on shareholders profits, certain of the Group's life insurance busings5es pay tax on polcyholders investment
returns ipalicyholder taxh at policyholder tax rates. Policyholder tax i accounted for as an income tax and is included in the total tax
expense and disclosed separately.

i
g
g

2.6 Revenue

Invastmant raturn

Irve stenent income consésts of dividends, interest and rents receteable for the reporting period. Investreent experience Comprises
realised gains and losses, impairments and unrealised gains and losses on investments held at fair value through prefit or loss,
Interest incame s recognised as it acerues, takmg ints account the effective yield on the investment Rental incame on investrment
praperty s recognised on an accrual basis, Investment réturn consists of investment income and invesiment & iperience

The realised gain or loss on disposal of an inve stment is the difference between the procee ds received, net of ransaction costs, and its
ariginal east or amaortised cost as appropriate. Unrealised gains and lasses represent the ditference between the carrying value at the
year end and the carrying value at the previous year end or purchase price if purchased during the year. less the reversal of presiously
recagnised unrealised gains and losses in respect of disposals made during the year

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Other fee and commission income
Other fee and commission mcodme consists prumardy of fund management fees, income from any incidental non-msurance activities,
distribution fees from mutval funds, commissions cn reinsurance ceded and commission revenee from the sale of mutual fund

shares. Reir ¢ commissions receivable are deferred inthe same way as acquisition costs, All ather fee and commission income
is recognised as the serdces are pravided.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |cortirad)

2.17 Employee benefits

Annual leave and long service laave

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estemated liability For annual leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date

Post-retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a number of funded and unfunded post-retirement employee benefit scheme s, whose members recere benefits
on gither a defined benefit basis (generally related to salary and length of serace] or a defined contribution basis (generally related to
the armount invested, investment reburn and annuity rates), the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-adminkstered
funds. The defined benefit plans provide Life and medical benefits for employees after retirernent and a lump sum benefit on cessation
of empleyment, and the delined cantribution plans previde post-retirement penshan benefits.

For defined benefit plans, the costs are assessed vsing the propcied unit credit method, Under this methed, the cost of providing
benefits is charged to the consolidated income statement so as bo spread the regular cost aver the service lives of employees, In
accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries. The obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows, using a discount rate based on market yields for high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency inwhich
the benefits will be pakd and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related Labilitg. The resulting scheme
surplus or deficit appears as an asset or Lability in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actiearial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding intene st
and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest, The Group recognises them mmmediately in other comprehensive income
and all other expenses related to defined benelit plams in staff costs in the consolidated income statement

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or whan a plan is curtailed, the pertion of the changed benefit related to past serace by
emplayess, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immedately in consolidated incame statement when the plan amendment
or curtailment pcours.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pensicn plans. Once the contributions
have been paid, the Group, as employer. does not have any further payment obligations. The Group's coniributions are charged to the
consolidated mcome statement in the reperting pariod towhich they relate and are included in staff costs,

Share-based compensation and cash incentive plans

The Group launched a number of share-based compensation plans, undér which the Group receves seraced from the emplopees,
directors, officers and agents as consideration for the shares and/or share options of the Company. These share-based compensation
plans comprise the Share Option Scheme (50 Schemel, the Restricted Share Unit Scheme (R3U Scheme), the Employee Share
Purchase Plan (ESPP] and the Agency Share Purchase Plan (ASPP),

The Group's share- based compensation plans are predominantly equity -settled plans. Under equity - settled share -based compensation
plan, the fair valué of the employes Serveces recened in éxchanges for the sward of shares and/or share oplions s recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting pericd with a corresponding amount recorded in equity.

The total armount to be expensed ower the vesting period |5 determaned by relerence to the fair value of the share and/or share opthons
awarded Hon-market vesting cenditions are included in assumptions about the number of shares andfor share options that are
expected to be vested Al each period end, the Group révises ms estmates of the number of shares and/or share options that &re
expected to be vested, Any impact of the revisaon o original estimates is recognised in prafit or oss with a correspondang adjustment
to equity. Where awards of shate-based payment arrangements have graded vesting terms, each tranche is recognised as 3 separate
wward, and therefore the fair value of each tranche 18 recognised ever the applicable vesting period

The Group estimate s the fair value of share options using a bingmial lattice medel This medel requires inputs such as share price,
Implied valatility, risk-free intere st rate, expected dnsdend rate and the expected lite of the share opthon,

Whare modification or cancellation of an equity-settled share-based compensation plan occurs, the grant date Fair value conbinues to
be recognised, together with any incremental value arising on the date of modificabion if non-market conditions are met

For cash-settled share - based compensation plans, the fair value of the emplopee serices in exchange for the award of cash-settled
award s recognised 2% an oxpanss in profit o Loss, with a corresponding amount recagnised in liakility, At the end of sach reportng
period, any unsetiled award is remeasured based on the change in fair value of the underlying asset and the Lability and expense are
adpsted accordingly.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING FOLICIES jortimuma

2.18 Provisions and contingencies

Prowisions are racognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an autflew of econamic resaurces will be required to settle the abligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract held, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset only when the reimbersemaent is virtually certain

The Group recognises a provision for enerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a confract are less than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract

Contingencies are disclosed if material and if there is a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present
shligation a5 3 resull of & past event, but ézher & payment is not probable of the amount cannot be relisbly édtimated.

2.19 Leases

Leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of cwnershipis retained by the Group as a lessor, are classified as operating
leases. Assets subpct to such leases are included im property, plant and equipment or investment property. and are depreciated to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Rentals from such leases are credited 1o the consolidated income statement
on & straight-lne basis ever the period of the relevant lease. Payments made by the Group as [essee under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessort are changed to the consalidated income staterment on a straight-line basis over the penod
of the relevant lease, The Group classilies amounts paid to sequire leasehold Land either a5 an operating lease prépayment or 45 a
companent of property, plant and equipment or investment property depending on whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incodéntal ta the swnership of the land are transherred to the Group

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

There are not any freehold land interests in Heng Kong. The Group classifies the amounts paid to acquire leasehold land under
operating leases and finance leases as operating lease prepayments and property, plant and equipment or investment property
respectively. Oparating lease prepayments are included within “Other assets” Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cast of the
land on a straight-line basis over the terms of the lease

i
g
g

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classifed in equity wihen there is not any abligation o transher cash or other assets to the holders

Share issue costs
Incremental external costs derectly attributable to the issue of néw shares are shown in equity a3 a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds of the 1ssue,

Dividends
Interim dividends an ardenary shares are recognised when they have been paid. Final dividends on ordinary shares are reécognised
when they have been approved by shareholders

2.21 Presentation of the conselidated statement of financial position

The Group's insurance and investment contract liabilites and related a550ts are realsed and settled over peériods of several years,
reflecting the long-term natwre of the Group's products, Accordingly, the Group presents the assets and Liabilities in its consolidated
staterment of financial pesition in approximate order of lguidity, rather than distinguishing current and non-current assets and
leabilities. The Group regards its intangible assets, mvestments in associates and joint wentures, property, plant and equipment,
Imvestment property and deferred acquisition and origination costs &5 non-current assets as these are held for the Llonger-term use
of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES |cortirad)

2.22 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit available to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in isswe during the year.

Earnmngs per share has also been calculated on the operating profit befare adpusting items, attributable to ordinary shareholdars, as
the Directors bebove this figure provides a better indication of operating performance.

Fer dituted sarnings per share, the weighted average number of ardinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as share optrons swarded 1o employees:

Patential or contingent share issuances are treated as dilutive when their conversion to shares would decrease net earnings per
share,

2.23 Flduciary activities

Assets and Income arising from fduciary actrities, tagether with related undertakings te return such 4ssefs to cuslofmers, aré
excluded from these consolidated financial statements where the Group does not have contractual nghts to the assets and acts ina
Hduciary capacity such as namines, trustes or agent.

2.24 Consolidated statermnent of cash flow
The consolidated statement of cash flow presents movements in cash and cash equivalents and bank overdralts as shovwn in the
consolidated statement of fimancial pesiticn,

Purchases and sales of financial investments are included in operating cash flows as the purchases are funded from cash fiows
a550¢ lated with the crigination of insurance and investment contracts, net of payments of related benefits and claims. Purchases and
sales of investment property are included within cash flows from mvesting activities.

2.25 Related party transactions
Transactions with related parties are recorded af amounts mutually agreed and transacted between the parties to the arrange ment

3, CRITICAL ACCOQUMNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, Liabilities, and révenue and expenses. All
estimates are based on managemant's knowledge of current facts and circumstances, assumptions based on that knowledge and
predictions of future events and actions. Actual results can always differ from those estimates, possibly significantly.

Items that are considered particularly sengitive to changes in estimates and assumptions, and the relevant accounting policks are
those which relate to product classification, insurance contract liabilities {including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with
DPF]. deferred acquisition and origination costs, liabulity adequacy testing, Fair value of financial assets, imparment of financial assets
and impairment of goodwill and ether intangible assets.

3.1 Product classification

The Group issue s cantracts that transler insurance risk or inancial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those contracts that transher
significant insurance rigk, while investment contracts are these contracts without significant insurance risk, The Group éxercises
significant judgement to determine whether there s & scenarip (other than those lacking commercial substance] in which aninsured
gvent would require the Group to pay significant additional benefits to its custemers. In the event the Group has te pay significant
additianal benefits to its customers, the contract (4 accounted for 3% an insurance contract The judgements exercised in determining
the levelofinsurance risk in product classification affect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements asinsurance
and investment contract liabilities and deferred acquisition and origination costs, The accounting pobicy on product classification i1s
described innote 2.4,

168 | AI& BROUP LIMITED

293/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

OVERVIEW

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDBEMENTS woniread

3.2 Insurance contract Liabilities {including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF)

The Group caltulates the insurance contract labilsies For traditional [#e insurance using a net level premium valuation method,
whereby the Lability re presents the present value of estimated future policy benelits to be paid, bess the present value of estimated
future nel premiums o be collected from policyholders. This method uses best estimate assumphions at inception adjusted for
a provision For the risk of adverse deviation for mortality, merbidity, expected nvestment yields. policyhelder dividends ifor other
participating business), surrenders and expenses set af the policy inception date. These assumptions remain locked i therealter,
unless a deficency arises on liability adequacy testing. Interest rate assumptions can vary by geographical market, year of issuance
and product. Martality, surrender and expense assumptions are based on actual experience by each geographical market, modified to
allow for variations in pelicy form. The Group exercises significant judgement in making appropriate assumptions,

For cantractswith an explicit account balance, sueh as uniersal life and unit-linked contracts, insurance contract Liabillites represent
the accumulation value, which represents premiums recerved and investment returns credited to the policy less deductions for
mortality and morbidity costs and expense charges Shgnificant judgement IS exercised in making appropriate estimates of gross
profits which are based on historical and anticipated future expenences. these estimates are regularly reviewsd by the Group.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

The Growp accounts For insurance contract Liabiites for participating business written in partcipating funds by establishing a Liabdity
for the present value of guaranteed benefis less estimated future met premiums to be collected from palicyholders. In addition, an
insurance liability is recorded for the propartion of the net assets of the participating funds that would be allocated to pelicyholders
assurming all relevant surplus at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position were to be declared as a palicyhalder
dividend based upon applicable regulations. Establishing these liabilities require s the exercise of significant judgement. In addition,
the assumption that all relevant perfarmance is declared as a policyhelder dividend may not be borne out sh practice. The Group
accounts for other participating business by establishing & Gability for the present value of guaranteed benefits and non-guaranteed
participation, loss estimated future net premiums to be collected From policyhelders

The judgernents exercised in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities (ineluding imvestment contracts with OPF) aMect the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial state ments as insurance contract benefits and insurance contract liabilkties. Further
details of the related accounting pelicy, key risk and variabiles, and the sensitivities of assumptions to the key variables in respect of
insurance contract liabilities are provided in notes 2.4, 26 and 28

i
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3.3 Deferred acquisition and crigination costs
The judgements exercised in the defarral and amartisation of acquisition and arigination costs affact amounts recognised in the
cansalidated financial staterments as deferred acquisition and erigination costs and insurance and investmaent co ntract benefits.

As noted in note 2.4.1, deferred acquisition costs for traditional life insurance and annuity policies are amortised over the expected
life of the contracts as & constant percentage of expected premiums Expected premiums are estimated at the date of policy issue
and are applied consistently throughout the life of the contract untess a deficiency occurs when performing liability adequacy testing

As noted in note 2,.4.1, deferred acquisition costs for universal lihe and unit-linked contracts are amortesed over the expected Life of
the contracts based on a constant percentage of the present value of estimated gross profits expected to be realised over the life of
the cantract or on & strasght-line basis. A% noted in note 3.2, significant judgement 4 exercised m making appeopfiate estimates of
gross profits. The expensing of acguisition costs Is accelerated fallowing adverse investment performance. Likewise, in periods of
favourable investment performance, previously expensed acquisition costs are reversed, not exceeding the amount initially deferred

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Additienal details of deferred acquisition and oreginstion costs aré pravided in notes 2.4 and 19,

3.4 Liability adequacy testing

The Group evaluates the adequacy of its insurance and investment contract liabilitees with DPF at least annually. Significant judgement
is exercised in debermming the level of aggregation at which Lability adequacy testing is perfermed and in selecting best estimate
assumplions. Liability adequacy is assessed by portfolio of contracts in accordance with the Group®s manner of acquiring. servicing and
measiring the profitability of its insurance contracts. The Group perform s labilfty adequacy testing separately for each geographical
market in which it operates.

The mudgements exercised in liability adequacy testing affect amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements as
commission and other acquisition expenses, deferred acquisition costs, insurance cantract benefits and insurance and imwestment
cantract liabilities
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEMNTS (ontisumd

3.5 Fair values of financial assets

The Group determines the fair values of financial assets traded in actne markets using quoted bid prices as of each reporting date
The fair values of financial assets that are not traded in active markets are typscally determined using a variety of other valuation
technigues, such as prices obsenved in recent transactions and values obtained from current bid prices of comparable investments.
More judgement is used in measuring the far value of fnancial assets for which market obserable prices are not svadable or are
availabbe anly infreguently

The degree of judgement used in measuring the fair value of inancial instruments generally correlates with the Level of pricing
chservability. Pricing observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrument, whether the financial
Instrument is niw to the market and nat yet established, the charactenistics specific to the transaction and general market conditions,

Changes in the fair value of financial assets held by the Group’'s participating funds affect not only the value of financial assets, but are
also reflected in corresponding movements in insurance and investment contract labilities, This is due to an insurance Liability being
recorded for the proportion of the met assets of the participating funds that weuld be allocated to palicyholders if all relevant surplus
at the date of the consolidated staterment of financial position were to be declared as a policyholder dividend based on current local
regulations. Both of the foregoing changes are reflected in the consclidated income statement,

Changes in the fair valse of financial assets held to back the Group's wnit-linked contracts result in 3 correspending change in
insurance and investment contract liabilities, Both of the foregeing changes are also rellected in the consolidated income statement.

Further details of the fair value of financial assets and the sensitivity analysis to interest rates and equity prices are provided in notes

22 and 37

3.6 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, cther than these at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed forimpairment regularly. This requires the exercise
of significant judgement. The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a fmancial asset or a
group of hinancial assets 15 impaired, Objective evidence that a financial asset. or group of assets, isimpaired includes chservabile data
that comes to the anention of the Group about the following events:

* significant fnancial difficully of the ssuer or debtor:

*  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;

* it becormes probable that the issuer or debtor will énter bankruptcy or other hinancial reofganisation:

*  the disappearance of an sctive market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

« phservable data, including market prices, indicating that there £ a patential decrease in the estimated futre cash flows since the
initial recognition of those assets, including:
- adverse changes in the payment status of issuers; or
= natighal or local economic conditions that corretate with increased delfault risk

For leans and recenables, impairment [oss is determined using an analybcal method based on knowledge of each loan group or
receivable. The methed is uswally based on histonical statistics, adjusted For trends in the group of financial assets or individual
ACCALENLS

Further details of the im pairment of inancial assets during the year are provided in note 24,

3.7 Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

For the purposes of impairment besting, goodwill and other intangible assets are grouped into cash-generating units. Thes: assets are
tesbed for impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generateng unit, including goodwill, to the recoverable amount
of that cash-generating unit. The determination of the recoverable amount requires significant pdgement regarding the selection of
approgriate valuation techniques and assumplions Further detads of the impairment of goodwill during the year are provided in note
13.
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The Group's principal overseas operations during the reporting perod were located within the Asia-Pacific region. The resalts and

cash Aows of these operations have been translated into US dollars at the Fellowing average rates;

LS dalbar ot hassd mias

Hem 9 i ong
Thasland
Singapore
Malaysia
China
Korea

Assats and Liabidities have been translated at the following year-end rates:
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Exchange rates are expressed in units of local currency per USE1
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5. OPERATING PROFIT AFTER TAX
Operating profit after tax may be reconciled to net profit as follows:

¥ ear swded ‘faar sndad

A Hoverslier 0 MBS

LS [ 015 2L
Operating profit after tax ¥ 3229 2525

Nan-operating items, net of related changes in
insurance and investment contract Liabilities:

Het (Lossesh/gains from equity securities (net of
tax of 2005 WSS Tm; 2004: USH111im) AT 508

Other non-operating investment experience and
other items inet of tax of 2015 US%41m;

2014 USHEZIm} {145} 5
Mok profit 2,714 3486
Oyperating profit after tax wtrbutabie fo:

Shareheldars of Al Group Limited 3,20% 270
Hen-cantrolling interests 20 15

Nt profit st riteitabie fo:
Sharehelders of AlA Group Limited 24691 3,450
Hon-controtling interests 3 ig

&, TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS

Fer management decision-making and internal performance management purposes, the Group measures business volumes during
the year using a performance measure referred to as total weighted premium income WP, while the Group measures new business
activity using a perlarmance messure referred to as annualised new prem lums (AMEL

TWPI consists of 100 per cent of renewal premiums, 100 per cent of first year premiums and 10 per cent of single premiums, before
reinsurance ceded, and includes deposits and contributions for contracts that are accounted for as deposits in accordance with the
Graup's accounting palicies.

Management censiders that TWP| provides an ndicative volieme measure of transactions undertaken in the reporting period that have
the potential to generate profits for shareholders. The amounts shown are not intended to be indicative of premiums and fee income
recorded in the conselidated income statement.

AMP is a key internal measure of new business activities, which consists of 100 per cent of annualised first year premiums and 10
per cent of single premiums, before reinsurance ceded ANP excludes new business of pension business, personal lines and motor
Insurance

Vear eaded Honr enced
TP B Hoversder 50 Mirvamiar
LS ?‘I_IE_ ] }'_.IIA’.
TWPI by geography
Hung I{uﬂg 5118 %323
Thailand 3,324 o fie 4
Singapore 2283 233
Malaysia 1,825 2,064
China 2,028 1,784
Karea 2,031 22059
Other Markets 3,270 3133
Total 19,876 %21
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& TOTAL WEIGHTED FREMIUM INCOME AMD ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS \-orbruadi
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First year premiums by geography E
Heng Kong 1,070 T2 =
Thatland L6 498 E
Singapose 281 300 E
Malaysia 260 259 s
China 410 97 I
Faorea 230 B4 E
Other Markets 486 475 E
Total 3,393 3,087 E
Single premiums by geography
Heng Kang 1,480 1,585
Thakland 194 209
Singapore 1,95 1,664 E
Malaysia 152 02 E
Chima a7 21 g
Korea 17 305 o
Other Markets 703 4E1 E
Total L, 785 4,497 %
Renawal premiums by geography i
Heng Hang 3,897 3,400
Thailand 828 2814
Singapore 1,824 1,670
Halaﬁl:{i: 1,550 1,604
China 1,407 1,484
Korea 1,784 1,568 -
Other Markats 2514 2410 S
Total 16,006 15674 =
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AMP by geography
Hang Kong 1,263 52
Thailand 520 572
Singapore &M 4E9
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATIOMN

The Group's operating segments, based on the reports received by the ExCo, are each of the geographical markets in which the
Group operates, Each of the reportable segments, other than the "Group Corporate Centre” segment, writes [fe insurance business,
providing life insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans to custemers in its local market, and distributes relabed
imvestment and other financial senices products. The reportable segments are Hong Keng (including Macaul, Thailand, Singapore
lincluding Brupeil, Malaysia, China, Korea, Other Markets and Growp Corporate Centre. Other Markets includes the Growp’s operations
In Australia, Indonesia, Hew Zealand, the Philippines, Sr Lanka, Tabwan, Vietnam and India. The activities of the Group Corporate
Centre segment consist of the Group's corporate functions, shared services and eliminations of intragroup transactions.

Because each reportable segment other than the Growp Corporate Centre segment focuses on serving the life insurance needs of
its fecal market, there are limited tra nsactions between reportable segments. The key performance indicators reported in respect of
each segment are:

= ANP;

= TWPI;

= imvestment income fexcluding investment income in respect of unit-linked contractsh

= gperating expenses;

* gperating prof after tax atiributable to shareholders of A& Group Limited:

*  gapense ratio, measured as operating expenses divided by TWPI;

= pperating margin, measured as operating profit before tax expressed as a percentage of TWPEL and

= gperating return on shareholders allocated equity, measured as operating profit after tax atinbutable to shareholders of AlA
Group Limited expressed as & percentage of the simple average of apening and clasing sharehalders’ allocated segment equity
{being the segment assets less segment Liabilities in respect of each reportable segment less non-controlling interests, fair valus
reserve and fareign currency translation reserve and oihersl,

In presenting net capital mf{out) flows to reporta ble segments, capitsl cutflows consist of dividends and profit distributions to the Group
Corparate Centre segment and capital inflows consist of capital injections mio reportable segrments by the Group Corporate Centre
segment. For the Growp, net capital inflout) flows reflect the net amount received from shareholders by way of capital contributions
less amouwnts distributed by way of dividends.

Business volumes in respect of the Group’s five largest custorners are less than 30 per cent of premiums and fee income.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATIOM [oontirwad) E
Greap
Hoag Ofer Corporale
LIS Kesg Thailand Singapore Malaysia China Korea  Markels  Coalre Tollal
Year ended 30 November 2005 ;‘
ANP 1,262 520 4T 92 438 248 =y - 3mM =
TWPRI 5,115 3324 2,282 1,825 2028 2,031 3270 - 19,874 E
Net premivms, fee income and E
pther operating révenud %
{net of remsurance ceded) 5,040 3320 3,355 1,679 1910 1,503 2,004 1 18,812 -]
Investment income’" __If'l'-& i'_'l! S?i iﬂi i_'l_!l___fl'!' 533 284 5.5_&_;_ ;
Total revenus 4516 4235 423 2186 2SR 183 2537 28T 24457 E
=L
Het msurance and myestment f
cantract benefits™ L4871 2484 J08B 1503 184 1,012 1263 (21 18,054
Commission and other acquisition
N[N SES EE8 594 | 183 145 i aTe = LA4EB
Dperating expenses 83 178 158 162 224 16 47 172 1,458
Finance costs and other expenses™ 108 b 3 21 56 13 3 85 m -
Total expenses 5,380 3504 3,730 1.BAY 2070 1,700 2045 266 20,5731 -E
£E
Share of profit from associates g
and josnt veniure - - - - - - - - - E
Operating profit before bax 1,134 ™ 505 7 438 2 492 3 3884 =
Tax on aperating profit before tax _ie& 180y (Tét (583 {82 (531 (1@ (6} (455 E
Dperating profit after tax 1,062 551 L30 251 358 179 ATE 26 3,22% b
ihpevating prodit alter tax attrdwtabio fo
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 1,069 551 L30 59 356 179 59 26 3,20%
Wen-controlling interests 3 = - 2 - = 18 - 20
Koy operating ratios:
Expense ratio £.9% 5.4% 5.7% B.9% 11.0% 7.1% 112% - B.2% an
Operating margin 2L2%  I20%  222%  1TA% I14%  11.4% 150% = 1r5% é
Dperating return on shareholders’ =
allocated equity 132% 13.7% 10.3% F.4%  15.6% 7.2% 12.0% - 12.4% E
I
Dperating prafit before tax includes: E
Finance costs 2d [ 3 7 Lb = z &3 182 E
a
Depreciation and amartization 17 12 15 20 1" 11 27 17 130
Notes
{11 Encucdas MWessmaod (nonms relntad 5 umi-linked contracis
21 Excludas conmespors firgy cha A irsirancd ahd imestmant conract lobbibes from |reestmant expe mancs ior umt- | nked coftracts ard parbicipating

furids ard investrient income and irvesbmant managemant aeperses releted o unil-linksd contracis. 1 ele exchudes policytoldens shame of to relating

to tha-changs in i neuran o i ravestrent contract liatali Hes

1w it drE 8 B Mg el Ghed 5 ural-Lireidd Sonbias i
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

7. SEGMENT INFORMATIOM [contirean

Gren
Heag Oher l'.‘#w#l'r

1= Keag Thailand Singapers Malaysia China Kerea Markels  Cealre Teilal
M Howember 2005
Assets before investments in

associates and joint venture 439256 246834 29971 13351 17,090 14,117 15994 8,300 147485
Investments in associates and

|@int venbure - - 1 & - - 130 - 137
Tatal assets 43925 24434 29972 11357 17090 14217 16,126 8,300 147422
Tetal liabilities DT 20,087 ITSEI 11297 14032 11.4Te  13a%: 2908 1ad04:
Tetal squity 5818  A547 2389 2040  305% 2541 37AL 532 29540
Shargholders’ allocated aquity & B 50 ] 2126 27N 2E%2 2,008 3112 5ALTE 28,280
Het capital {outhfin flews (B&0) [708) (329) (188) [R1] (31 88 1.3M 1B24)

Segment information may be reconciled to the consolidated income staterent as shawn below:

Imvesimml rebern avd relsled

changes in inserance and
imvesimeat conbract lisbililies and
wapenses related o
Usit-tinked
coniracts
anid
lidated  Policybotd Coaaslicaied
Segmeni invesimeal and Difr o Incomae
LIS informafion lunds  shareholders operatisg lems atalemeni
Year ended 3 Hovember 2015
Net premiums, Met premiums,
fee income and few income and
other operating other aperating
revenue 18,812 - - - 18,812 revenue
Investment return 5445 1512} [671) - 4,662 | Investment return
Tetal ravenus 24,457 512 [671) - 23,274 Tota revenus
Met insurance and Hetinsurance and
investment investment
contract benelits 16,068 {4321 (237 5 18,192 cantract banefits
Other expemses 4,517 120 - %5 4,732 | Other expenses
Total expenses 20,671 (512} (237 100 19,924 Total expenses
Share of profit fram Share of profit fram
associates and associales and
jeint venture - - - - - jeint venture
Operating profit before bax 3884 - [£34) {100} 3,350 Profit before tax
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATIOM [contiread) 'E
e
Hesrg Ditar Corpidute
LiSm Horg  Trmland  Sreapore Malmysae Chira Horea  Markais Canira Tioetni
£
Year ended 30 Hovenler 2004 E
ANP 952 572 4BT 3x m 350 &78 - 3T =
TWPI 43 33% 219 2086 1786 2205 311 S LAY z
Het premiums, fee income and E
pther operating révenud -
{net of remsurance ceded) 4138 3,30 2485 1,668 1,848 1,402 1,555 A s e
Investment income’" 1260 #33 fixl] 552 536 424 555 232 5,352 ;
Total revenus S48 4324 3523 2440 2,204 203 2410 234 2258 E
=L
Het msurance and mvestment f
contract benefits™ 3435 2817 TETY 1,764 1488 1403 1.2%8 (2 14980
Commission and other acquisition
XN SES LT3 575 265 141 &4 240 2 - 21
Dperating expenses 223 174 158 180 o 155 am 183 1,535
Finance costs and othar expenses™ il i 20 e 27 13 n T4 3% %
Total expenses 4430 3410 302 2007 1847 1811 2,009 235 1901 3
£E
Share of profitfiloss) from associates £
and josnt veniure - - - 1 - - LK) [£4] 14 :
Operating profit/[loss) bafors tax SER d 501 334 k) 217 418 5 3504 =
Tax on aperating profitfiloss) before tax 7T {170} {721 (53 154F {52) 194} 1] (579} E
Operating profit/loss) after tax 909 G4 429 181 283 185 il ) 2935 b
iperating profitoess) after fax
attribiztaide fo:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 205 544 429 280 283 185 34 {10} 2910
Hon-contralling intere s 3 - - i = = 10 - 15
Kay eperating ratios: "
Expense ratio 52% 52% 48% B&% 118% 0% 119% - B5% E
Operating margin 228%  214%  214% 40% 159% ?.6% 133% 18.2% 'wf
Operating return on shareholders -;
allocated equity 216%  131%  219%  10E%  1TI% e 12.1% - 12.4% 3
Ll
Dperating profit befare tax includes ;
Finance costs 17 7 ) 5 18 - 2 52 o3 &
Depreciation and amartisation 12 12 13 17 10 B 30 14 118

Pt

{1} Enclusdied Srwdd i incoims Folabid 80 fi -] Aied coddracts

) Enc s oo ney Chang e | T PR B FaOsI bt conaraet (o Duimen Trom | FesBnmin o i rind for unel-linkid conDne:ts and sartcpaticg
B ] | PRI I | P T ] | PR PR g rin el Bhed B unid=limiond contrachs. 11 R0s0 Ancludes policpiecaes . shane of ti nedaticn
t0 th changa i m i nsurance Grolimvestiesent controct Lishlibes

) Exciudas sryssimant munagem and o peneas ralolad ounit-knked contrec s
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

7. SEGMENT INFORMATIOM [contirean

Group
[ Qirw  Corparate
Lt Horg  Thalend Singapome  Mamma Ching Worea  Mprigpis Carire Tl
M Howember 2004
Assets before investments in associates
and joint venture 41,687 25520 30030 16440 15481 13,788 16411 6851 146,768
Investments in associates and joint
wenture - - 1 7 - - 123 - 131
Tatal assets 41,687 25520 30031 164467 15441 13788 1653 4850 168519
Tetal liabilities AATT O 20587 2731 13EM 13397 W1a42 12494 2555 13544
Tetal squity 1210 5353 20 2444 224 24M 4040 4276 30955
Shargholders’ allocated aquity 4497 4243 2010 24679 1.945 1.502 2.E51 L2256 24513
Het capital {outhfin flews 1752) {8410 [267) 112 100 (24) 122} 1.022 1658}
Segment information may be reconciled to the consolidated income staterent as shawn below:
Irwisid et raburm aned ridatod
e i Pl
imwastmont cortract lishilites ond
WPKEAS rEmhed o
Loy - b ]
tontracts
g
eardalidobed Polisyfedonry Coreati e
Sogrant [l 2 and CRhr oy PG
LIS PR ek LrareClGRre  COBPATing i AT
Year ended 30 Hovermber 2014
Net premiums, Met premiums,
Fed income and fed income and
other operating other aperating
revenue 17,220 - . - 17.22¢ revenue
Investment return 5.552 1.424 1,426 - B.204 | Investment return
Total ravenus 22561 14248 1,424 - 25431 Total revenus
MNet insurance and Hetinsurance and
investrment investment
contract benelits 14,960 129 525 ] 16,804 cantract banefits
Other expemses £1m 135 - 52 4,298 | Other expenses
Total expenses 19.0%1 1626 525 &0 21,102 Total expenses
‘Share of profit fram Share of profit fram
associates associales
and joint venture 14 - - - 1] and joint venture
Opaerating profit before tax 3504 w01 {80} 4,345  Profit before tax
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OVERVIEW

B. REVENUE
Investment return

Ywar ssdisd
0 Howember
LISk 015
=
Interest income B 102 490 g
Dividend income 432 §ad E
Rantal income 127 123 E
Investmant inceme 5,851 5570 E
&
Available for sale g
Met realised gains from debt securities prts n o
Met gains of available for sale financial assets F
reflected in the conselidated income statement &4 r z
At fair value through profit or loss
Met (lossesh/gains of financial assets designated at
fair value through prafit or loss
Net (losseshigains of debt securities {187} §53 L
Met (losseskgains of equity securities {1,124) 1,594 i
=
Met losses of financlal instrument s -
held for trading g
Met lasses of debt investments [41] o
Met fair value meovement on derivatives {433} {204} E
Met (lossesk/gains inrespect of financial =
instruments at fair value through profit or loss {1,245} 2,443 ki
Met fereign exchange gains 593 168
Other net realised losses 181} (29}
Investmant expearience {1,38%} 24634
Investmant Feturn & 462 B b

Fereign currency movements resulted in the follewing gains recognised in the consalidated inceme staterment (other than gains and

n

lossas arising on items measured at Fair value through profit or lossh E
4

Year emded Toar afdad =

30 Howember 0 Novorsbor ]

L=gm 15 B W
2

L

Fareign exchange gains 196 Té E
e

Other operating revenue
The balance of other aperating revenue largely consists of asset management fees.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

9. EXPENSES
Yoar eaded WaRpr S

3 Hoversher 0 Nervirmlta e
1= s 0id
Insurance contract benefits 7874 gm
Change ininsurance contract liabilities 6594 7.7
Investment contract benelits (334} L
Insurance and investmant contract banafits 16,134 17,528
Insurance and investment contract benefits ceded azh (1,024}
Insurance and investment contract benefits, net of reinsurance ceded 18,192 16,504
Commission and other acquisition expenses inturred 3™ AT47
Delerral and amaortisation of acquisition costs {1,523 {1,608)
Commission and other acquisition expanses 2,448 b
Employee banefit expenses 1,101 1.0E5
Depreciation 78 =
Amortisation a3 il
Operating lease rentals 17 m
Other operating expenses e 33
Operating expenses 1,458 1635
Investment management expenses and athers 1T 333
Restructuring and other non-operating coses'™ 73 55
Change in third-party interests in conselidated investment funds 17 e
Other sxpenses 454 420
Finance cosls 152 103
Total 19,924 21102
Lo

(1} Restruchsnng-oosts mpresact conte nnabed b esiruchon ng proooamimes and @ prmanty compresed of refundsncy and conlract WarmiraSon oosts
Dahar Ron-oparaling Coals primerily Contett of BegualiDon- St atad and Inagration parses

Oher operating expenses include auditers’ remuneration of US$13m (2014: USE15md, an analysis of which is set out below:

Yoar eaded Taar @ndad
Hovernger

0 Nl

LIS 015 Fairs

Audit services 1 i

Non-audit services, including audit-related serveces, tax services and others 4 L

Total 13 13
Investment management expenses and others may be analysed as:

Yoar saded MR sl

3 Hoversler 0 Wi e

1= mis Hnd

Inwestment management expenses and others 40 ng

Depreciation on investment property 24 Fil

Total dbd 333
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OVERVIEW

9. EIPEHSES ST [ v |
Finance costs may be analysed as:

Yoar eaded S e
I8 Howsmber =0 Mewaimio
1= iR i
=
Securites lending and repurchase agreements (see note 30 for details) 1] N x
Bank and ather loans B 89 2
Tatal 152 03 =
s
: : %
Employee benefit expenses consist of -]
L
fear paded Toar s o4
70 Hirpmbor 0 Mot =
LrSion 16 014 -
=
b
Wages and salaries 00 BETS
Share -based compensation kil B0
Pension costs - defined contribution plans &0 40
Pensicn costs - defined benefit plans B 14
Other employee benelit expenses 58 59 E
Total 1,101 1,088 z
£E
:
10. INCOME TAX =
b
T
Yaar eadoed iy el E
0 Hovember 0 Novembar
LISt 015 Fa
Tax charged in the conselidated income statement
Current income tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax " T3
Current incame tax - cverseas 556 211
Deferred ine ome Lax on emporary differences 1 413
Total 635 ET?

The taxbenefit or expense attributable to Singapore, Brunei, Malaysia, Indonesia, Australia, Srilanka andthe Philippineslifeinsurance
policyhalder returns is included in the tax charge of crédit and i3 analysed 46 parately in the consolidated income statément in order
to permit comparison of the underlying effective rate of tax attributable to shareholders fram year to year. The tax attributable to
policyholders’ returns included above is US$FIm (2014 US$125m)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘"J. INCOM E Tﬁ.x ok ruad )

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 165 per cent Taxation for overseas subsidiaries and branches is charged
at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant prisdictions of which the mest significant prisdictions are outlined
below.

Yoar saded Woar andad

A Novambar

mis e

Hamg Kong 16.5% 16.5%
Thailand 20% 0%
Singapore 17% 17%
Malaysia 5% 25%
China 5% 25%
Korea 24.2% 24.2%
Others 12% = 30% 12% - 30%

The table #bove reflects the principal rate of corporate income taxes, as at the end of éach year. The rate changes reflect changes to
the enacted or substantively enacted corporate tax rates throughaut the year in each jurisdiction

In fanuary 2014, the Hational Legislative Assembly of Thailand announced a change in the corperate income tax rate from 20 per
cent to 20 per cent from assessment year 2008 arward This change had bean previously approved by the cabinet of the Government
of Thailand in October 2015, Given the legislative process was not Tully completed as at 30 Movember 2015, it was not considered
“substantvely enacted” under IFRS; accordingly, the financial impact of this change in tax rate has not been reflected in the
consalidated financial statements,

For the year ended 30 November 2015, the corporate income tax rate n Thailand was 20 per cent and i$ assumed to be 30 per cent for
years of assessment after 2015, This is consistent with the treatrent in 2014

ooOooood

Year eaded Waar andad
W Hovereler A Navambar
L Mk WL
Imcerme tax reconciliation
Profit before incoma tax 3,350 & 345
Tax calculated at dofmestic tax rates applicable to profita/ilosses) in the respective jurisdictions &7 521
Reduction in tax payable from:
Exempt investment income a1y (%1
Amownt cver-provided in prior years 119 i}
Changes in tax rate and law 1] -
Provisions for uncertain tax positions {45} -
Others - (43}
179 1143
Increase in tax payable from:
Life insurames tax" & 54
Withhotding taxes 2 -
Disallowed expenses 7 »
Unrecognised deferred tax assets 17 27
Prowvisions for uncertain tax positions - ™
Oithers 55 -
138 199
Total income tax expenze 434 877

Nt
1 Lt i rmparaen tan rafans. b U parmaned delfararncds wich B g whars (e b resimo spao e b (e |10 inGuranes By noss doss nol sdopt rel incoma
% ther bams for calcul ntng tomide profit, for sxample Mong Kong, whero ife busi ress tombie profit s denvad From life promiumes
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OVERVIEW

10. INCOME TAX {pcrradi P
The movernent in net deferre d tax liabilities in the period may be analysed as set out below

Craditedichargod) o other

ecenpr shon e income
Ml delerred Credited/ Mt dalerrad z
Raw asdalf [ekarged) 1o Lax s el -
Hliability} o i Faid valug Fafemn Miakdlity) E
LPShm al | Decomber shatmmeni T sxchange Dikers al year snd =
:
H Hevenber 2005 E
Revaluation of financial g
instruments 11,5521 128 (Y] 1 - 11,429] et
=
Deferred acquisition costs (2,417} 183 - L4 ] - 12,6071 ;
Insurance and investment o
contract liabilities 1,574 33 - {1300 - 1,477 E
‘Withholding taxes (1391 () - - - (1&1] i@
Provisign for expenses 127 7 - (Rl ] 139
Losses available for olfset agasnst
Futere taxable income 18 8 = =1} - 23
Life surplus'™ (610} 1% - | - (520) L
Others (B0} 11 - & - (85] i
; .. o . =
Total (30691 {1 148) 166 5 12,945) 4
M Hovermber 214 =
Revaluation of financial =
instrurments 1583 (288) 169 1) 18 = {1,552} §
Deferred acquisition costs [2.294] {184) - X - {2417 E
Insurance and investment
contract liabilitie s 1568 a0 - (E21] 1.574
‘Withholding taxes 113%] - - - - 1137)
Provision for expenses 135 & - (3 (R 137
Lesses avarlable for offset against
Tutwre taxable income 15 3 - 18
Life surplus’ 1571 1581 5 16103 E
Others 1135 54 1 (E0) 5
Total [2.024) 1613 1691y &0 {1 {3,069) E
A
Mot S
{1} Lite sorpius rofabes 6o the Semporony Gifare ros which anses whone fha taxoble profits are basad on echeal dgbrbidions from tha lgng-foarm fund, This %
pnmanky reletes b Srgapare and Malaysia z
&

{21 O Eha fair il s fdetacyva dahi rrod tad [orod the tere of USESAM B0 1L USERE Yenphor 2015, LSELRy [A04: LS4 Whm) rel o bo fair walug gmis and | osdes
o1 avan | able for sale firancial sssess and LSRN m (0L LISEE) relates to air value goifes and iosgaes on avalable lor wila Snencal stcets traraberrad
S0 narea o ciLpoas

Deferred tax assels are recogrised to the extent that sufficient future taxable profits will be available lor realisation. The Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets on tax losses and the temporary difference eninsurance and investment contract liabilities arising
from different accounting and statutory/tax reserving methedology for certain branches and subsidiaries on the basis that they have
histories of tax losses and there is insufficient evidence that future profits will be available.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘"J. INCOM E Tk K {egerabi ruad )
Tempocary differences not recegnised in the consolidated statement of financial position are:

¥ear saded ‘Waar sndad

) Hoveeslier = NovamBar

Leshan Fi R 2L
Tax losses 52 53
Insurance and investment contract liabilities 28 n
Total il ] f:x)

The Group has not provided deferred tax Liabilities of USS5Em (20 14: US$97m} in respect of unremitted earnings of operaticns in thres
pirisdictions froem which & withhalding tax charge would be inturred upon distribution a4 the Group does nat cansider it probable that
this portion of accumulated earnings will be remitted in the foreseeable future.

The Group has unused mcome tax losses carried forward in Hong Kong, Macaw, Thailand, Malaysa, China, Horea, the Philippines,
Tarwvan, Hew Zealand and Sri Lanka. The tax losses of Hong Kong, Malaysia, Mew Zealand and Sri Lanka ean be carred forecard
indefinitely. The tax losses of remaining branches and subsidaries are due o expire within the perods ending 2098 (Macau, the
Phitippines and Chinal, 2020 (T hailand) and 2025 (Korea and Tabwan)

11. EARMNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by diiding the net profit atbributable te shareholders of ALA Group Limited by the weighted
average number of ardinary shares in issue during the year. The shares beld by employee share-based trusts are not considered to be
outstanding from the date of the purchase for purposes of computing basic and diluted eamings per share,

Year ended Wanr st

H Hove el ir I Navamntar

05 e

Net profit attributable ta shareholders of AL Group Limited (US$m] 2,491 3450
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (mitlion) 11,970 11,748
Bask sarnings per share (U5 cents per share) 12,48 2563

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share |5 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive petential erdmnary shares. As of 30 Hovember 2015 and 2014, the Group has patentially delutive instruments
which are the share options, re stricted share units, restricted stock purchase units and restricted stock subscription units awarded to
#ligible directors, officers, employees and agents under varicus share-based compensation plans as deseribed in note 39,

Year eaded Waar endad

H Howersher A Novambar

M5 AL

Met profit attributable ta sharehelders of AL4 Group Limited (US$m] 2,491 3,450

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (million) 11,970 11,248
Adjustmaent for share options. restricted share units, restricted stock purchase units and

restricted stock subscription units awarded under share-based compensation plans a7 41

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share imillion} 12,007 12,009

Diluted earnings per share (U5 cents per share] 22,41 .7

A2 30 Novernber 2015, 5,699,149 share cptions (2014: 13,414, 2400 were excluded from the diluted weighted average number of ordinary
shares calculation as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (comirund)
QOperating profit after tax per share
Operating profit after tax (see note 5 per share is calculated by dividing the operating proht after tax attributable to shareholders of
AL& Group Limited by the weighted average number of ardinary shares in issue during the year. As of 30 November 2015 and 2014,
the Group has potentially dlutive instruments which are the share options. restricted share units. restricted stock purcthase enits

=
and restricted stock subscrption units awarded to eligible drectors, officers. employees and agents under varigus share-based =
com pensation plans as described im note 39, §
Yoar eadied Wi g =
) Hovember ) Mo o«
s s &
=" %
=
Basic (UScents per share) 26,81 243 -
Diluted {(US cents per share) 26,73 2423 E
-]
i
12. DIVIDENDS
Dividénds to shareholders of the Company attributable 1o the year
Year saded T dnruo
) Hoeember 0 Nersamar
LS s Fad e -
H
Interim dividend declared and paid of 18.72 Hong Keng cents per share ]
{2014; 1600 Hong Kong cents per share) 8% 247 z
Final dividend proposed after the reporting date of 51.00 Hang Kang cents per share ;
{20%4: 34.00 Hong Kong cents per sharel™ 788 525 E
1,077 772 =
]
Kb

11} - Basad wpon shares culsnnding Bl 30 NovamEer 2015 ard 2014 than are oo i grndand, char than thoses hel d Ty @ msicysd share-Dassd Iniss

The abewe final devidend wa s proposed by the Board on 25 Februany 2016 subect to shareholders’ approval at the AGM to be held on &
May 2016. The proposed final dividend has not been recognised a5 a Liabdity at the reporting date.

Dividends to shareholders of the Company attributable to the previous Fnancial year, approved and paid during the year;

=

Yoar ended Toar grdid ]

0 Hiwember ) Nowamzar i

LSEm 2015 2L =
i

A

Final dividend in respict of the previous financial year, approved and paid during z
the year of 34 00 Hong Kong cents per share (2014: 25 .62 Hong Kong cents per sharel 525 442 %

F3
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Distribution
Computer and ofeer

1= Gestatvill seltware rights Telal

Cast

A% 1 December 2013 1,135 289 104 1526
Additians 4B BN am
Dispasals - {1} - (1
Foreign exchange movements - AR (Fi] 03

A% 30 November 2074 1,135 325 3 2,393
Additions - 126 - 124
Disposais - (16} @ (19
Disposal of a subsidiary {103 - - 1)
Foreign exchange movements (3171 (281 (&0} (&05)

At 30 November 2015 08 406 a70 2083

Accumulated amartisation

Ar | December 2013 (81 (181 20 120m
Amortisation charge for the year (2B (15 H
Dispozals - 1 - 1
Foreign exchange movements - 7 1 &

A1 30 Movember 2014 (6} {201 34} [2a1)
Amortisation charge for the year - {32) 20 521
Dispasals - 18 3 18
Fareign &xehan ge movements 2 1% 5 b

Ar 30 Nevernber 2015 [} {199} [44) [247)

Mot book value

At 30 Novernber 2014 1.12¢ 124 B9 2152

At 30 Mevermber 2015 B0 204 B24 1,834

Of the above, US$1,762m (2014 USS2,109m] is expected to be recovered more than 12 months after the end of the reperting period,

During the year ended 30 Movember 2014, the Group entered inte an agreement with Cibbank te enter into an exclusie, long-term
bancassurance partnershs for 8 15-year perwod, The agreement pravided far a payment ol USEEDDm to Cinbank upen sigming, which
was capitalised as an intangible asset

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill arises primarily in respect of the Group's insurance business in Malaysia, Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing
the carrying amouwnt of the cash-generating undt, including goodwill, to the recoverable amount of that cash-generating unit, If the
recoverable amount of the unit exceeds the carrying amount of the unit, the goodwill altocated to that unit shall be regarded as
negt impaired, The recoverable amount is the value in use of the cash-generating unit unless othervise stated. The value in use 15
determined by calculating the present value of expected future cash Mlows plus a multiple of the present value of the new business
generated

Yalue in use is calculated as an actuarially determined appraisal value, based on the embedded value of the business and the valus
from future new business

The kety assumplions used in the embedded value caloulations include inve Strent returns, maortality, morbddity, persstency, expenses
and inflation, The value From future rew business is calculated based om @ combination of indicators which include, among others, a
multiple of the projected one-year value of new business (VONE), taking inte account recent production mix, business strategy and
market trends. The Group may apply alternative method te estimate the value of future new business if the described method is not
appropriate under the circumstances.
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14. INVESTMEMNTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VEMTURE E
Yiad asdod Yoager gadiad
M Herrembaer
LS 2015
Group
Inve stments in associates 137 ki
I sbmient 0 joant vinture -
Tatal 137 13

Inve stments in associates and joint venture are held for their long-term contribution to the Group’s performance and 50 all amounts
afe expected to be realised more than 12 manths after the end of the reporting periad.

The Group's interest in its principal associates is as follows

FIMANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

Giroei posdrsborost '

A sl i ot
Floce of Principal Type of M Hovember 0 Novormber
o (R PO O iy shaneg hal 0 15 i
Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited India Insurane Ordinary 6% 5% -
3
All associates and [aint venture are unlisted. g
o
Aggregated financial information of associates E
The irvestment in the associate is measured using the equity methad The following table analyses, in aggregqate, the carrying amaunt E
5
and share of profit and other comprehensive income of these associates E
Year esded Woar endad
1 M crwtin e 0 Movembar
Ly s [l
Carrying amount in the statement of linancial position 137 13
Profit from continuing operations - (]
Other comprehensno incame 3 22
Total comprehensive income 3 il

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Propory
bl e P Carmgstar

LIS (AT LI Farpaan Tt

Cast

A% 1 December 2013 L] 214 348 1,058
Additians 24 26 43 3
Dispasals [+ 113 (153 (30}
Het transfers from investment property &1 - - 41
Fereign exchange movements 1% {3 {7 2n

AR 30 November 2014 557 224 ama 1181
Addithans 14 18 Lk 78
Disposals - {18} 38 [54)
Met transfers from inwestmant property 10 - - 10
Foreign exchange movements [&8) (17} 21 [B4)

At 30 Novernber 2015 533 207 as7 1,097

Becumulated depreciation

At 1 December 2013 1180 (AR [F I 1578
Depreciation charge [or the year 115) 262 3%} 173)
Disposals 1 1" 13 25
Met transfers to investment property 1 - - 1
Fereign exchange movements T 5 5 7

A130 Nowernbar 2014 [1%8] a1 1233 [&10]
Depreciation charge lor the year (171 {24) 37 (78
Disposals - 17 & 3
Met transfers from investment property (&} - - 18]
Fareign exchange movements 22 18 14 BL

At 30 Novernber 2015 {1971 1172} {228) (597

Mat boaok value

A0 Movember 2014 351 43 137 a4l

At 30 November 2015 136 35 129 500

The Group holds property, plant and equipment for its long-term use and, accordingly, the annual depreciation charge approximates
to the amaunt expected to be recovered through consumption within 12 manths after the end of the reporting period
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16. INVESTMENT FROPERTY "g

US§m

Cost

At 1 December 2013 1,201 ;-
Additions 354 =
Disposals 12} E
Het transfers to property, plant and equipment (61} E
Forgign eachange movements 19 E

Ap 30 Movember 2014 1477 %
Additions 80 3
Disposals in H
Het transfers to property. plant and equipment {10} b
Foreign exchange mevements {57

A 30 Novembar 2015 i

Accumulated depreciation

Ar | December 2013 1734 E
Charge for the year (21} 3
Dusposals 1 g
Het transfers from property, plant and equipment 11k =
Foreign exchange movements 1 :E'E

Ar 30 Movember 2014 {93) %
Charge for the year {24 ]
Net transfers to property. plant and equipment 4
Foreign exchange movements 8

At 30 Movember 2015 [103)

Met book value

A2 30 Movember 2014 1,364

At 30 November 2015 1,384

The Growp holds investment property for long-term use, and so the annual amartisation charge approximates to the amount expected
to be recovered within 12 months after the reporting period.

The Group leases out its ivestment property under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial pericd of one to twelve
years, with an option to renew the lease based on future negotiations. Lease payments are usually negotiated every one tothree years
to reflect market rentals. There were not any material contingent rentals earned as income for the year. Rental income generated
from investrent property amounted to US$127m (2014: USH123m). Direct operating expenses (including repair and maintenance} on
investment property that generates rental income amounted to USE25m 2014 USE2%m)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

The Group owns investment property in the Form of freeheld land outside Hong Kong and leasebhodd land under finance lease. The
Group does not hold freehold land in Hong Kong.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY [cotiruad)
The future minimum operating lease rental income under non-cance llable operating leases that the Group expects toreceie in future
periods may be analysed as follows:

gt Az

30 M inBer %] N
LrEgem s 2L
Leases of investmant proparty
Expirang no later than one year 17 L
Expiring later than one year and no Later than five years 148 140
Expiring after five years or mors 8 ]
Total 273 244
17. FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND PROPERTY HELO FOR OWN USE

s at Az

) Hoversber 0 Nk g
= 05 e
Carrying valus™
Investment property 1,384 1,364
Property held for own use (classified as property, plant and equipment} 34 LD
Leasehold land under operating lease (classifed as prepayments in other assetst 430 442
Total 2,152 2,187
Fair value"
Inwvestment property [ncluding land} 3,657 3,639
Property held for awn use lincluding Land} 1,495 1,492
Total 5,154 5131
Wobs

1 Carryng o far vl arm prsented Delose ror-contnillang intenests ond, Tor sesa s heldin parbopating funde. Bafone ol location 1o polidylders

18. REINSURANCE ASSETS

Asal Azut

H Hovernber =) NovamEar

LIS 16 L
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers 287 240
Ceded insurance and investment contract Liabalities 1,395 1.41%
Tetal 1,452 1,657
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19. DEFERRED ACQUISITION AND ORIGINATION COSTS E
B an At
0 Hewember 0 Nowiiniar
LIS 015 )
=
Carrying amount g
Deferred acquisition costs on insurance contracts 16,624 15,793 =
Defarred origination costs on investment contracts L£70 53 E
Value of business acquired 198 266 E
Total 17,092 16,59 2
=
Yoar weded Wi o
i Hovember W} Nerrarrtar o
Fidls 2014 z
=
Mowvernents In the year B
At beginning of financial year 16,592 15,735
Deferral and amortisation of acquisition and arigination costs 1,450 1,631
Disposal of a subsiduary (&1
Fareign exchange movements {1,151} {365}
Impact of assumption changes 33 (23
Other movements 12E _A3e8
At end of financial year 17,092 16,593

Deferred acquisition and origination costs are expected to be recoverable over the mean term of the Group's insurance and investment
contracts, and labildy adequacy testing is performed at least annually to confirm their recovérability. Accordingly, the annual
amartisation charge, which vanes with investment perfermance for certain universal life and unit-Linked products, approximates to
the ameunt which is expected to be realised within 12 maonths of the end of the reporting period

!

|

i

|
CORPORATE GOVERMNAMCE

20. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

The following tables analyse the Group's financial imvestments by bype and nature. The Group manages its hinancial investments in
twra distinct categories: Unit-linked Investrments and Policyhodder and Sharehelder Investments. The investment risk in respect of
Unit-linked Investments is generally wholly borne by our customers, and does not directly affect the prafit for the year before tax
Furthermore, unit-linked contract holders are responsible for allocation of their poley values amongst imvestment options offered by
the Group. Although profit for the year before tax is not affected by Unit-linked Investments, the investment return from such financial
imvestrments 15 included in the Group's profit for the year belore tax, as the Geoup has elected the fair value option for all Unit-linked
Imve stments with corresponding changes in insurance and investment contrack liabilities for unit-linked contracts. Policyholder and
Shareholder fnvestments include all financial investments other than Unit-linked lrvestments. The investrment risk in respect of
Policyhodder and Shareholder Investments is partially or wholly borne by the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Policyholder and Shareholder |nvestments are further categorised as Participating Funds and Other Policyhelder and Shareholder
The Group has elected to separately analyse financial investrents held by Participating Funds within Policyholder and Shareholder
Inve strents as they are subgect to local regulations that generally prescribe 8 minimum proportion of policyholder participation in
declared dridends. The Group has elected the fair value option lor debt and equity securities of Participating Funds. The Group™s
accounting policy is to record an insurance liability for the proportion of net assets of the Participating Funds that would be allecated to
policyholders asseming all performance would be declared as a dividend based upon Local regulations as at the date of the statement
of inancial posibon. As a result the Group’s net profit for the year before tax is impacted by the proportion of investment return that
would be allocated to sharehelders as described above,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

20. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (contirand

Other Pelicyholder and Shareholder investments are distinct from Unit-linked Investrments and Participating Funds as there is not any
direct contractual or regulatory requirement governing the amount, if any, for allocation to policyholders. The Group has elected to
apply the Fair walue option for equity securities in this category and the available for sale classification in respect of the majerity of debt
securities in this category. The investment risk from mvestments in this category directly impacts the Group’s financial statements
Although a proportion of investment return may be allecated to pelicyholders through policyhelder dindends, the Group s accounting
policy for insurance and certam investment contract liabilities ublises 8 net level premium methodelagy that includes best estimates
as at the date ofissue for non-guaranteed partcipation. To the extent investment return from these investments ether is not allocated
o parucipatng contracts or varses from the best estsmates, it will impact the Group's prolit belore tax

In the Following tables, "FVTPL™ indicates financial investments classified at fair value through profit or loss and "AFST indicates
finaneial imvestments classified as avaitable for sale,

Debt securities
In eampiling the tables, external ratings have been used where available Where external ratings are not readily available an internal
rating methodolegy has been adopted. The following corventions have been adopted te conferm the various ratings.

External rafirgs Irternal rtings Reposiod o
Standard and Poor's Moody B
AlA Baa 1 Al
Al to AA- Aal toAad 2+t AR
As to A Altonad Jstod: A
BES. 1o BES- Baal to Baad a0 4o BEE
BB+ and below Bal and below S+ and below Below investment grade'™

Nt
{1} Unlogs othroawise identifiad sndeandualiy
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20. FIMANCIAL INVESTMEMNTS (contruad)
Debt securities fcontiruec
Debt securities by type comprise the Following
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OVERVIEW

Policyhalder sad sharehol der
Consolidated =
Participaling  Ofer policybolder snd invesEment =
Bumds I _::h.lrﬂmlﬂll’ f— Unitlinked tands™ ®
T2 Raling FYTPL FYTPL &F5 Sablatal FY¥TPL FYTPL Total £
£
30 Hoverrber 2005 -3
Government bonds E
- issued in local currency z
Thaa land A - - 10,288 10,248 - - 10,248 !
China AR 1,406 - s i 2 ) z
Korea I - - 1,650 3,650 25 - 3 i
Singapore ABA 1,488 - 1,086 2,554 388 - 912
Phuilappinees BEE - = 2426 2,626 76 - 2,702
Marlayni [ 1,536 - £03 1, %39 Fr - 1,964
Indonesia BB 29 7 533 L 2 - &01
Othar™ 17 - 863 560 3 - 863 2
Subtotal LATE 7 24,997 28,880 781 - 29,661 é
Government bonds g
= forefgn currency =
Intlenesia BE &0 ] 382 470 21 - i1 é
Philsppums BBE I 14 a1 196 &% = 47 %
Qalar AR 7 N 245 12 5 - bV o
Waxico BEE 7 F3| 254 282 - - 282
Malaysia A 3 - 205 39 F) - 241
Kiorea LT 19 - m 150 L] - 156
Soulh Alnca (=124} - 5 73 o8 - - L]
Rumsia BE 20 & 15 51 - - 51
Diher - m 164 95 21 - 3 e
Subtobal ' 1 198 1990 2355 N - 2489 $
-
Government agency bends™ =
AR 1,250 - 74 2,224 8 b 2,244 ;
A #37 - PRT 5,108 &4 188 5,384 2
[ e ] 248 3,283 Fi ] 16 3,325 E
HEE 223 - 1,095 1,318 & - 1,322 =
Helerw irestment grade 18 - 108 126 & - 132
Subtotal 3,220 B 8828 12,056 159 2% 1248
Wit
4} D tha el sovwernmant L gl g Othar gf 00 Movaenlee TO5 SL mar cunl Gfe Fuledd o eaestimant Sreck o @ furthor 30 pae cand e Futad BB-
and albove. Tha ramaring stod balow BB
Fi T SNy Doded bondg EEnhd Oy SOVSTEnEN-S 50 MO e NGl LhiNS Lath B el prOMNCiE and misnopn @Ak e
relatad anbb; T ] i il b red suprana b ool -Grg o

o Gor

el

1immstmant funds refect 10 par cort of
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

20. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (contruas

Debt securities (contiruss

EDINETOOOO
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Palicyhedder and shareholder
Cimmtcposl il N
Participating Ather policyholder and invesimeni
fmds ] !l-ll'lldﬂll’ Unit=linked lunds™
LShm FWTPL FYTPL &F5 Sabintl FYTPL FYTPL Tolsl
M Mowemiber 201%
Corperate bonds
AR &1 - 148 2 4 L7 280
A o0 8 5802 6,710 14 306 7,030
) 4,788 o] 17,303 22,119 53 773 23,4647
BHE &8 &1 18,694 22,97 541 213 21 TLT
Bapl v irmeeslirvaz i yrized g27 & 3228 4,155 108 28 &2%0
M rated - - 1 1 12 14 51
Suhtatal 0,884 1 55,192 54,187 1,265 1.59% 59,051
Skructured securiBes
AR - - n mn - - "
A 1} 1w 139 168 - - 168
A i1 I %7 252 - 5 257
BEB 3% - 172 i1 1 - 412
Bl vty vt vz il gyrand o a0 B - B - - B&
Mol rated 1 kil L] 52 - - 52
Subtotal 298 151 531 80 1 5 T84
Tola™ 19,054 452 &0, 740 100,458 2,33y 1,843 0,640
Mt
(0 Coreoirdatod invastmant funds refiect B0 por cent of asgats and latiliSes held by such funds

3T SaCUn BEs INCEU o

wad debt obligations

{51 Dabt gacunibes of LSS TE20y ané restncled dua 1o o0l Akgul BHory roqus raments
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OVERVIEW

20. FINANCIAL INVESTMEMNTS jcontirund)
Debt securities ontinues

Palicytel dar ad sharedoldar

Cormolidated
Farticipatirg Dehwr pod syl e and it E
forde.  shorencider: Lt s fimsoad turgei E
LsEm Ratirg FYTPL YT AFS Subbotal FYTPL FYTFL Total E
3 Noverder 2004 E
Gevermment bonds §
= Issued in local currency o
Thaviland A . - 11,003 11,002 - - 1 ;
Chira A 1.y - 4N 410 14 - 5,24 E
Korea A - . 1,543 3563 mz . A4S é
Singapoere AR 1768 - 1175 2.943 A - b fe 1 B
Phillepparues. BHE - - 2879 2809 TS - 2954
Malayein A 2.14% - LY | 2450 74 - 2T
Indanesia BE 22 - 32 55 55 - KAl
Dehar'® T s 5Th o¥3 Fa - 5%h =
Subtotal 5,05 ] 24,558 254815 B - 0,420 %
Gevernment bonds E
= forefgn currency ]
Iruils ihéssiia BE i 14 =y 4 5 - Ay E
Phlsppirss BBE - 7 7 04 BY - 455 E
Qualar A - - Elli 8 3 - 21 e
Maxicn BBEE T 15 i 250 - - =0
Malaysio A 73 - W Lt 2 - 16
Horea A it - 135 54 ¥ - 161
Sauth Alnca HEE - 18 1m0z (Fa| - - Fa
Russia BBE " 1% 104 18 - - 138
Other'® - 121 181 282 12 - ¥ o
Subitatal M 14 1894 2992 18 T =
Government agency bends™ %
ARA L - 1,070 2 14 19 254k 13
A B2 : 1526 2539 Bl 81 2 -
I B0X - &721 5574 18 50 5,572 ;
BBE ot - 1439 1492 b - 1,674 w
Below irmvestmient grisde 23 - 1" 202 b - Fai}
Mot rabed - - - - [ i1 &7
Subtotal 3mz - 9.305 12,347 FES 211 12,791
Notes

[} 0 1ha total gowarnmant bonds listed @5 Othar at 30 Mowrmtar 3014, 41 par cant are rated os imattment grads and @ furthar 27 par cent are rabed B8
=l abgvi Thay ramalning an rated tlow BB-

L) -Govermimanl sgancy binds comphiss honde itead By gowkimmand-spordoned inglfuliond such e ratonnl. provincisl and municpml sahon e
o rTmanE=redot il antities: milti el v Spmant DInkE Sed SURranational srBNSGNE

B Cormelidaed vwegiman lynds refact 100 par cord of Bgseis ond liabilies. hald by guch funds
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

20. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (contruns
Debt securities (contiruss

Pelicytl dor ahd sharelal dar

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
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Consalidatad
Participating et i oy ol s iancd invactrmant
funds  sharsholder o Linits Eirkad furde®
LI=ZEm PYTFL FYTPL IS Serotal FYTFL FYTFL T
Ml Hovember 2014
Corperate bonds
LT B - bid| 147 5 57 i [
A 1,100 ] 4,457 5565 s Ha 5,774
A 4,780 &1 1o, T 2819 3 51 7278
BHE 35933 Th 17,150 21.15% A 248 21,857
Belerw irmarstmend grade Bhd = 2,70 31565 Th | 34673
M rased 18 1 149 168 108 473 T
Subtatal 10,761 T &1,310 a2.47 1.3 1AM 5,255
Structured securides
Rl - - 41] 10 - - 1]
A & ) i = - - ah
A L] - 438 L] - - 4if
BEE 308 = 150 45 2 5 503
Beplow irmestmen grade 'l B - B - - &5
Nod rated 7 55 ol i} 1 - &Y
Subtotal 3ol Lr &4l L. d = 1.97%
Toral™ 17,597 512 T1.T44 7848 7478 1,727 102,03
Mt
£ Corsoldated restmant funds refiect 500 per cent of assats ond lisblides hid by mch funds
(&) Shruetared secun bes inciuds collwerpleed debt obligaticns, mortyeoe- baciged sacunties and other sxset-tacked seouritios
51 Dabt sacunibes of LISEZ F00m ané restncled dua 1o 160l Akgul BMory roqus raments
The Group's debt securities classified at Fair value Ihl"'ﬂuqh profit or Logs can Mmalynd as follows:
hsan Agin

k| A Novambar
LSgm mis e
Dabt securities - FYTPL
Designated at fair value through profit or loss 23,700 24,297
Held for trading - 2
Total 23,700 2809
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20. FINANCIAL INVESTMEMNTS jcontirund)
Equity securities
Equily securities by type comprise the following:
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OVERVIEW

Policybolder snd
whaih s der z
Qs E
palicyhalder Com sl sdated *
Participating and investmenl =
tmmdy sharsholder Unift-linked lunds™ £
LSt F¥TPL FYTFL Subbodal FYTPL FYTFL Todal -]
3 Hovernber 2005 E
Equity shares 1,285 5484 8,767 3234 1 12,004 z
Interests in investment funds 1,630 1,812 3442 11,710 3 15,155 E
Total 4,515 7,094 12211 14,544 L 27,159 i
= Linin:Linkad
LS Sasbeihul ENTFL 14 ]
H
M Noverber 2014 E
Equity shares 3474 5,005 &.481 1548 1 13,430 =
Interests mn investment funds 1,568 1,702 3270 12,124 3 15,397 E
Total 5044 7.707 12,751 16,072 [ 28,627 %
g
Mibe
[ Corecdiiduied irmpstimand birss react 100 por cord of aasaby ond ligkelin s hald by seahs fande
Debt and equity securities
Bs A
30 Heember ) Miraimiog
Lrsdr 2015 pi i [ -
F
Dabk securitios 3
Listed T, 470 2017 5
Unlisted 8,150 30, hdé ;
Tatal 104,660 102,063 2
=
Equity securities E
Listed 13,878 15,278
Unlisted 13,281 13,551
Total 27,159 2B.EIT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

20. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (concirund)

Interests in structured entities

The Group has determined that the investment funds and structured sacurities, such as collateralisad debt obligations, mortgage-
backed securities and other asset-backed securities that the Group has inberest are siructured entities

The Group has consolidated certain imvestment funds for which the Group provides guarantée on capital or rate of return to the
investors and deemed to have control based on an analysis of the guidance in IFRS 10. For these investment funds, the Group has the
abdity to reduce the guaranteed rates of return, subject to obtaining approvals of applicable regulators. The Group has an cbligation
to abgorb lossesin the évent that the returns of the funds are insuffacient o cover the capital or rate of réturn guarantes provided to
thee inve stors.

The Fallowing table summarises the Group's interest in unconsolidated structured entities:

A at 3 Hgvomber 3015 A 0t ) Ny 216
Invesbmmst Sructured {rwastrand Linuctirnd
L Pends. Securibes furds BRCUNTSE™
Ayailable for sale debt securities Tar 533 570 641
Debt securities at fair value through profit or loss A 453 k11 gl 538
Equity seurities at Fair value through profit or loss 15,165 - 15,397 -
Taotal 16,320 784 16,334 171

hotas
{1} Shructured sacurites inciuds collsterslized dabt obligation, morigane: o ked secunities wnd ofher sesst-bncked sacanias
E1 Balarco mepresests the Group s interests in delbt secunities isourd by rodl estute invegtrment biusts

The Group's maximum exposure 1o loss arising from its interests in these unconsolidated structured enbties is lemited ta the
carrying amount of the assets. Diidend income and interest income are received during the reperting period from these interests in
uncensalidated structured entites,

In addition, the Group receives management fees and trustee fees in respect of providing trustee, management and administrative
seraces to certain retiremant scheme flunds and inve stment funds. These Funds are not held and the associated inve stment nsks are
met borne by the Group, the Group does not have exposure to loss in these funds,
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x

£
20. FINANCIAL INVESTMEMTS fcontiruad) E
Leans and deposits

s al
30 Hewember

=2 2015 *
Palicy loans 2,383 2433 =
Martgage lbans an residential real estate 538 B45 ?
Maortgage Loans on commercial real estate 51 14 E
Dther loans 781 B03 s
Allgwance lor lean lodses {14} (&} =
Loans 3,738 3EEL 3
Term deposits 2,035 2,201 E
Promissory notes'™ 1,437 1.562 &
Total 7211 7,554
Mobe
{1} . Tre promessony notes are issosd by 5 goverrenant

b

x
Certain term deposits with financial insttutions and promissory notes are restricted due to local regulatory requirements or other -
pladge reatrictions. The restricted balance held within term deposts and promissory notes is USS1.617m {2014: USH1,757m) E
Other loans include receivables from reverse repurchase agreements under which the Group does not take physical possession of ;
securities purchased under the agreements. Sales or transfers of securdoes are not permitted by the respective clearing house an é
which they are registered while the lean is outstanding. In the event of default by the counterparty to repay the Loan, the Group has the ]

o

L ¥l

right to the underlying securities held by the clearing house. At 30 November 2015, the carrying value of such recevables is US$155m

2014: USS101m}
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's non-hedge derivative exposure was as follows:

Falr valus

IS Fotinasl amosnt Assels Lishilies
30 Mevernber 2015
Fereign exchange contracts

Cross-currency swaps 7183 &0 LA ]

Forwards 1,547 & (19

Fereign exchange futures 19 - -

Curféncy aptions 29 - -
Tetal foralgn sxchange contracts B.848 14 (690)
Interest rate conkracts

Interest rabe swaps 629 4 =)
Other

‘Warrants and options 176 7 -
Natting (119) - E
Total 9,534 73 [695)
M Hovemnber 2014
Fersign exchange contracts

Cross-currency swaps 6142 244 {198}

Forsards 622 & [z

Faoreign exchange futures 177 - -

Currency options 20 - -
Total foreign suchange contracts 5941 pacli] 1210
Interest rate contracts

Interest rate swaps 157 T (1
Other

Warrants and options T4 B -
Natting 177 - -
Total 7.085 2465 1211

The celumn “noticnal ameuent” in the above table represents the pay leq of derivative transactions.

Of the total derivatives, US%bm [2014: USETm) are listed in exchange or dealer markets and the rest are over-the-counter (OTC
dervatrees. OTC dertvative contracts are individually negotiated bebween contracting parties and not cleared through an exchange
OTE derivatives include forwards, swaps and options. Derivatives are subject to various risks including market, liquidity and credit
risks, similar to those related to the underlying financial instruments

Dervative assets and derivatie Liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as hinancial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial liabilities respectively. The Group's derivative contracts are established to
economic hedge financial exposures The Group adopts hedge accounting in limited circumstances. The notional or contractual
amounts associated with derivathve financial instruments are not recorded as assets or Labilites i the consolidated statement of
fimancial pesition as they do not represent the Fair value of these transactions. The national amounts in the previous table reflect the
aggregate of individual derivative positichs on a gross basis and so give an indication of the sverall scale of derivative bransactions
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OVERVIEW

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS joccsinsdl

Foreign exchange coentracts

Feraign exchange Forward and tutures contracts represent agreements to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of
another country at an agreed price and settlement date. Currency eplions are agreements that grve the buyer the right te exchange the
currency of one country for the currency of another country at agreed prices and settlement dates. Curréncy swaps are contractual
agresments that involve the exchange of both periodic and final amounts in two different currencies, Expesure o gain and loss on the
foreign exchange contracts will increase or decrease over their respective lives a5 a function of maturity dates, interest and foreign
exchange rates, implied volatilitses of the underlying indices and the timing of payments.

Interest rate swaps

Interest Fate swaps are contractual agreements bebadin bwvo parties o exchange perodic payments in the same currency, sach of
which is computed on a different inberest rate basis, on a specified notienal amount. Most interest rate swaps involve the net exchange
of payments calculated as the difference between the fired and feating rate interest payments.

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

Other derivatives
‘Warrants and options are option agreements that grve the owner the nght to buy or sell securities at an agreed price and settlement
date.

Metting adjustment
The netting adpstment is related to futures contracts executed through clearing house where the settlement arrangement satished
the netting criteria under IFRS.

Collateral under derivative transactions

Ar 30 Movember 2015, the Group had pested cash collateral of US$18%m (2014: US$20m} and pledged debt securities with carrying
value of USEHE3%m (2014: USEREm) for Liabilities and held cash collateral of LIS§8m (2014: US$122m), debt securities collateral with
carrying vales of US$Im 2014: US$2m) and no deposit collateral 2014: US$25mi for assets in respoct of derivative ransactions. The
Group did not sell or repledge the collateral received, These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to
collateralised transactions including. where relevant, standard securities lending and repurchase agreements

i
g
g
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HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMERNT
Fair value of financial instruments
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The Group classdee s all Fnancial assets as sither at fair valug through profit or loss, or as available for sale, which are carried at Fair
value, or as loans and receables, which are carmed at amortised cost. Financial Liabilities are classilied as eiher at fair value through
prafit orloss or at amortised cost, except for investment contracts with DPF which are accounted for under [FRS &

The foltowing tables présent the Fair values of the Group's finantial assets and financial Habilities.

Fair walus
Fair value
Ihrosgh Costf Totad
prof&l or Avallable amortised CRTYyESg Tdal Fair
SEm Notes boss for sale {1 value valug
3 Howemiber 2010%
Financial inve siments =
Leans and deposits - - 72011 721 T2
Debt securities 23,700 80,940 - 104,640 104,640
Equity securities 27,18% - - 27,15% 27159
Derivative financial instruments N 73 - & T 73
Rensurance réecetvables 3 - - 257 257 257
Other receivables o - - 1,71 1,73 .73
Accrued investment income b - - 1,350 1,350 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents = - - 1992 1,992 1992
Financial agssets 50,932 B0, %40 12 541 164,613 164 424
Fair walu
Ehrough Costf Tolal
prodit or armoriised CRrTyiag Tolal tair
Mo s ool value value
Financial liabilibes
Investment contract Liabélities = 6573 BEY 7116 7118
Borrowings i - 3195 3,195 3217
Obligations under securities lending and
repUrcha S¢ agreements * - 3,085 3,085 3,085
Derivatiee financial mstruments | 595 - 495 495
Dtheer liabilities u 1.214 3663 L 85T 4,657
Financial liabilities 8,482 10,266 18,748 18,770
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT jcontiruas)
Fair value of financial instruments (coniowed

Foir valise
B P L Tot
through profit Aol alilo caTying Totsl fair .
LSt Motns ories Tor o LT wE U E
M Hovermber 214 E
Financial investments o T
Leans and deposits - - 7454 TA54 1675 §
Deht securities 24.31% 77,744 - 102,063 102,063 %
Equity securities 26827 - - ol ek 28,627 4
Derivative financial instruments M 245 265 285 E
Reinsurance recerables =] - 240 240 240 i
Other receivables Fa - - 1.632 1432 1.632
Accrued imvestment income | - - 1,345 1,345 1,345
Cash and cash equivalents = - 1,835 1,635 1,835
Financial assets 5341 77,744 12,704 143 B 143 582 -
-
s o i o g 7 o £
o
Financeal Liabslitwes E
Investment contract Liabilities 27 7,315 622 7937 7,937 E
Borrowings o 25934 2834 3,005 b
Cbligations under securities lending and
repunchase agreements a0 - 1753 3,783 3,753
Derwvative financial instruments N mn - 211 n
Orther Liabilities 1 1,221 3320 4542 4,542
Financial liabilities B, 74T 10,630 19.277 19,445

The carrying amaunt of assers included im the above tables represents the maximum credit exposure.

qu'[lgn CUrFRncy SXpasure, including the net notional amount of foresgn currency dermative positions, s shown in note 37 tar the
Group's key forekgn exchange exposures.

The fair valwe of investment contract liabilites measured at amortised cost is not considered to be materally different from the
amortised cost carrying value.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

The carrying value of financial instruments expected to be sattled within 12 months [after taking inta account valiation alléwances,
where applicablel is not considered to be materially different from the fair valve.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (:ontireacth

Fair value measurements on a recurring basis

The Group measures at fair value financial instruments classified at fair value through proht or loss, available for sale securities
portfolios, derivative assets and liabilibes, Investments held by investment funds which are consolidated, investments in non-
consolidated investment funds and certain investment contract Liabilities on a recurring basis. The fair value of a financial instrument
1% the amount that would be received on sale of an asset or pard o transfer a Liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the messurement date

The degree of judgement used in measuring the fair value of kinancal instruments generally correlates with the Level of pricing
chservability. Financial instrurments with quoted prices in active markets generally have more pricing observability and less judgement
is used in measuring fair value. Conversely, financial instruments traded in other than active markets or that do not have quated
prices have less abservability and are messured at fair value using valuation models ar ather pricing techniques that require mars
jdgement. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability being valued gocur with sufficent frequency and
volume ta provide pricing information an an engoing basis.

An other than active market is one in which there are few transactions, the prices are not current, price quotations vary substantially
vither over time or among market makers, or in which little infermation is released publicly for the asset or Lability being valued,
Pricing obiservability is alfected by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrument, whether the financial instrument is
new to the market and not yet established. the characteristics specific to the transaction and general market conditions.

The Group does not have assets or liabilitie s measured at fair value ona non-recurring basis during the year ended 30 Novermber 2015

The Fallowing méthods and assumptions were used by the Group to estimate the fair value of financial nstruments,

Determination of fair value for financial instruments

Leans and receivables

For loans and advances that are repriced frequently and have not had any significant changes in credit risk, carrying amounts
represent a reasonable estimate of Fawr values. The fair values of other loans are e stimated by discounting expected Future cash Rows
using Interest rates offered for similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings

The fair values of mortgage loans are estimated by discounting huture cash flows using interest rates currently being offered in
respect of similar loans to borrowerswith similar credit ratings. The fair values of fived rate policy loans are estimated by discounting
cash flows at the interest rates charged on policy loans of similar palicies currently being issued. Loans with similar characteristics
are aggregated for purpases of the calculations. The carrying values of policy laans with variable rates approximate to their fair values,

Debt securities and aquity securities

The fair values of equity securities are based on queted market prices or, f unquated, on estimated market values generally based
on quoted prices for similar securities. Fair values for Fived interest securities are based on quated market prices, where available.
For those securites mot actively traded, fair valuses are estimated using values obtained from brokers, privabe pricing services or
by discounting expected future cash flows using a current market rate applicable to the yield, credit quality and maturity of the
investment, Priomty is given to values from independent sources when available, but overall the saurce of pricing andfor valuation
technigue is chosen with the objective of arriving at the price at which an orderly transaction would take place between market
participants on the measurement date. The inputs to determining fair value that are relevant to fixed interest securities include, but
et Limited to risk-free interest rates., the obligor's credit sproads, foreign exchange rates and credit default rates. For holdngs in
hedge fumds and limited partnerships, fair valves are determined based on the net asset values provided by the general partner or
manager of gach investment, the accounts of which are generally audited om an annual basis. The transaction price is used as the best
estimate of fair value at inceplion.
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT jcontirust)

Determination of fair value for financial instruments icontinunc

Derivative financial instrumants

The Group values its derivative linancial assets and liabilities using market transactions and other market evidence whenever
possible, including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market clearing transactions, broker or dealer quotations or
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. When models are used. the selection of a particular model to
value a dervcative depends on the contract terms of, and specilic risks inherent in, the instrument aswell as the availability of pricing
infarmation in the market. The Group generally uses similar models to value similar instruments. Valuation models require a variety
of imputs, including contractial terms, market prices and rates, yield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates
and correlations. of such inputs. For derivatives that trade in liquid markets, such as generic forwards, swaps and options, model
inputs can gendrally be verlied and model selection does not invaboe sighificant management udgement. Examples of inputs that are
generally observable include foreign exchange spot and forward rates, benchmark interest rate curves and vedatdities for commaondy
traded option products, Examples of inputs that may be unobservable include volatilities tor less commenly traded option products
and correlations between market factors

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

When the Growp helds a group of dervative assets and derivative liabilities entered into with a particular counterparty, the Group
takes into account the arrangements that mitigate credit risk exposure in the event of default (2,0 International Swap and Derivatives
Association {1504} Master Agreements and Credit Support Anmex {C5A) that require the exchange of collateral on the basis of each
party's ot credit risk sxposune), The Group measures the fair value of the group of inancial assets and financial liabilities on the basis
of its pet exposure to the credit risk of that counterparty or the counterparty’s net exposure to our credit risk that reflects market
participants’ expectations about the likelihooed that such an arrangement would be legally enforceabls in the event of default

Cash and cash squivalents
The carrying amount of cash approximates its fair value

Relnsurance rocaivables
The carrying amount of amounts recevable from reinsurers is not considered materially different to their fair value.

i
g
g

Fair value of securities sold under repurchase agreements and the associated payables
The contract values of payables under repurchase agreements approxamate their fair value as these abligaticns are short-term in
AAtURE.

Other assets

The carrying amount of other financial assels (s net materially different to their fair value. The fair values of deposits with banks are
generally based on quoted market prices or, if unquated, on estimates based on discounting future cash flows using available market
imterest rates offered for recerables with similar characteristics.

Investment cantract Liabilities

Fer investment contract Labilitie s, the far values have been estimated using a discounted cash Flow appreach based on interest
rates currently being offered for similar contracts with maturities conskstent with these remaining for the contracts being valued. For
investment contracts where the investment risk is borne by the policyhalder, the Fair value generally appromimates to the fair value of
the underlying a3sets.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Irvestment centracts with DPF enable the contract holder to receive additional benefits a5 a supplemant to guaranteed banefits, These
are referred to as participaténg business and are measured and classified according to the Group practice for insurance contract
liabilitie s and hence are disclosed within note 26. These are not measured at fair value as there is currently not an agreed definition
of fair value for investment and insurance contracts with DPF under IFRS. In the absence of any agreed methodology, itis not possible
to provide a range of estimates within which fasr value is likely to fall. The LASE is expecting to address this issue in Phase I of its
insurance cankracts propect.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT iontireach

Determination of fair value for financial instruments (coires

Borrowings

The fair values of borrowings with stated maturities have been estimated based on discounting future cash flows using the interest
rates currently applicable to deposits of similar maturitie s or prices obtained from brokers.

Other liabilities

The fair valees of other unguoted financial liabditie s is e stimated by discounting expected future cash flows using current market rates
applicable to their yield, credit quality and maturity, except for those without stated maturity, where the carrying value appeoximates
to fair value.

Fair value hierarchy for Fair value measurement on a recurring basis

Assets and Labilities recorded at fair value in the consclidated statement of financial position are measured and classified in a
higrarchy for disclosure purposes consssting of three “levels” based on the observability of inputs avadable in the marketplace used
to measure their fair values as discussed below:

=  Level 1: Fair value measurements that are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group has the ability to access as of the measurement date, Market price data is generally obtained from exchange or dealer
markets. The Group does not adjust the quoted price for such instruments. Assets measured at fair valwe on a recurring basis
and classifiod as Level 1 are actively traded Listed equities. The Group consaders that gowernment debt securities issued by G7
couniries {the United States, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, the United Kingdom} and traded in a dealer market to be
Lewvel 1, until they na longer trade with suffickent frequéncy and velume to be considered actimly traded,

*  Level 2: Fair value measurerments based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or Liability, #ither directly (as prices} or indirectly (derved from prces!. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assetsand
|kabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar as4sts or labilities in markets that are not actmve and inputs ather
than quoted prices that are observable for the asset and liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at
commonly quoted intervals. Assets and liabalities measured at fair value on a recurrang bases and classified as Level 2 generally
include government securities isswed by non-G7 countries, most investment grade corporate bonds, hedge fund inve stments and
darivative contracts

* Lavel 3 Fairvalue measurements based on valuation techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable. Unocbservable
inputs.are only use dto measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, allowing for circumstances
imwhich there is Litle, if any, market activity fer the asset or Lliabflity. Sssets and liabdities measured at fair value an a recurring
basis and classified as Level Jinclude certain classes of structured securities, certain derivabive contracts. private equity and real
estate fund investments, and direct private equaty investments.

In certain cases, the inputs used te measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value Rhierarchy. In such cases, the level
in the Fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety Falls is determined based on the lewest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Group's assessment of the significance of a particular input to
the fair value measurement in &5 entirety requires judgement. In making the assessment. the Group considers factors specific to the
asset or Liability.
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT jcontirust)
Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis fcorsnusd)
A summary of assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis according to fair value hierarchy is given below:

Fair valwe hisrarchy
Usgm ' Lovel 1 Levelz ™ Total z
=
H Hoverrbor 2615 E
Recurring fair value measurements E
Financial assets E
Auvailable for sale E
Debt securities = TRRL7 1,013 80,940 i
At fair value through profit or foss E
Debt securities E
Participating funds B 18,732 324 19,064 =
Unit-linked and consolidated
investment lunds - 3,914 288 & 182
Other policyholder and shareholder - 287 175 Lb2
Equity securities -
Participating funds 4537 127 251 4,918 E
Unit-linked and consolidated &
investment funds 14,418 i [ 14,948 5
Other palicyholder and shareholder 6558 L9 419 72946 ;
Derwiatree financial instrumaents é
Foreign exchange contracts - .14 - [ E
Interest rate centracts = i - F "
Other contracts L ] - 7
Total assets on a recurring fair value
maasuremant basis 25908 103,510 2,454 131,872
Tatd % 194 7o IS roe.e
Financial liabities -
Inwe stment contract liabilities - - 6,573 4573 E
Derivative financial instruments E
Faoreign eschange contracts - &%) - 90 E
Interest rate contracts & 5 - 5 3
Other liabilities - 1,214 - 1.214 %
Total liabilities on a recurring falr E
value measuremant basis - 1,909 6573 8,682
Tots % - 225 Fre To0.@
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HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMERNT icontirean
Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis foonmed

il wilish Fadiarciy

e Lavesl 1 Larwid & Lt Tt

A0 Meweimber 2014
Recurring fair value measuremants
Financial assets
Availabte for sale
Debt securities 76992 b 7744
A fabr value through profit or Loas
Dbt securities

Participating funds - 19323 269 12592
Unit-linked and consolidated
irce strent funds - 3888 327 4,215
Oaher policyhalder and sharekholder - 28 m 512
Equity securities
Participating funds & 704 m e 5,044
Linit-linked and consolidated
imestmant funds 15177 B9Y 16,074
Other policyholder and shareholder 7019 343 U5 7.107
Derreative financial struments
Fereign exchange contracts - 250 - 250
Interest rate contracts - 7 - 7
Other contracts 7 1 -4
Total azsets on a recurring fair
value measuremaent basis 25,907 102,096 1152 131,155
Tolal % L e 14 f L]
Financlal LiabRities
Inwestment contract liabilities - - 7315 7315
Derivatioe financial instrumants
Forgign exchange contracts 210 210
Interast rate conbracis - 1 - 1
Other liabilities - 1L21 - 1,221
Total liablities on a recurring fair
value measurement basis - 1432 7415 BT
Tatal % - 16.4 B34 el
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22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT jcontirust)

Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis (corsnusd)

The Group’s polscy is to recognise transfers of assets and Liabilities between Level 1 and Level 2 at their fair values as at the end of
each reporting period, consistent with the date of the determination of lair value. Assets are iransferred out of Level 1 when they are
no longer transacted with sufficient frequency and velume in an active market. During the year ended 30 November 2015, the Group
transferred USE2% m (2014: US355m) of assets measured at fair value from Level 1to Level 2 duning the year. Conversely, assets are
tramsfereed from Level 2 to Level 1when transaction valume and frequency are indicative of an active market The Group tramsferred
USE0ESm (2014: US$LE3mi of assets from Level 2 to Level | during the year ended 30 November 2015,

The Group’'s Level 2 financial instruments include debt securities, equity securnities and derivative instruments. The fair values of Level
 financial instruments are estimated using values obtaimed from private pricing serices and brokers corroborated with internal
review as pecessary, When the quates froem third-party pricing services and brokers are not available, internal valuation techniques
and inputs will be used to derive the Fair value fer the financial instruments.

The tables below set cut a summary of changes in the Group's Level 3 assets and Liabilite s measured at fair value on a recurring basis
for the year ended 30 Movember 2015 and 2014, The tables reflect gains and losses, including gains and losses on financial assets and
lrabilities categorised as Level 3 a5 at 30 Hovember 2015 and 2014

FIMANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

Level 3 financial assets and Liabilities

b
Derivative =
financ E
Dbt Equity agsaia Invesimeal
LISgr securi ies secunilies iLiak daties oonirscts z
o=
At 1 December 2014 1578 574 - {7,315) E
Met mavement an inve stment contract lakilibe s - - - Ta2 %
Total gainsfilosses) 5
Reported under investment return in the
consalidated income statement 14 (7 - -
Reported under fair value reserve and
fareign currency translation resere
in the consatidated staterment of
comprehansie income T (24F 5 =
Purchases 4] 170 - - =
Sales (57 (143 - - g
Settlements (1411 - - - E
Disposai of a subsiduary 5l - - - 13
Transler into Level 3 17 & - - E
Transfer aut of Level 3 (&} 4] - - E
At 3 November 2015 1,780 474 = (65731 =

Change in unrealised gains or losses
Included in the conselidated income
statement for assets and Liabilities
held at the end of the reporting period,
under investmant return (3 [{1] - -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (rontiread
Level 3 financial assets and Liabilities jcoinuan

Desriwartren

Snanci
Dalst Equaty i PRl i il
L Eiunt b Basusiliag fliaba Lt} CorRTai s
At 1 Dacembar 2013 .M L&3 Z2 (7429
Net meovement on investment cantract liabdlities - - - 114

Total gainsilosses)
Reported under investment return in the
consolidated income statement B7 1] {1
Reported under fair value reserve and

loreign currency translation reserve
in thi conselidated statement of

comprehensive income 2 Wk} - -
Purchases S04 ™
Sales 12021 (351
Settlements 114 n
Transter inta Level - - - -
Transfer out of Level 3 (&) - - -
At 30 Novernber 2014 1578 574 (7.215)

Change in unrealised gains or lostes included inthe
consalidated income statement for assets and
Liabitithes held at the end of the reporting period,
under investment return Tl &2 ] -

Mowements in investment contract Liabilities at fair value are offset by movements in the underlying partfolie of matching assets.
Devails of the movement ; investment contract labilities are provided in note 27,

Assets translerred out of Level 3 mainly retate ba corporate debt instruments of which market-observable inputs became available
during the year and were used in determining the fair value,

There are not any differences bebween the fair values on initial recognition and the amounts determined using valuabion techniques
since the models adopied are calibrated using initial transaction prices.

Significant unobservable inputs for level 3 fair value measurements
A5 at 30 Hovernber 2015 and 2014, the valuation technigues and applicable unabservable inputs used to measure the Group's Level 3
financial instruments are summarised as follows:

Fair wal e &l Walualion Unshservahle

Descriphion 30 Novemmber 1015 (USSm) techniques inpuls Hange

Dbt securitios a0y Discounted cash Alows  Discount rate for liquidity  4.30% = 15.41%
Far val e at Vil zabion Unibsarvai o

Decnpson 0 NowarrEae 2018 LSS Techrpgues gt R

Dbt securities 546 Discounted cash Mows - Discount rate for liguidity 5.28% - 11.4%%
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OVERVIEW

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT jcontirust)

Valuation processes

The Group has the valuation policies, procedures and analyses in place to govern the valuation of fimancial assets required for financial
reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair values. In determining the fair values of inancial assets, the Group in genéral uses third:
party pricing providers and, only in rare cases when third-party prices do not exst, will use prices derred from internal models
The Chief Investment Officers of each of the business units are required to review the reasonableness of the prices used and report
price exceptions, if any. The Group Investment team analyses reported price exceptions and reviews price challenge responses from
third-party pricing providers and provides the final recommendation on the appropriate price to be used. Any changes in valuation
policies are reviewed and appraved by the Group Pricing Commitiee (GPCHwhich is part of the Group's wider linancial risk gevernance
processes. Changesin Level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date.

The main Level 3 input used by the Group pertains to the discount rate for the fived mcome securities and investment contracts. The
unohservable inputs for determining the fair value of these instrumentsinclude the shliger’s credit spréad andor the liquidity spread
Asignificant increase/ldecrease) in any of the unobserqable input may result in a significantly lower/{higher) fair value measurement
The Group has subscriptions to private pricing services for gathering such information. iFthe information frem private pricing services
is not available, the Group uses the proxy pricing mathod based on internally -developed valuation inputs

2
=
z
z
&
o
3
4
g
:

Fair value for assets and liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed at reporting date
A surmimary of fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilites not carried at fair value but for which the fair value is disclosed as ag 30

Novemnber 2015 and 2014 is given below. E
Faevales e arcy E
LS Lovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toal £
o
30 November 20005 E
Assets for which the fair value iz disclosed E
Financial assats B
Leans and deposits 652 3,148 3,526 7222
Reinsurance recerables - 57 - 57
Other receivables = 1,707 24 1,731
Accrued irvestment income % 1.3 - 1,350
Cash and cash aquivalents 1,992 - - 1992
Investmant property and property held for own use =
Inwestment property {including land) = - 3,459 3,459 E
Property held for own use including land} - - 1,495 1,495 E
Total assets for which the fair valus is disclosed 2563 & LLD 8,703 17,704 E
Liabilitioz for which the Fair value iz disclozed é
Financial iabiiities :
Inwe sbment contract liabilities - - B3 5a3 &
Borrowings 2.B%4 323 - 3217
Obligations under securities lending and
repurchase agreemenis - 3,085 - 3,085
Other liabilities 412 2970 &1 3443
Total liabilities for which the Fair value iz disclosed 3,304 4,378 404 10,288
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (:ontireacth
Fair value for assets and liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed at reporting date (contireed)

Finr vabua Flararchy
L Lareat 1 Lo 2 Ll 3 Tots

3 Hovember 2014
Aszets fer which the Fair valus is disclosed

Financial assets
Leans and deposits 632 3293 3,750 7675
Reinsurance recesables - 240 - 240
Other receivables - 1534 98 1,652
Accrued investment income 15 1,330 - 1,345
Cash and cash equivalents 1.835 - 1533
Invastmant property and property held for own use
Investment property (including Land) - - 3437 2.639
Property held for own use {including land) - - 1.492 1482
Total assets for which the fair value is disclosed 24E2 b.397 BY7T® 17558
Liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed
Financial liabRitias
Ivaastment contract liabilities £22 622
Barrewings 2044 959 - 3,005
Obligations under securitses lending and

fopurchase agréements 3,753 - 3,753
Other liabilities 204 3027 0 3321
Total liabilkies for which the fair value is disclosed 2,250 T.73% nz 10,701

The Group engaged external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair valwe of the Group's properties at the end of
eeery linancial year. The valuation on open market value basis by independent professional valuer for certam investment properties
was calculated by reference to net rental income allewing for reversionary income petential The Fair values of other properties were
derived using the Market Data Appreach. in this approach, the values.are based on sales and Listing of comparable property regestered
Ir ki wieimity,

In valuing the investment properties and properties in use, the current use of the properties are considered to be its highest and best
use; records of recent sales and offerings of similar property are analysed and compartson made for such factors as size, location,
quality and prospective wse.

The investrent properties and prope rises in use are valued on the basis of the highest and best use of the properties that is physically
pessible, legally permissible and financially feasible. Records of recent sales and offerings of similar property are analysed and
comparisan made far such factors as size, location, guality and prospective use. In limited oocasions, potential redevelopment of the
properties in use would be taken into account when they would maximise the fair value of the properties; the Group is occupying these
properties for operational purposes
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2
&
23. OTHER ASSETS 3
A 2t Aot
0 Hewember 0 Nowiiniar
1= 2015 A
z
Accrued imvestment income 1,350 1,345 g
Pension scheme assets =
Defined benifit pinsion scheme surpluses 26 5 ?
Insurance receivables due frem insurance and investment contract helders. 1.023 ¥98 E
Others 1,493 1,365 s
Total 3,892 3753 i
4
Al amounts cthér than certain prepayments are génerally sxpected ta be récoversd withii 12 months aftér the end of thé réporting E
=
periad. i

24, IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, imparrment reviews were performed for avadlable for sale securties and loans
and receiiables

Available for sale debt securities
During the year ended 30 Hovemnber 2015, there were not any impairment losses 2014: USEnill recognised in respect of available for
sale debt securities.

The carrying amounts of available for sale debt securities that are indhidually determined to be impaired at 3 November 2015 was
USE30m (2014 USH4Em],

i
g
g

Leans and receivables

The Growp's primary petential cred® risk expesure in respect of Loans and receivables arises in respect of policy leans and a pertfolio
of mortgage loans on residential and commercial real estate (see note 20 Financial investments for further details). The Group’s credit
sxposure on policy loans is mitigated because, if and when the total mdebtedness on any policy. including interest due and accrued,
exceeds the cash surrender value, the pelicy termmnates and become svosd The Group has a first lem on all pelicses which are subpct
to paolicy loans.

The carrying ameunts of laans and recervables that are indeddually determined to be impaired at 30 Hevember 2015 was USS20m
12014: US§eEsm)

The Group has a portfolio of residential and commercial mortgage loans which it originates. To the extent that any such loans are
past their dus dates specilic allowance is made, together with a collective allowance, based on historical delinquency. Insurance
receivables are short-term in nature and cover is not provided if consideration is net recermed, An ageing of acccunts rceivable 1s not
provided as all amounts are duee within ane year and cover is cancelled if consideration is not received.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

g
-
i
-
[
=]
a
=
a
L
z
o
B
=
o
E

ANMUAL REPORT 2015 | 193

338/664



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
ooOooood

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Asal As ut

3 Hovernher =0 Nevamisar

1= F111 0d
Cash 1,493 1,067
Cash equivalents L99 748
Total™ 1,992 1835

LY
{1} O camh and cash equnmlonts, LSO (2014 USELETm) ane held o back wei-linksd contracts and LSESSm EOTe. LISERFm] am held by conaolidated
imestmant funds

Cash comprises cash at bank and cash in hand. Cash équivalents comprese bank dépasits and highly liquid short-term investments
with maturities at acquisition of three months or less and money market funds. Accordingly, all such amounts are expecied o be
realisad within 12 menths after the end of the reporting period,

26. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES
The moeement of insurance contract liabilites fincluding labiltes in respect of investment contracts with OPF) is shown as follows:

Year eatded Faar e
W Hovereler W Navembar
LI 015 HL
At beginning of financial year 113,097 103,435
Yaluation premiums and deposits 21,300 20,273
Liabilities released for policy termination or other policy benefits paid and related expenses (13,2400 (12,1700
Fees from account balances {1,241} {954)
Accretion of interest 3424 3442
Fereign exchange movements {7,850} (2.499)
Change in net ass&t values attributable to policyholders 104 2055
Dispasal of 3 subsideary 122} -
Other mevements 118 {2651
At end of financlal year 115,870 113,097

Insurance contract labitities (meluding liabilites in respect of investment contracts with DPF) can alss be analysed as follows

Year ;aded Waar sndad

3 Hoverslier ) NovamBar

L 015 2018
Deterred profit Liabilities and unearmed révense labilites 7,974 7,045
Policgholders’ share of participating surplus 6,348 T.238
Others 101,548 98614
Total 118,870 113,097

194 | AI& BROUP LIMITED

339/664



25, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES frortimndt

Business description

EDINETOOOO

000000000000 0O(E24847)

The table below summarises the key vanables on which insurance and investment contract cash Hows depend.

Fasng
aftecieg oy
hmturs of berel s and conirad raportacle
Type of conines) el herma dnd Condeung COMpEAiGn lor darms cash fiows BeFTIONTA
Trad it nal Parlipating Participateng producis conmshing Minmmum quaranteed benelite = Invesiment Smgapore,
patiwipating  funds protecten with asmangs elerment, The  may be enbanced based an perfermance  Chisa,
Iife ansur snce bt s assured, payable on death ar mveLhment coperonce and = Expomues Malaysia
with (IFF rraburdy, iy be enhanced by athir contad ratioes = Martality
dramlends, the aggregate armunt of = Surrenders
walvichs i deterrmined by ik
g hor massce ol a dsiesct lund ol assels
ani |mbalitics, The tirsng of d sedend
decharatess i ad the ducreton of the
wriurer. Local requlatssns generally
gl a i proparton of
pelryhalder pasticipatan in declared
drimde ds
Othes Parispaling products conmbine Minsmum quatanteed benelibs = Inseiment llong Komg,
pai s ipating protecton with a savings element. The  may ke enbanced based on prrformance.  Thailand,
Bartiness Btk sumassuiad, payable an dealk mveL e nl expe gy and = Fapimii Diher Markels
oa maturiby, may be enhanced by wother concsde rations = ldprialsy
dinadends, the fiming a7 amognt el = Susrenders
whach i a1 the decrelmn ol the mourner
takang into account factors such as
BRI O e N nC e
Traddmnal nen-participating e Benafils paid an death, maturdy, esmhis, dobned mthe smmancy. = Maojtaldy [T
sxhmens or deability that are fmed and  contract, ave debenrreed by the = Lo rbad iy
quarantecd asd mot ab he decrotion ol conbract and aoe rol slkocied by = Lapset
the muder ot porfermance or th = Expenues
peiioarnance ol the costing & a
whale
Accudent and healih These producis prevds mmarbalsly s Pe e bits,, dbne=d on e weurance = ldorialey AR
sxhkmein benelde and nclude healik, conirach, are diterrrmsed by e = b Bed ey
disatiuliy, cralical dinews and accident conteact and ace mot atlecied by + Lapses
cover wrri el period inandn of he = Fapinay
perfarmamce of the contrac & & = Claime
bl AP T
Ll - linfoid Wnit-Linkad contracts combine covings Benelity sre bazed on the = Investment A
with protecion, the cach value of the walug o ibe unimed lends asd et larmance
polcy depending on the value af death benckis = Lapues
uniticed funds = Expemues
= Martalay
Upmensal e The cwttormer pays Nexibbe prorsme Berehis are based an the = bivetdrm nl LT
subpect to specilied limas accumlated  socoond balance and death prrlarmance
e an necount halence which are bz el = Ceediting rates
ciedibed wilth mborect at o fabe e by = Lapaes
the woueer, and a deaih benelit wheh # Expemat
oy be varmd by the cuslormer = MarialEy
Nobe

[1) - Gt than e Group Corporote Gantre segmant
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26, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES icoruiruadh

Methodelogy and assumptions

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

The maost significant items to which profit for the year and shareholders’ equity are sensitrve are markel, insurance and lapse risks
which are shown in the table below. Indirect exposure Indicates that there is a second order impact. For example, whilst the profit
For the year attributable to shareholders is not directly affected by investment income sarmed where the investment risk is borne by
policyholders thor example, in respect of unit-linked contractsh, there 15 a second-order effect through the mnvestment management
fees which the Group earns by managing such investrments. The distinetion berween direct and indirect exposure is not mtended to
indicate the relative sensitivity to each of these items. Where the direct exposure is shown as being “net neutral”, this is becauss the
exposure to market and credit risk is olset by a corresponding movement in insurance contract labilites.

Mt apar or b v ek

Doiwct sprissere
Pasrance snd Hshs s wik
evsadman ] on s sehirted e i L Tagrulesant Frad whvid
Py of okleand by o Balic gt At el Ligrar ks
Traditsenal Farlcipating = Het newlral excepd for - = Nel neutrof encepl bor = s iment = Impact af perebincy on
paila pating funds the msuier s share of ihe inawrars share ol perlamance subpet to latwre dividpedc
life assurance parhicipating wwmstiment  pasticipaling inestimest  somothang threugh = Hariakay
with DPF perfarmance performance drusdend declarations
= Gunraniees = Guaraniees
Dher = Het newlralexcept for = Met neutral except bor = nvesiment performance = Impact of persislency om
[t ] the msurer's chare of the inswrers share of Teturg dividereds
b mnss participaling meestmont  participating imestment = ortakity
periarmange perlormance
= Cuaranlees = Duaraniens
Traditsznial non- partsip ting = Inveslmen| pErlormance = Codraniees = Mot applicable = o rtakidy
life assurance = Coedif remk = Agnel-labadity msmatch s Peramlency
= Ascel-fubibty memateh ek = Harlbidity
ik
Arcabent snd healih = Lats ralw = Invesimenl mrkrnm "‘Hﬂlpﬂlilﬂ! "E|r|'|‘|l‘-c=|!l!l'u:!
= fnnel bbbty mematch = Credd rmk = Iorbdity
sk = Asel-liahility msmatch = Persmteney
Tk
Pensmn = Het neutral = Hat reutral = Prrlormance-related = Parsmlency
= finsel-lughility mmmatch = dsel-labdity mematch ewvesiment management
riek Tk beis
Wit linkoed = Nl neuiral = Mol resral = Perlormance-relaied s Perpistency
wialivaeid management = Maiality
fees
Urirreisil [fo = Bunranleds = lvsliveenl el # = Dpread b warned = Marlalih
= fnnet bability msmatch = Credi rek rale and creditmg rate = Persistency
ik = hgsel-Labilily mematch  to policybalders = Wethdrawals

Ik

The Group is also exposed to foreign exchange rate risk in respect of its operations, and te interest rate risk, credit risk and equity
price risk on assets representing net shareholders’ equity, and to expense nisk te the extent that actual expenses exceed those that
can be charged to insurance and investment contract holders om non-participating business, Expense assumptions applied in the
Group's actuarial valuation madels assume a continuing level of business volumes.
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26. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES [zont )

Methodolegy and assumptions o rond)

Valuation interest rates

A5 at 30 Hevermber 2015 and 2014, the ranges of applicable valuation interest rates for traditional insurance contracts, which vary by
territory, year of issuance and products, within the first 20 years are as follows:

z
s al Agat =
0 Hoveenbor 0 Nowimia =
015 4 z
£
Heng Kang 350% - 7.50% 350% - 7.50% =
Thailand 3.25% - 9.00% 325% - §.00% E
Singapore 2.00% - 7.00% 200% - 7.25% £
Malaysia 3.70% - 8.90% 3.70% - B.90% g
China 2.75% = 7.00% 2.75% - 7.00% F
Korea 3.08% ~ £.50% 3.33% - 450% z
Philippines 2.20% - 9.20% 220% - 7.20%
Indenesia 3.10% - 10.80% 3.10% - 10.80%
Vuptnan BO7% - 12.26% 5.07% - 12.25%
Australia 383% - 7.11% I8I%-T1% -
New Zealand 3.83% - 5.75% 383% - 5.75% 2
Taiwan 1.75% - £.50% 1.75% - 6.50% E
S Lanka 795%-11.00%  9.20% - 1190% 8
g
27. INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES E
Yiear i ot dstufined
10 Howembor B0 Mowarnkar
Lt 2015
At beginning of financial year T.937 B.898
Effect of Foreign exchange movements {170} (71}
Inve stiment contract benefits 1338 44 E
Fees charged (189} 174} ‘f
Net withdrawals and other movements {126} B4} E
&t end of financial year™ 7116 7,937 ;
]
Kb oL
:I 0 irwsstmant confrect liabiliten, USSE34m 018 LSS7E2m | represanis dafanmed fag incoma E

x
]
=
o
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

28. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS AMD ESTIMATES

The table below sets out the sensitivities of the assumptions in respect of insurance and investment contracts with DPF to key
variables. This disclosure only allows for the impact on labilities and related agsats, such as reinsurance, and deferred acquisition
costs and does not allew for offsetting mevements in the fair value of financial assets backing those Labilities,

Awal As

3 Noversler A Novambar

Lshm FOE e
{Imcreasel/decrease in insurance contract Uabilities, increasef{decrsase)

in aquity and profit bafore tax

0.5 pps increass in investment relurn 18 4

0.5 pps decrease in investment return {1m (1 01]

0% increase in expenses 1] (%)

10% increase in mortality rates 27 (21

10% incredse in lapse/discontinvance rates {18 (4 Y]

Future policy benefits for tradibonal life insurance policies ncluding investment contracts with OPF} are calculated using a net
level premivm valuation method with reference to best estimate assumptions set at policy inception date unless a deficiency arises
on liability adequacy testng. There is not any impact of the above assumplion sensitiities on the carrying amount of traditional
lite insurance labilities as the sensitivities presented would not have tripgered a Lability adeguacy adjustrment. Duering the years
preseénted there were not any effect of changes i assumptions and estimates on the Group’s traditional life products.

For interest sensitive insurance contracts, such as universal life products and unit-linked contracts, assumptlions are made at each
reperting date including mortality, persistency, expenses, future mvestment earnings and huture crediting rates.

The impact of changes in assumptions on the valeation of insurance and investrment contracts vath DPF was US$Em increase on profit
{2014 USE3m decreasel

2%. BORROWINGS

Asal Aom it

3 Hovaealier 0 Novamar

Lisgn m0is 201L
Bank loans 23 508
Medium term notes 2,872 2124
Tetal 3,195 29

A2.30 Hovember 2015, the Group did not have assets pledged as security with respect to amounts disclosed as bank [cans above. At
30 Movember 2014, properties with a book value of US$374m and a fair value of LUS$2,135m and cash and cash equivalents and term
deposits with a book value of USS2Tm were pledged as security with respect to amounts disclosed as bank Loans above. Interest
expanse on borrowings i3 shown o note 9. Further information relating to interest rates and the maturity profile of borrowangs is
preseénted in note 37,
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The following table summarises the Group's outstanding medium term nobes at 30 November 2015

o Glals N'.-:lr s 'i-:l-Allt rirast rete 18O
13 March 2013 USSE00m L750% 5 years
13 March 20137 USE500m 3125% 10 years
4 November 2013 HK$1,180m  based upon HIBOR Iyears
11 March 2014 US5500m 2.250% 5 years
11 March 2014" US3500m 4 BTSN 30 years
11 March Z015" US$750m 3.200% 10 years

Mots
{1} Thsrs rmascium torm: rnobes and ighed o The Stock Exctaroe of Hong Hong Limi b

The net proceeds from issuance during the year ended 30 November 1015 are used for general corporate purposes.

The Group hasaccesstoanaggregate of IS$2 .05 billion unsecurede ommitbed creditFacilities, which includes a S$300m mulbicurrency
revalving credit Facility expiring i 2016 and a US$1.75 billion five-year credit facility expiring in 2020, The credit facilities will be used
for general corporate purpeses There were not any outstanding barrowings under these eredit facilities as of 30 Novernber 2015.

30. OBLIGATIONS UMDER SECURITIES LEMDING AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Group has entered into secunties lending agreement whereby securities are loaned to a national monetary authority. In addition,
the Group has entered inte reépurchase agreements whereby securities are soid to third parties with a concurrent agresment to
repurchase the securities at a specified date.

Thé securities related bo thess agresments are not dérecognised from the Group's consolidated statement of financial podition, but are
retained within the appropriate financial asset classification, During the term of the securitie s lending and repurchase agreements,
the Group s restricted from selling ar pledging the transferred debt securities. The fellowing table spacifies the amounts included
within financial investments subject to securities lending or repurchase agreements which do not qualify for derecognition at each
year end:

el At

I Hirwpim b A0 Nl
USEm 2015 pi i [
Dabt securities - AFS
Repurchase agreements 2,522 3243
Debt securities - FVTPL
Securities lending - 299
Repurchase agreements 477 595
Total 3,199 4,140
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECURITIES LENDING AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS joor

Collateral

A% 30 Nowember 2015, the Group had pledged debt securities with carrying value of USETm (2014 US$5m) and held cash collateral
of US%Em (2014: U5810m). Debt securities collateral was not held (2014: USS2m based on the initial market value of the securities
transferred), In the absence of default, the Group does not sell or repledge the debt securities collateral received and they are not
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial pesition,

The Group did not have any securities lending transactions outstanding as at 30 November 2015 The securities lending transactions
cutstanding as at 30 November 2014 were conducted with a national monétary authority on securities denominated in local currency
|ssued by the same authority.

Thi Fallowing table shaws thi obligations under répurchase agréements at each year end:

daal Ag it

H Hovemder 2 Novambar

LERG s L
Repurchase agreements 3,085 3,753

31. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Offsetting, enforceable master natting agreements and similar agreements

Ther Fodlowing table shows the assets that are subject ba offsetting, enfarceable master nelting a gresments and similar afrangements
ateach year end:

Gross
amouni ol H#t amauni

recognised of tnancial Related amounts
i chal Eagls na st olf i thi
Lishitities presenied eonsalidated statement
Gross sef off i the in the ol financie position
uﬂ-lllnlu! el ik el #Hlﬂﬂl‘lﬂ ey
il-d.ll al rhlnal.llI of Bmancial Fiman cial coll labir sl Hel
LIS ansaly pusition position instruments roceived ammat
M Hovermiber 20105
Financial assets:
Derivative assets 73 - FE] (2} 13 63
Raverse repurchase AGredments 155 - 158 {165} - -
Total 228 - s {157} (B} 43
Groaa
st ol Slet @mount:
T ognisad of firarcal Rk D0 SPunts
firancist asuie ol st ol in tro
ligtelitias pracantan i .
e orgolidated shamans
[+ %278 gt it ik 11y 1 3 .
amiucs of ool idstad congol atad of Firrcil. pontion
reccori s glatamard ALEtwmant Larth
Aol ol hireess gl of Hrdardi Frgra ol gtoral Bt
Ls$en h 1 postion pomition irslrurmacts rocanead armend
H) Howvermber 2014
Financeal assets:
Derivative assets 265 - 265 2] 16T 116
Reverse repurchase agreements o - m (mn
Total 385 - J6h (103 {147} 114
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31. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES joortnd

Offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements (oo rusd)

The follewing table shows the Labilitse s that are subject to offsetting. enforceable master nething agreemenisand similar arrangemants
at each year end

Gross .

o e oo Z

L. of linan. =

Seanciad Tiabilithes ::':':m s

assols pressated x

Grow  smtoimme  wte GOl B

recognised Lol Cash B

linsncial ol financial fmancial Finaneial collabsral Hei et

Usgm liabiliti os position posdtion maumenis pledged ammoun| =

4

M Noverrber 2005 E

Finarcial Liabilities: z

Derivative liabilities 695 - 495 (439 {189 a7 B
Repurchase agresements 3,085 - 3,085 3,085 - -
Tatal 3,780 - 3,780 (3,524 {189} &7

Rilited Wrdants

Yot

ool

L

-
=)
x

-
x

g
o]

=

e

é
o
"
=]

i

3 Nevmarbser 2004
Financal Liabilites:
Derivative labilities 2n - n {58) zap -1

Repurchase agreements,
securitios lending, and
similar arrangements 1.153 - 3,753 (3753 -

Total 1964 3,944 (3,849} 20k i)

The Group entéred into enforceable master netting agreements for derivative transactions, as well as the repurchase agreements
and securities lending agreements for debt instruments with varicus counterparties. Except for certain futures contracts executed
through clearmg house mechanism where the settiement arrangement satisfied the |FRS netting ¢niteria, the fransactions under the
enfarceable master nétting agreements and similar agreements invalving the exchange of financial instruments or cash as collateral
do not satisfy the IFRS netting criteria, The provision in the master netting agreement and similar agreements enables a party to
terminate trandsctions early and settle at a net amount if & default or termination event sccurs,

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S
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32. PROVISIONS

Emplopos

LS [ L Total
At 1 December 2013 108 81 187
Charged to the consolidated income statement 15 41 76
Charged te ather camprebensie income g - g
Exchange differences 21} ¥ 5)
Released during the year (3 (e (22}
Utilised during the year (3 (32} (351
Other movements 3 - 3
Ak 30 Mevernber 2014 128 a% 213
Charged to the consolidated income statement B ay "7
Charged ta other comprehensiag intome 12 - 12
Exchange differences 9} {4} (13
Released during the year 2} {5h m
Utilised during the year (191 {4} 59)
Other movemsents 3 {1k 2
At 30 Hevernber 2015 117 128 245

Other provisions

Other provisions comprise provisons in respect of requlatory matters, litigation, resrganisation and restructuring, In view of the
diverse nature of the matters provided for and the contingent nature of the matters to which they relate, the Group is unabie to provide
an accurate assessment of the term over which provisions are expected to be utilised,

33. OTHER LIABILITIES

hsai At

B Hoversler 0 Kovamior

USEm 2015 2014
Trade and other payables 3,032 2526
Third-party interests in consolidated investment funds 1214 1.2
Reinsurance payables &11 ]
Total 4,857 4542

Third-party interests in consolidated investment Funds consist of third-party unit holders’ interests in consolidated investment funds
which ar reflected as a liability since they can be put back to the Group For cash

Trade and other payables are generaily expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reperteng period. The realisation
of third-party interests in investment funds cannot be predicted with accuracy since these represent the interests of third-party unit
helders in consaldated investment funds held o back insurance and investment contract labilities and are subjet to market risk
and the actions of third-party investors.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL AMD RESERVES
LShare capital

&5 3t M Howembar 2018 i at 20 Novaenbeer 2016
Miltion shares is5en Milien shans sEn
At beginning of the financial year 12,048 13,962 12,064 LFHE
Translers fram share premium on 3 March 2014 - - - 1714
Sharesissued under share option scheme
and agency share purchase plan 3 ¥ 1 4
Atend of the financial year 12,048 13,971 12.0465 13,9462

The Company issued 2, 190 404 shares under share option schemes (2014: 1,117,224 shares] and 1,041,890 shares under agency share
purchase plan {2014 nilt during the year ended 20 November 2015,

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year ended 30
Hovember 2015 with the exception of 146,847,524 shares (2014 19404 804 sharest of the Company purchased by and 204 295 shares
{2014: 320.3%0 shares) of the Company seld by the employee share-based trusts, These purchases were made by the relevant scheme
trustess on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. These shares are held on trust far partcipants of the relevant schemes and therefore
were not cancelled.

Dursng the year ended 30 Nowemnber 2015, 14,734,751 shares (2014 20,466,365 shares] were transferred to eligible directars, officers
and employees of the Group from the employee share -based trusts unde r share -based compensation plans as a result of vesting, As
at 30 Hovember 2015, 75,147,538 shares (2004; 73,219,060 shares) of the Company were held by the employee share-based trusts

The transfer of share premium to share capital resulted from the abol®ion of nominal value of shares under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance {Cap 622 which is effective from 3 March 2014 There is not any impact on the number of shares in ssue or the relatie
entitiement of any of the members as a result of this transition

i
g
g

Reserves

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulatrse net change in the fair value of available for sale securities held at the end of the
réperting period.

Foraign currency translation reserve
The foreign curremcy ranslation reserve comprises all foreign currency exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of fareign operations.

Employee share-based trusts

Trusts have been established to acquire shares of the Company for distribution to partscipants in future perieds through the share-
based compensation schemes, Those shares acguired by the trusts, to the extent not transferred ta the participants upon vesting, are
reported as "Employee share-based trusts”

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Other reserves
Other reserves mamly mclude the impact of merger accounting lor busingss combinations under commaon control and share-based
com pensation
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35, NON-COMTROLLING INTERESTS

anal At al

3 Hoversler X Novambar

LFERn s HHL
Equity shares im subsidiaries &% 59
Share of earnings 57 52
Share of other reserves 23 ]
Total 13% 149

34. GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Capital Management Approach

The Group's capital management obectives focus on maintaining & strong capital base to suppart the development of its business,
maintaining the akulity to move capital freely and satsshying regulatory capital reguirements at all times

The Group's capital management function oversees all capital-related actnities of the Group and assists senior management in
making capital decisions. The capital managemaent funcbion participates in decisians concerning assel-liability managemaent, strategic
asset allocation and angoing salvency management This includes ensuring capital considerations are paramount in the sirategy and
business planning proce sses and when determining the ALA's capacity to pay dividends to shareholders

Regulatery Selvency

The Group is in compliance with the solvency and capital adequacy requirements applied by its regulators. The Group's primary
insurance regulator at the AlA Company Limsted (A1 Co.) and Al& international Limited (A0A International) levels is the Hong Kong
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance (HEQCH, which requires that AlA Co. and AlA Intermational meet the solvency margin
réquirements of the Hong Keng Insurance Companies Ordinance (HKICD:. The HEICO (among other mattersl sels minimum solvency
mafgin requirements that am insurer must meet in order to be autharised to carey en insurance business in or from Hong Keng. The
HEOC] requires A& Co. and Al& International to maintain an excess of assets over Liabilities of not less than the required minimum
salvency margin. The amount required under the HKICO is 100 per cent of the required minimum solvency margin. The excess of
assets over liabilities to be maintained by AlA Co. and AlA International required by the HKOCH 15 not less than 150 per cent of the
required minimum solvency margin

The capital positions of the Group's two principal operating companses as of 30 November 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2 Moverber T01S 20 Pecmarnibor 2014
Tatal Regelatery Tl Raguiatory
available minimam Solwency walatlo sl el Zolvericy
LSk capital capitsl raty captal captal ratip
AlA Co, 6,761 1,579 LI6% 4,730 1577 5i27%
ALA International &, 388 1,704 LT ik 1441 1o

For these purposes, the Group defines total available capital as the amount of assets in excess of liabslities measured in accordance
with the HRICO and “regulatery minimum capital” as the required minimum margin of schvency calculated in sccordance with the
HEICO. The sobéency ratio is the ratio of tetal available capital to regulatory minimum capital

The Group's individual branches and subsidiaries are also subpect ta the supervision of government regulators in the prisdections in
which thase branches and subsidiaries operate and, in relation to subsidiares, in which they are mcorporated, The various ré gulators
ceerseeing the Group actively maoniter our focal solvency positions. AlA Co.and AlA International submit annual filings to the HKOCI
of their selvincy margin position based on their annual audited hinancial statements. and the Group's ather apecating units perfarm
similar annual filings with their respective local regulators.
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36. GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE feorinundl

Regulatery Selvency (contirued)

The ability of the Company to pay dvidends to shareholders and to meet other obligations depends ultimately on dividends and
other payrments being received from its eperating subsidearies and branches, which are subject to contractual, requlatory and other
limitations. The various regulators overseeing the inddidual branches and subsidiaries of the Group have the discretion to impose
additional restrictions on the ability of those regulated subsidiaries and branches to make payment of drvidends or other distributions
and payments ta Al Co., including increasing the required margin of solvency that an operating unit must maintain. For exarmple,
capital may not be remitted without the consent from regulators For certain individual branches or subsidiaries of the Group. The
payrnent of devidends, distributions and other payments to shareholders is subpect to the oversght of the HKOCI

Capital and Regulatary Orders Specific to the Group
A5 of 30 Movember 2015, the requirements and restrictions summarnised below may be considered material to the Group and remain
In effect unless otherwise stated

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

Hong Kong Office of the Commissionar of lnsurance
ALA Group Limited has given to the Insurance Authority an undertaking that AlA Group Limited wall:

{1 enswre that (al &A1& Co.and ALA International will at all times maintain a solvency ratio of not less than 150 per cent, both an &n
individual msurer basis and on an AlA Co JALA Internatignal consolidated basisc (bl it will not withdraw capital or transfer any hunds
oF a5560s out of either AlA Co, or AlA International that will cause A8 Co.'s or AlLA International’ s salvency ratio to fall below 150
per cent, except with, in either case, the prior written consent of the Insurance Autharity; and (¢} should the solvency ratio of either
AlA Co. ar AlA International fall below 150 per cent, AlA Group Limfted will take steps a8 s0on as possible to restore & to ot least
150 per cent in a manner acceptable to the Insurance Authority;

[l notify the Insurance Autherity in writing as soon as the Company becomes aware of any person (al becoming a controller (enthin
the meaning of Section Y 1HeHil af the HKICO of AlA Co and AlA Internationad through the acquisition of aur shares traded an
the HKSE; or (b} ceasing to be a controller (within the meaning of Sechon F1Mcii) of the HKICO! of AlA Co. and ALA International
through the disposal of our shares traded on the HKSE;

i
g
g

[l be subgct to the supervision of the Insurance Authority and AIA Group Limited will be required to continually comply with the
Insurance Authority's guidance on the “itand proper” standards of 8 controlber pursuantto Section 802 of the HIKICO. The Insurance
Authority is empowered by the HKICO ta raise obection if it appears to it that any person is not fit and proper to be a controller or
director of an avthorised indurer. These standards include the sulficiency of a holding company’s financial resources; the viabality
of 3 holding company’s business plan for its insurance subsidiaries which are requlated by the Insurance Authority; the clarity
of the Group's legal, managerial and operational structures; the identities of any other holding companies or major regulated
subsidiares; whether the holding comparty, its directors or contrallers ks subject to receiver ship, administration, liquidation or
other similar proceedings or failed to satisty any judgement debt under a court order or the subject of any criminal comvictions
or in breach of any statutory or regulatory requirements; the scundness of the Growp's corporate governance; the scundness of
the Growp's risk management framewark; the receipt of information from its insurance subsidiaries which are regulated by the
Insurance Authomty to ensure that they are managed in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulaticn: and its role in
overseeing and managing the aperaticns of its insurance subsidiaries whbch are regulated by the Insurance Authority: and

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

{re) fullfil all enhancements or impravements to the guidance referred to in subparagraph (is} above, as well as administratne
measures issued Irom time to tirme by the Insurance Authority or fequirements thal may be prescribed by the Insurance Authority
imaccordance with the HKICO, regulations under the HKICO er guidance notes issued by the Insurance Authority from time o time,
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37. RISK MANAGEMEMNT

Risk management framework

AL recognises the importance of sound risk management in every aspect of cur business and for all our stakeholders. The Risk
Management Framewaork (RMF} provides the strscture for identilying, quantitying and mibgating risk scross the Group. An effective
RMF is the key to avoiding the financial and reputational damage that arises from inadeguate or meffective control of the risks in the
business.

Insurance risk
Insurance risk is the poténtial loss resulting from mortality, morbidity, persistency, longevity and adverse expense experience. This
Includes the potential impacts from catastrophic events such as pandemics and natural disasters.

Management of insurance risk starts with prodwect design. Ensuring products meet custemer needs, are falrly priced and clearly
understood is the best guarantee of persistency and customer satisfaction.

The Group manages product design risk through the Mew Product Approval Process where products are reviewed against pricing,
design and operational risk benchmarks agreed by the Group's Financial Risk Committes (FRC). Local business units work closely
with a number of Group functions including praduct management, actyarial, legal, risk & compbance and underwriting. The Group
manitors the perfarmance of new products and focuses on actvely managing each part of the actuaral contrel cyele to minimise risk
In the in-force book aswell as for new products.

Lapse
The risk arises from changes in the rates of policy termination or renewal

Ensuring customers buy products that meet their needs is central to the Group's operating philosophy. Through comprehensive
sales fraining programmes and active monitonng and management of sales activities and persistency, the Group seeks to ensure
that appropriate products are sold by qualified sales representatives and that standards of service consistently meet or exceed
eur customers reasonable expectations. This allows the Group te meel customer needs while also delivering sustainable value to
shargholders,

Risk & compliance maonitor persistency closely through the Business Quality Framework, a joint endeavour of First and Second Line
functigns to understand and mitigate the causes of lapse and to protect the Group against potential misconduct

Expense

The active management of expenses reduces the risk of sctual expenience being adverse companed with the assumptions used in the
pricing of products. Daily operaticns follow a disciplned budgeting and control process that aliows for the management of expenses
within pricing estimates based on the Group's very substantial experence within the markets inwhich we operate

Markidity and Mortality
AlA adheres to well-defined market-oriented wnderwriting and claims guidelines and practices that have been developed based on
extensne historical experence and with the assistance of professional remnsprers,

The Group's actuarial teams conduct regular experience studies of all the insurance risk Factors inits in-force book. These internal
studies vogether with external data are used to identify emerging trends which can then be used to inform product design, pricing,
underwriting, claims management and reinsurance needs.

Through monitaring the dewelopment of both local and global trends in medical technology, health and wellness, the impact of
legislation and general social, political and economic conditions the Group seeks te anticipate and respond promptly to potential
adverse experence impacts on its products.

Reinsurance is used to reduce concentration and volatility risk, especially with large policies or new risks, and as protection against
catastrophic events such as pandemics or natural disasters

Recent initiatives bo manage morbidity risk and improve claims management mclude the promaotion of wellness programmes such as
Vitatity, the establishment of a dedicated Healthcars team to improve customer hed thcane experience and support for mitiatives such
a5 Occupational Rehabilitation in Australia
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT {contnund)

Investment and financial risks

Financial risk is the potential loss resulting from adverse movements in financial markets, changes in the financial condition of
counterparties and in market lquidity to buy and sell investments. The Group is exposed to a range of investrment and financial risks,
including credi risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group manages its expesure to investment and financial nsk within tolerances
agreed by the FRC

The following section summarises the Group's key risk exposures and the primary policies and processes used by the Group to
manage its exposures to these risks.

Cradit risk
Credit Fisk i4 the resk that thied parties fail te meet thel ablgations te the Group whan thiy fall dee. Althcugh the primary saurce of
credit risk is the Group's investment portfolic. such risk can alse arise through reinsurance, procurement and treasury activities.

Credit risk management starts with the asssgnment of an internal rating to all counterparties. The Credit Research team in the
Irve stment Department performs a detailed analysis of each counterparty and recommends a rating. The Group Risk & Compliance
function manages the Group's internal ratings framework and reviews these recommendations and. where approgriate, makes
recommendations for révisions from time to time

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

Walwe at Risk is calculated for each obligor based on its internal ratings. expected Loss and contribution to the credit portfolio: these
measures are used to establish single-name concentration lemits

The resulting matriz of limits is refreshed annually and approved by the Group FRC. These limits cover individual counterparty,
segmental concentration and cross-barder sxposures,

The Inve stment Department has discretion to shape the portfolio within thess credit Limits, seeking further Group approvals through
the risk governance framework whare they wish 1o invest outside them. If certain investments are technically withan credit limits but
there is a specific concern, Group Risk brings these ta the attention of the FRC for possible inclusion in the Group Investment Watch
List

i
g
g

Intarast rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate rk predominantly arises from ary difference between the duration of the Group's Liabilities
and assets, the ALM Mismatch. Since most markets do not have assets of sulfickent tenor to match life mswrance Liabilities, an ALM
Mismatch gives rise te uncertainty around the rednvestment of maturing assets to meet the Growp’s insurance Liabilities.

Management of Interest Rate Risk is complicated by the context in which the relative duration calculations are made. Where local
solvency regimes use market values on only one side of the balance sheet the interest rate mismatch will be very different to the
sconomic view where market values are used for both assets and Labiltws.

Muareover, since most of AIA's savings products allow s to vary crediting rate s, management actions need to be modelied to determine
the extent of interest rate risk at ddferent confidence intervals

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

The impact of options and guarantess can further complicate the picture. with a need to consider the impact of beth rising and falling
interest rates

ALY manages its interest rate risk by considering all these dimensions, especially during product design and asset allocation. Prosent
Walue of & Basis Point analysis is used to highlight mismatches at indsidual pednts in the yeeld curve and Value at Risk is used to assess
the riskiness of these mismatches.

For in-force policie s, policyhalder bonus payout and crediting rates applicable to policyholder account balances are reqularly reviewed,
considering amongst ather things current bond yields and policyholders’ reasonable expectations.

Exposure to interest rate risk is summarised below, which shows the split of financial assets and liabdlite s between variable, fixed and
non-interest bearing investments.
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT pecoerund)

Investment and financial risks fooinued)

Exposure to interest rate risk

The table below summarises the nature of the mterest rate risk associated with financial assets and financial liabdlities. In preparing
this analysis, fixed rate interest bearing instruments that mature or reprice within 12 manths of the reparting date have been disclosed
asvariable rate instruments.

WVariable Fimed Hin-interes!
LS imlmrest rabe inlerash rale bearing Total
30 Revermber 201%
Financeal assets
Leans and deposits 1,009 5,170 3z 7211
Other receivables 183 - 1,458 1441
Debt securities 7,480 6,940 - 104,640
Equity securities - - 27,18% 27159
Reinsurance rece vables - - 287 257
Accroed imestment income - - 1,350 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents 1,826 - 146 1992
Derrative financial instruments - - 73 73
Total financial assets 10,498 103,130 30,495 144,223
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract liabilites = = T.014 TA14
Borrowings ar2 2,723 - 3,195
Obligations under securities lending and repurchase
agreements 3,085 - - 3,085
Other Liabilities 15 - LA42 4,657
Derrvateeg hnancial instrements - - 495 &35
Tetal financial LiabilRies 3,572 2,723 12,453 18,748
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT {contnund)
Investment and financial risks tormroed)

Exposure bo interest rate risk (contirued)
Varmatli Findd mNorkd itanesl
(N> Fap st e TR PRt bagring Tl =
L
30 Nemarbser 2004 2
Financial assets E
Loans and deposits 1,062 5570 22 7.654 =
Other receivables 18 . 1589 1,607 3
Debt securities 7,154 74507 - 102,063 %
Equity securities 26827 26,827 4
Reinsurance recervables 240 240 E
Accrwed v stment income - - 1,385 1,345 f
Cash and cash equivalents 1.674 - 181 1.835
Derivative fimancial instruments 245 265
Total financial assets 5.910 101,477 3.455% 143,534
Financial Liabilities -
Investment contract liabilities - - 1837 1537 %
Borrgwings 958 137 2924 g
Obligations under secunties lending and repurchase &
agreements 31753 - - 3,753 i
Dther liabilities 3% 4,363 4542 §
Dwerivative financial instruments - - - . 2I1 ; E
Total financial Uabilitles 4 870 197 12,53 19,377
Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from changes in the market value of equity securities and equity funds. Investment in equity assets on a long
term basis is expected to provide diversification benefits and enhance returns.

The extent of expesund Lo equities at any time is at the discretion of the lnvestment Department operating within the terms of the
Group's and local business units’ strategic asset aflocations,

Equity prece risk i managed in the st instance through the individual investment mandates which deling benchmarks and any
tracking error targets Equity Limits are alse applied at Group, Business Unait and indii dual fund levels to contain individual exposuses
Equity expasures are included in the aggreqate credit exposure reports on individual counterpariies to ensure concentrations are
avaided

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

‘Within this framewerk the Investment team usesa “Margin of Safety Investment” approach to target value in individuall stock selection,
and they are also permitted o vary equity allocations within a defined range around the benchmark
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT ieontnund)

Investment and financial risks f-ocinued)

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis to the key variables affecting linancial assets and liabilities is set out in the table below. Information relating to
sensitivity of insurance and investment contracts with DPF is provided in note 28 The carrying waluves of other financial assets are
not subpect to changes in response Lo movements in interest rates or equity prices. In calculating the sensstivity of debt and equity
Instruments to changes in interest rates and equity prices, the Greup has made assumptions about the correspanding impact of asset
valuations on liabilities to pelicyholders. Assets held to support unit-linked contracts have been excluded on the basis that changes
In tair value are wholly borme by policyholders, Sensitivity analysis for assets held sn participating funds has been calculated after
allocation of returns ta policyholders using the applicable minimum policyholders’ participation ratios de scribed in note 2. Infarmation
1% pre s nbed o illustrate the estimated impact o prohts and net aidets afising Irem a change in a single variable before Bakang inte
account the effects of axation.

The impact of any impairments of inancisl assers has been ignored for the purpose of dlustrating the sensitheity of profit befors taxand
net assets before the effects of taxation te changes in interest rates and equity prices on the grounds that default events reflect the
characteristics of individual issuers. Because the Group's accounting palicies lock in interest rate assumptions on policy incept:on and
the Group’s assumptions incorporate a provision for adverse devations, the level of movement illustrated in this sensanaty analysis
does not result in loss recognition and so there is not any corresponding effect on liabilites.

M Hovember 2005 0 Movem bar Bt
Impact o et 6F
ned assels e mmats
Impact {helore B Impat foadire tha
o prakil wllects of Qn prafiy Al of
LS bafore tax Eamalson) et oo B b
Equity price risk
10 pér cent increase in equity prices 792 792 B3s 835
10 per cent decredss in equity prces 17921 1792} {838} 1838)
Interast rate risk
+ 50 basis peints shift in yield cunes (137 (4,118} (121 13, 585)
- 50 basis points shift in yield curves 127 4115 121 3.B4B
Foreign exchange rate risk

At the Group level, foreign exchange rate nsk arises mainty frean the Group's operations in multiple gecgraphicak marketsin the Asia-
Pacific region and the translation of multiple currencies to US dollars For financial reporting purposes.

Forgign exchange rate risk is managed in AL& an various levels The balance shest values of sur aperating unds and subsidiaries are
not hedged ko the Group's reporting currency, US dollar

Hewever, assets, labilities and all requlatery and stress capital in each BU sre generally currency matehed with the exception of
heldings of foreign equities, or any expected capital movements due within one year which may be hedged at the discretion of Group
managpement Fortign bond holdings are commonly hedged with crass-currency swaps or foreign exchange forward contracts,

This approach applies to the matching of US dollar and HK dollar assets and liabilities in the Hong Kong busine sses.

Financial Resources held at Group are normally held in US dollars. No atbermpt is made te match the currency of such capital te the
currency of Al4's Required Econcmic or Hong Kong regulatory capital.
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT {contnund)
Investment and financial risks tornroed)
Foreign exchange rate net exposure

United Hong
Satis Kong Thisi Sigapati Malaysian Chiga Kotan x
LS Dalber Dallar Baht Doller Ringgil Rencuinbi Win -
=
0 Hoverbir 2015 E
Equity analysed by original =
curnency 18,726 B804 2,195 {2,841} 1911 3420 1,885 =
Met notianal ameounts of currency E
derivative positions 15,417} 401 1818 .498 (177 {21 984 z
Currency exposure 12,10% 1410 L0132 {143} 1,734 3,399 2,841 4
L
5% strengthening of original E
CurFency i
Impact an profit befors tax 136 10 5 25 7 21 30
Irmpact on other cemprehensive
income {157} 23 196 {33 4 149 112
Impact on total equity {23 =] o0 [1:1] B’7 170 142
-
5% strengthening of the US dollar =
Impact on profit befare tax 134 24 (&) {10h ¥ 115} (21} &
Impact an ather comprehensive g
income {187} =7 1196} 18 1341 {185} 21 w
Impact on total equity 123h {33 {200} 8 871 11700 (142} E
5
&
L g o
(ST Hars Tra Sirmapan Malarnan Chera Hora s
LS Dol ar Dstlar Bahd i Rirdgit Hahitaris Wan
H My 2004
Equity analysed by original
currency 19,254 a0 3188 (24T 1535 2575 2,304
Net notional ameunts of currency "
derivative pesitions [LRL &0 1,665 J.228 1% 573 X
Currency exposure 132078 {10 £ H554 754 1535 2594 2,879 k4
5% strengthening of original E
currency -]
Impact on profit before tax 144 17 5 26 2 23 1} "E"
Impact an ather comprehensive E
incorme (144 (8 236 11 75 107 114
Impact on kotal equity 9 243 37 77 130 Téd
5% strangthening of the US dollar
Irmpact on profit before tax 144 ] () 17 i) 116 (24}
Impact on other comprehensive
InEarmE (144} (7 (239} (28} {78 (114} 1120}
Impact on total equity (] (243 (37} 17T {130} 1144)
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37. RISK MANAGEMEMNT icont nund)
Investment and Financial risks ;:cotinueq

Liguidity risk
ALY identifie s liquidity risk as eccurring in bwo ways, financial liguidity risk and investment fiquidity risk.

Financial liquidity risk is the risk that insufficient cash is available to meet payment cbligations to counterparties as they fall due,
Whale life insurance companies are generally well placed to manage financial liguidity risk on account of the tenor of their Liabilities
the experience of the Global Financial Crisis shews the need to be able to withstand extrermse liquidity shocks.

One area of particular focus in the management of financial liquidity 15 collateral. Again the Global Financial Crisis exposed the nisk to
fimanceal institutions from their commitments to post collateral to counterparties.

ALA reanages this exposure by determining limits for its actritees in the derivative s and repo markets based on the collateral available
within the relevant fund or subsidrary to withstand extreme market events. The available collateral is subject to haircuts and then
compared to the Peak Expesure of the derivatives exposures to give a “Collateral Coverage Ratio™. For repos a further restriction
Is imposad based on the volume and matunty profile of mpas in relation ta the expected pramivm inflow over a given time period
ASSUMING a stress stenario, the "Liguidity Coverage Ratio”

Mare broadly AlA supports s liquidiey throsgh committed bank Facilitbes, usé of the bond repufchase markets and maintaining aceess
to debt markets via the Group's Global Medwm Term Note programme,

Investment liquidity risk occurs in relation to gur ability to buy and sell investments. This is a function of the size of the Group's
heddings relative to the availability of counterparties willing te buy or sell the se holdings at any given time, In times of stress, market
losses will generally be compounded by ferced sellers seeking unwilling buyers.

Hewmver, investment liquidity risk has become maore significant since the Global Financial Crisis as new requlations have led banks and
dealers o reduce inventary levels and market-making activity.

While e insurance companies are characterised by a refatively low need for liquidity to cover thase of their liakilities which are
directly linked te mortality and morbidity, this risk is nevertheless carefully managed by continuously assessing the relative liguidiy

cf the Group's assets and managing the sze of indradual holdings through limits

Due aller Duw slter
Diie is aA# FEar B years
Mo fimed R YRl thraugh through D allisr
LS Tolal malurity or less. live years e yars len years.
30 Mevemmber 201%
Financial assets
Loans and deposits 71 2,385 it 1,365 458 2175
Other receivables 1461 53 1,534 e ] 1
Debt securities 104,440 - 37e2 16,964 28,388 55,508
Equity securities 27,159 27,16% - - - -
Reinsurance receables 257 - 287 - - -
Accrued investment income 1,350 B 1,361 1 - =
Cash and cash equivalents 1992 - 1,992 - - -
Derivative financial instruments 73 - 43 3 ] 1
Total 144,323 29 406 9,75% 18,422 28,852 57485
Financial ard insurance contract liabilites
Insurance and investment contract
liabilities {net of reinsurancel 121,501 - {1,020 LE3 6,910 115,128
Borrawings 3,195 = 150 1.308™ 1,240 LA
Obligations under secufities lending
and repurchase agreements 3,085 - 3,085 - - -
Other Liabilities 4,457 1214 345 i5 3 30
Derivatiee financial instruments 595 = 28 59 e 10
Total 133,133 1,214 5,408 2,108 8,551 115,455
Mot

(13 Inctudes amoderte of LSEREm Falling don after 2 wars through S yoar
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37. RISK MAMAGEMENT {rontnuad)
Investment and Financial risks jcooenoedp
l.iqu]ﬂitr risk icontirmad

Do aftes Do s
Do ify o e §vi I
o kxed ol T ety fthrough D aftar z
Lt Fatml vt rity o LS. five paors B yaarn dmr e E
k-3
3 Hovemnber 2004 g
Financial assets =
Loans and deposits 7,654 2437 797 1477 502 2341 E
Other receivables 1,607 45 1,525 5 2 7 -]
Debt securities 102,063 - 3322 18,724 26,457 53,328 ;
Equity securities 28,827 8527 -
Réinsurance recaivables 240 : 240 : : ::
Accrued investment incame 1,345 4 1,335 [ -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,835 - 1635 - -
Dervative financial instruments 265 - 2 158 7 5
Total 143635 A4 2154 20,383 27,200 55,681
Financial and msurance contract lahilines E
Insurance and investment contract ]
liabilities fnet of reinsurance) 1158592 - (47 @37 8. T83 110,659 z
Borrewings 293 410 1.537" 437 490 ;
Oaligations under securities lending é
and repurchase agreements 3,73 - 3,753 - - %
Dther liabilities 4,542 1221 3,248 33 i x "
Dersvative financtal instruments 21 - 13 58 132 ]
Total 131,032 1.221 5,457 2,565 9393 111,395
Nots

{1} Includes amaonts of LEETE 300 faling due aftor 3 peard thivag b5 e

38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates funded and unfunded delfme d benele plans that provide life and medical benefits for partcipating employees after
retirement and a lump sem benehit on cessation of employment The locations covered by these plans include Hong Kong, E-r-g:pwn.
Malaysia, Thailand, Taiwan, indonesia, the Philippines, 51 Lanka, Korea and Vietnam. The latest independent actuarsal valvations
of the plans were at 30 November 2015 and were propared by credentialed actuaries, All the actuaries are qualified meambers of
professional actuarial organisations to render the actuarial opinions. The actuarial valuations indicate that the Group's chligations
under these defined benefit retirement plans are 41 per cent (2004; &6 per centh coverad by the plan assets held by the trustees. The
fair vakue of plan assets as at year end at the date of valuation was US$43m (2014 US$E3m], The total expenses relating to these plans
recagnised in the consolidated income statement was USESm (3014: USE14m)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

Defined centribution plans

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension plans. The total expense relating to these plans in the current year was
USS60m (2014 USEa0m). Employees and the employer are required to make monthly contributions equal to | per cent to 22 per cent
of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service and subject to any applicable caps of menthly relevant income
in different jurisdictions. For defined contribution penséan plans with vesting conditions, any forfeited contributions by employers an
behall of employees wiho leave the scheme pricr to vesting fully in such contributions are used by the employer to reduce any future
cantributions. The amount of forfered contributions used to reduce the existing level of contributions 13 not material.
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation plans

During the year ended 30 Hovember 2015, the Group made turther awards of share oplions, restricted share units (RSUs! and
restricted stock purchase units tocertain directors, officers and employees of the Group under the Share Ophion Scheme (S0 Scherme),
the Restricted Share Unit Scheme (RSU Scheme) and the Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP. In addition, the Group made further
awards of restricted stock subscription units to eligible agents under the Agency Share Purchase Plan [ASPP}

R5U Scheme

Under the RS0 Schems, the vesting of the awarded R5Us is conditional upon the eligible participants remaining in employment with
the Group during the respective vesting periods. RSU awards are vested either entirely after a specilic period of time or in tranches
cwer the vesting period, For RSU awards that are vested in tranches. each vesting tranche is accounted for as a separate award for
the purposes of recognising the expense over the vesting period. Feor certain RSUs, performance conditions are alse attached which
include bath market and non-market conditions. RSU's subpgect to perfermance conditions are released to the participants at the end
of the vesting period depending on the actusl achwvement of the perfarmance conditions. Dwring the vesting period, the participants
are not entitied to dividends of the underlying shares. Except in jurisdictions where restrictions apply, the awarded RSUs are expected
to ke settted in equity. awards that the Group has the legal or consbructive obligation to settle in cash are insignidicant to the Group,
The maximum number of shares that can be swarded under this scheme 5 301,100,000 2014; 307,100,000}, representng 2.5 per cent
(2014: 25 per cent} of the numbser of shares in isswe at 30 Nevember 2015

foar mded fonr endad
3 Hoveesler 50 Nevambar
ik Hk
Humber of shares
Restricted Share Units
Outstanding at beginning of financial year 58,590,419 44,002 084
Fowarded 17,933,544 19,64, 367
Ferfeited (B, 788 442} (4,585 447}
Vested (14,087,745)  (19.912.607)
Ourstanding atend of financial year sa,aau,m EIB,E.‘u;?E.:IE
50 Schema

The objecties of the 50 Scheme are Lo align eligible participants’ interests vwath those of the shareholders of the Company by allowing
eligible participants to share in the value created at the point they exercise their optiens, Share option (500 awards are vested either
entarely after a specilic periad of tifme of i tranches over the vesting period appraximately three to fve years, during which, the
eligible participants are required to remain in employment with the Group. For S0 awards vested in tranches, each vesting tranche is
accounted for 25 a separate award for the purposes of recagnising the expense over the vesting period, The swarded share options
expire 10 years fram the date of grant and each share option entitles the eligible parteipant to subscribe for one ardinary share,
Except in jrisdictionswhere restractions apply. the awarded share options are expected to be settled in equity. awards that the Group
has the legal or constructive obligation to settle in cash are insignificant ta the Group, The total number of shares under options that
can be awarded under the scheme is 301,100,000 2014, 301,100,000k representing 25 per cent (2014 2.5 per cent) of the number of
shares in issue at 30 November 2015,
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Inforrmation abeut share options cutstanding and share options exercisable by the Group's employees and drectors as at the end of

the reporting peried is a5 Follows:

=
Yaar ended g™ oradad E
M Movember 2015 30 Mormisar 2L =
Waighted Vi b E
avedage BT -
Hember of EERFCinE price Bumiar of axareita prit o
share options M share opidres iy g
=
Share options ;
Outstanding at beginning of hnancial year 17,105,919 0.7 mnan .08 E
FAwarded 553787 £1.73 66TE 445 3765 é
Exercised [2,190,404) 2768 N.N7.2240 P ] 5
Farfeited or expired (395, 282) 35.48 [Tab 4231 b ]
Dutstanding atend of financial year L0458, 104 i3.2% 37,105,219 AT
Share options exercisable at end of inancial year 17,817,579 27.7M §E63578 2136
-
The weighted average share price of the Company at the date the share opticn was exercised was HRE4S 32 for the year ended 30 %
Movember 2015 {3014 HKE39 461, g
The range of exercise prices for the share options outstanding as of 30 Novembar 2015 and 2004 is summarised in the table below ;
=
Year ended s afckad E
30 Movember 2016 30 Nowembar 206 =
Waighted Warghtad ]
aAVeTEgE O
Hurmber ol rémaEnng Beurniar of TR i My
share splioss  conlrachial lide ahan optord corire: basl 1ify
mitslanding e et 5l utstard g
Range of exercise price
HER2A - HK$IS 28,008,527 &£.09 HAITATE 107
HER3S - HE$ES 4,550,428 B.27 &.6TE 665 L& 4]
HERas - HEES5S 5.899.149 .28
Qutstanding atend of financial year 40,558,104 &9 27,105,717 TA4&7

ESPP

Under the plan, eligible employees of the Group can purchase ordinary shares of the Company with qualified empleyes contributions
and the Company will award ane matching restricted stock purchase unit to them at the énd of the vesting period for each two
shares purchased through the qualified employee contributions (contribution shares). Contribution shares are purchased from the
open markel, Durng the vesting peried, the eligitle employess must hold the contribution shares purchased during the plan cycle
and remain employed by the Group. The level of qualified employee contributian ks limited to not more than 5 per cent of the anmual

FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

basic salary subject to 3 maximum of US$15.000 per annum, The awarded matching restricted stock purchase units are expected to
b settied in equity. For the year ended 30 Nowember 2015, eligible employees paid USE12m (2014 USH10m) to purchase 1,952 0BS

ordinary shares{3014: 1693066 ordinary shares! of the Company
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION tznnii e

Share-based compensation plans fontiross

ASPP

The structure of the ASPP generally lollows that of the ESPP, the key difference being that the eligible agents are required to pay a
subscription price of US$1 to subscribe for each new share in the Company at the end of the vesting period, Under the plan, eligible
agents of the Group can purchase erdinary shares of the Company with qualified agent contributions and the Company will award
one matching restricted stock subscription wndt to them at the end of the vesting period for 2ach two shares purchased through the
qualified agent contributions (agent contribution shares): Each restricted stock subscription unit entitles eligible agents to subscriba
far one new share of the Company. Agent contribution shares are purchased fram the open market. During the vesting persad, the
eligible agents must hold the contribution shares purchased duning the plan cycle and maintain their agent contracts with the Group
Thi awarded matching restricted sotk subscription units are expected to be settled in equity, The lovel of qualifed agent contribution
Issubpcttoa maximum of US$15,000 per annum. For the year ended 30 Movember 2015, eligible agents paid USE14m (2004: USE12m]
to purchase 2,361,638 ordnary shares (2014; 2,222,174 ordinary shares) of the Company

Valuation methodelogy

The Group utilises a binomial lattice model to calculate the fair value of the share opticn awards, a Mente-Carlo simulation madel
and/ar discounted cash fow technique to caleulate the fair valve of the RSU, ESPF and ASPP awards, taking into account the terms
and conditions upen which the awards were made, The price volatility is esimated on the kasis of implied volatility of the Company's
shares which is based on an analyss of historical data since they are traded in the Hong Kong Steck Exchange. The expected life of the
share options is derrved from the cutput of the valuation model and is calculated based on an analysis of expected exercise behaviour
of the Company's employees. Thi estimate of market condition for performance-based RSUS s based on ané-year historical data
preceding the grant date. An aflowance for forfeiture prior to vesting is not included in the valuation of the awards.

The fair value calculated For share cptions is inherently subpctive due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model
utilised.

Vear ended 3 Nevember 2015
ESPP ASPP
resiriched rostricted
abotk sinck
Share RFestricied purchase sabscription
_optis Ghamiscecsrat e B
Assumptions

Risk-Free intere st rate 141% B&%-0.80%* 0.44%-0.90% 0.85%
Velatility 20% 20% 20% - 25% 0%
Dividend yietd 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2%
Exercise proce (HK$) 47,73 nfa nfa rfa
Share option Life {in years) 10 nfa nfa nfa
Expected Life {in years) T84 nfa nia nfa

Weighted average fair value per oplion/
unit at measurement date (HKSH 10,18 %27 41,87 iB.98
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION tcontrua
Valuation methodology jonired

Yont arded 30 Novarrbar 2014

— e

costrictod ruaseic e .

Lhock EEDch =

Sharg Raestmctind AurEtErn b plia =

options T Ui urihe Ui b g

g

Assumptions =

Rigk-free interest rate 2146%-222% D51%-059%' D03T%-094% D.44% E

Volatility 25% 5% 25% - 26% 25% =

Dividend yield 1.2% 12% 1L.2% 1% E

Exercise price [HIE) 3756 - 3045 nfa nia fifa H

Share aption Life (in years) 10 nfa nfa nia i@
Expected Life {in years) 7.54 nfa Afa nla

‘Weighted average fair value per option/

unit at measurémant date (HKE) 10.43 077 B85 H.b4

' Apemicatls b0 RS wilh madioat condlicre,

The weighted average share price for share option valuaton for awards made during the year ended 30 Hovemnber 2015 is HK$47.15
[3014: HK$37.500. The tetal fair value of share opbions awarded during the year ended 30 November 2015 is US$S8m (2014 US$¥mi

Recognised compensation cost
The total recognised compensation cost (net of expected forfeitures) related to various share-based compensation awards made
under the RSU Scheme, S0 Scheme, ESPP and ASPP by the Group for the year ended 30 November 2015 is US$T9m (2014 US$84m).

i
g
g

40. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MAMAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Directers’ remuneration

The Executwe Director receres compensation in the farm of salames, bonuses, contributions to pensicn schemes. long-term
Incentives, housing and other allewances, and benefits in kind subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations. Bonuses and long-

o
term incentives represent the variable components in the Exécutive Director’' s compensation and are linked to the performance of the =
-
Group and the Executive Director. Details of share -based payment schemes are descrded in note 39, i
=
Salariem. [
FlewEnies Lhare: Puslen il
Direcisr’s  andbenelin based schema Dthar  Inducement E
I T nking” Beruses papmanis’ et ibutisn veneins oo, Toral =
=
F3
Yo sndind 3 Nivembms 2115 L
Exvoedme Derecior
M. Mark Edwand Tucker - RVIDSTT  LANLE00 BILIETS 105,833 - - V4,00 BB
Todal - L1HSETY  LANE 88 BILIETS 105,813 - - 14794684
Wi
[V 5 et ok P ot Barsafits Tor housl ng. madcal anadlifa |nesranes, £hal dmen aducation, oulsnd profeseiorsl mami=enhi b comseey Car G Sl

) inciude S0s and RSUS swarded Besad Upon the fair valua a8 grant da b ssswumn ng Fooi muam perirmance [vets am ochised
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&0. REMUMERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMEMNT PERSOMNMNEL |:oonirund
Directors’ remuneration j-coamed)

Salaneh,
E Thare- Egrain
Dereetient's wad berdm [ =] Lo ] ] [
usy [ n wng® Do papme®  conirbutan temm ity Tem Vit
Ty anieid J0 Mowembar D016
Espitwe [hrechar
M, Mark Edvward Tacker = HOR2ABE LA B0 BERL050 S ETE - = A5FFI 04
Tetal - FOSTAES  L2544D0  BJBVA950 BRLETE - - 153TT9H
Notes

{1} Etincludes non-cash beradi ts for housing, med cal ard Life ifsurares, childran sducetion, duet and professionsl resibership and company ¢ar,
) Ireducks 0% ahd RELUS swviemiad Bataed po Eha faer valus 5f granl duts Biaursing man mum performeno s e o0 pchisved

The remuneration of Mon-executive Directar and bndependent B on-executive Directors of the Campany at 30 Hovember 2015 and 2014
are included in the tables below

Salarien,
sliwances Saare- Pragien
recior's i Benefis batsd ot [ T ]

{1 e ke Bommdes il esriibadisa Benufits than Totid
Ve raitil 32 Mwvmbier 01
Moenecitae Dhacior
Mr. Edmund Sze-Wing Tee™ 573,368 95,383 = - - - - L8, TN
Independent Non-carcutee

(hrecrors
M, Jack Chak- Kweng So Fra il ] - = - - - - 20,000
M € hung-Kang Chow (e - - - - - - 206,600
Mz Boho Barese Harnicon X35, 00D - - - - - - 235,000
Mz, George Yong-Hoon Yeo 210,000 - - - = - = 10,000
M. Mahamed Anman Yalya 185,000 - - - - - - 185,000
Prolessor Lawionca

Juen-Yee Lau 90,000 - - - - - - 1%0,000
M5, Swee-Lunn Tan™ 54,700 - - - - - - 55,740
Tetal 1,675,128 75383 = = = = = 1,¥710.511

Koles
(11 Itindudes non-cash bl is for h-ol.u-;:rq dub mambarship and modical iresrance and ST PEHTY S

GY  LSE22 382 which rogrosands remuraraton to.Mr. Ederand Spe-Weng Tea i respect of his sarvices os director of B subsidiany of the Company e (rctugiasdl
in hgfoes
3 s Seves-Lian Too was appointsd 26, indepandant Non- executive Diractor of the Cormpany on 14 Aot 3015
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£0. REMUMERATION OF DIRECTORS AMD KEY MANAGEMEMT PERSOMMEL -crcrundh
Directors’ remuneration icoommwed)

Sl
Al vrarices Shate Pritisd
Bursstorn  aedhenshs Cr) schama Othar  lecucemant
ug [ - e [ pr— PaTen GmTimten hassfiin =Y Tatal
Z

Your andnd X Neveste 2004 >
Mer-emrou e Drechor E
My, Edrraind Spe-Wing Tea™ 576,126 s ~ ~ ~ - - £48,007 =
Inntoaredel Wan-cxecul e :

furectors E
Wr, Jack Chak- Kwang So 20000 - - - - - 20,000 —;
Mr. Chung-Kang Chew 2015600 . - - - - . 15,000 d
Me. John Barrie Harrison 225,000 = - = : = - mso0 S
Mr. George Yang-Boon Yoo 20T ATS = - = = - = T AT E
Mr. Mohamed Aman Yabya™ 151,918 = = = = = = 14190
Prolecsor Lawnenco

Jusn-Yoo Lau™ wEN nLN
D, in Ko™ L ek | - - 1,232
De. Marengchai Akrasanee™ 16249 - - TEF 430
Total 1 BG4 RS 2,880 1540, 734
Nobes

:
g
i
:

[ W incluties rnon- etk banafits for housing, dubl memBsrstp ond misdal e nos and cofmpang ta

2 USSIE ERE which repoesants romuieralcn b M Edmhd Sre-Wia Tés in focpect of b serdsds as Sractor of o subsidany of the Compaiy v indudad
v g fee g

Mr Morarmad ARman Tatys und Profeisor Lawsanos Lada-Too Loy wers sopoinied Sf Indepandant. Not-gadoutive Diractors of e Company on 24
February B4 ara 18 Septemine ML reshe:iwly

{6} D o B D7, M POl AN e Fai i e DT et Nor aac i DN roctorn ol th Com ooy with adfact Brem 30 May 20716 80 T Saptambar
PONE, remmactinaly

£l

Remuneration of five highest-paid individuals
The aggregate remuneration of the five highest-paid indriduals employed by the Group In each of the years ended 30 Hovemnber 2015
and 2014 is presented in the table below.

an
B
=
Saliries, E
allpwance Share- Paelon i
Dirwcter’s and Banelna B PETty e Indugemsee ".E
i tat i idna™ Borutet piymantt’  coaiributien Baneifn . Toaal i
=
Year anded s
10 Hovembar 2015 - T2HAB) 8937400 16712087 26 24F = - AR126. 0 E
o

50 Hovember 2004 = S.840510 B58407T  NE01&0T3 197 28 - S A

Nabes

L

[ 2005 monecash bar fitg irchuts Moo madieal gesd life insuraneal modesl ehack-un, chldren aoucmks
ERr and parauisites

b and prodesgional momigrghip, omparny

2NE non-camh bangdiite i ndude hotsing . readicol =0 ke ingurance, childnan education; dubsd profestional raenbaretin, oom pony Cxrand perguis
i

Incluids 208 and RSl swarded o the five hegheet-poid ondeduile besad wpon 1he Bair value o grand dafe susuming ma mam pacfarmancd (ovsls are
mcF e

g
-
o
I
&
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40. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMNEL f:orirued
Remuneration of five highest-paid individual s (controsd
The emeluments of the frve iIndividuals with the highest emolumaents are within the Fallowing bands:

Yoar seded Tonr snced

3 Hoveelier ) Nevaminar
HHE 015 “te
27,500,001 o 28,000,000 - 1
28,000,001 to 28,500,000 1 -
28,500,007 to 27,000,000 = 1
23,500,007 o 34,000,000 1 -
37,000,001 to 37,500,000 - 1
38,000,001 to 38,500,000 1 -
40,000,001 te 40,500,000 1 -
45,500,001 to £7.000.000 - 1
116,000,001 te 114,500,000 1 -
116,000,001 to 116,500,000 - 1
Key management personnel remuneration
Key management persannel have been identified as the members of the Group's Executive Committee.

Yoar eaded i sk

3 Hoveenler F NevemBne
=5 5 103
Koy management compensation and other expenses
Salaries and other shert-term emploves benefits 26,821,543 22.012.074
Post-employment benefits - defined contribution 501,124 420,51
Post-employment benefits - medical & life - -
Other long-term benefits -
Share-based payments 23,074,292 24,031,010
Total 49,398,959  4b.484 005
Nobs

1 Include S0s and REUs mwarded to the key managemant perecrned baned upon the far value af grant dete assurming manmum performance lovels @ne
@ Hivid

The emoluments of the Hey Management Fersannel are within the following bands.

Yiear ended Foar andi

1 Hovemier ) Neroarnbar

Lsh L Futh[
Below 1,000,000 1

1,000,007 ta 2,000,000 & 2
2.000,001 ta 3,000,000 2

3,000,001 to 4,000,000 2 5

4,000,007 va 5,000,000 2 1
5,000,007 to 5,000,000 1

5,000,001 to 7,000,000 = 1

Ower 7,000,000 1 1
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remuneration of directors and key management personnel is dsclosed i note 0.

L2, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments under operating leases
Total future aggregate minkmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

s a1 Al

20 Hpwpmbar A0 Merarniar

L s =k
Properties and sthers expiring

Mot later than one year 7 B2

Later than one and not later than five years 21 13

Later than five years £2 54

Total 260 174

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of propertses and iterms of office equipmant held under operating leases. The loases
typecally run for an initial period of ane to ten years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments
are usually reviewed at the end of the lease term to reflect market rates. Hone of the leases include contingent rentals

Investment and capital commitments

B al At

T Mowember 20 Mosrarmiar

(1= 2016 F.ai 1]

Mot later than one year 523 427

Later than one and not later than five years 3 &
Later than five years -

Total 526 433

Inve stment and capital commitments consist of commitments to invest in private equity partnerships and other assets.

Contingencies

The Group i$ subject to regulation ineach of the geogra phical markets in which it oparates from insurance, securities, capital markets,
pension, data privacy and other regulaters and is exposed to the risk of regulatory actions in response to perceived or actual mon-
compliance with regulaticns relating te suitability, sales or underwribing prachcoes, claims payments and proceduwres, product design,
disclosure, admmistration, denial or delay of banefits and breaches of fiduciary or other duties. The Group believe s that these matters
have been adequately provided for in these financial statements.

The Group is exposed to legal precesdings, complamts and other actions from its actinties including those arsing from commercial
activities, sales practices, suitability of products, policies and claims. The Group believes that these matters are adequately provided
for in thess fenancial statemants

The Group is the reinsurer in a residential martgage credit reinsurance agreement covering residentizl mortgages in Australia, Dus
to a change m law, further cessions under this contract ended in July Z008. This remsurance was hully retroceded to a subsidiary of
American International Group, Inc. and this retrocession was terrninated in February 2002 on & run-off basis. The Group is exposed
to the risk of losses im the event of the fallure of the counterparty retrocessionaire to henour its outstanding obligations which is
mibigated by a trust agreement put in place after the atore said termination and a novation in September 2015 of the run- off chligatons
to another subsidiary within the Amercan International Group, Inc. which in contrast to the prior retrocessionaire has an investrment
grade rating issued to it by credit rating agencies The prancipal balance outstanding of mortgage laans to which the reinsurance
agreerment relates were approximately USS484m at 30 Movember 2015 (2014 US$824mi. The labilities and related reinsurance
assets, which iotalled US§4m 2014 USEim), respectively, ansing frem these agreements are reflected and presented on a gross
basis in these financial statements in sccordance with the Group's accounting pabicies. The Group expects bo fully recover sm ounts
outstanding at the reporting date under the terms of this agreement from the retrocessionaire.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

43. SUBSIDIARIES
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The principal subsidiary companies which materially contribute to the net income of the Geoup or hold a material element of its assets

and liabdlities are:

LT ot
Prsce ot Lot B L vl o
Inpargoraian Prindpal e NCTS Growg s WIS
HanTid ol sty O acHwER HESL b & AT Daa i et EE S P TR T L
Al Company Lensted™ Hong Hong Inssirance 151,049 88 1 ardwany shares 100% - 100%: -
for USES, %462, 084,000 moued
shasie camial
AL Infernate nal Limaled Berrmuda Indmirance 3008 600 ordinary sharrs 100% - 100% -
ol USHLH0 each
A Austwali Lindted Ausiralia Indurance 112 REH 00 andinady Lhares 100% - 100% -
of 481 cach
M0 Pension and Trostes Co. L, Baibh Virgin Trasteeship 0300000 ordinary shares 0% - 100% -
bulands ol USEE gach
A fhd Malayia Imwranee  TETA38,174 osdinay shares 100% - 100% -
ol BM L eack
A4 Sirgapore Prvate Lirmited Singapore Insmirance 1,374, 300,001 ordinary shares 1% - 100% -
ol %1 cach
PT, &A1& Financial Indonesia Insamance AT F11,032 ondinasy shares 1% - 100% -
of fp ! 000 each
Thee Philsppine American Lde Philippines. Inamirande 199 540,671 ardinasy sharen 100% - 100%
and Ceneial |eur ance of PHP0 cach and 539079
{PHELAM LIFE! Company easury shares
M Vet Lile Indeance Vielnarm I st Contnbuled capdal o 0% = 100 % -
Company Linated YD Re4, 200, 000,800
i Insurance Lanks FLC S Lanka Insarance Contnbuied capatal ol L% P ¥il% 5%
LRRSIT 020 54
Rayshore Developrent Group BrimhYogan  Iovestivent 100 ordmary shares of % 1% % 1%
Ligmabed Elands halding US$1 each
Company
BPPhilam Lie Assurance Philippines. Ingurance Va9 53979 ondinany shares 5% 4% 1% 7%
Corparatmn ol FHP | each @nd & 000
Ireakury Ghares
Al Remsurance Limsled Berrmuda Reipswrance 750 0800 comornn s hares of 100% - 100% -
USET each
Notes

1} Tha Compeny's subsicary

L3 AL of the sbova b o8 ane oodi lod by Pricowsa rhoutsloopirs.

All subsidiaries are unlisted @xcept ALA Insurance Lanka PLC which is listed on the Main Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
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DVERVIEW

44, CHANGE IN GROUP COMPOSITION

Disposals
On 23 October 2015, the Group disposed its entire interest in AlA General Insurance Lanka Limited, a wholly ewned subsidary of ALA
Insurance Lanka FLC, for LKR3.2 billson (approximately USSE2 Tmi. There was not any gain of loas on disposal of this subsideary

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 Decermber 2015, the Group announced an agreerment, under which the Group will increass its shareholdering in Taza Al4 Life
Insurance Cormpany Limited from the current level of 26 per cent to 4% per ceént. The completion of the transaction is subject to
securing all necessary regulatory and governmental appravals

On 25 February 2014, the Beard of Directors proposed a final deidend of 51,00 Hong Kong cents per share {2014 34,00 Heng Kong
cents per share).

46, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
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A al
0 Mowombar

Lrsks Ll

ASSELs

Inve sbment in a subsidiary 18,742 19,741 w

Deposits 48 E

fusailable for sale - debt securities 736 - ﬁ

Loans tofamounts due from subsidiaries 2,948 1,345 s

Other assets 13 35 E

Cash and cash equivalents 38R A §

Total assets 19,839 18,186 E

Liabilitias

Barrowings 3,070 1126

Other liabilities 2 %

Total liabilities 3,271 2,245

Equity

Share capitsl 12,971 13,242 “

Employes share-based trusts {321} {284} E

Other reserves 155 13 =

Retained earnings 2,786 202 ;

Amounts reflected in other comprehensive income (22 & E

Total squity 16,568 15,521 z

Total liabilities and equity 19,839 18,184

Wota

11} The Snancial infermsaton of e Compaty ahoul d e rebd [noonfuncion wWih the congoliasted finand s satements of e Group

Approved and authorised lor 1350 by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2016
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Mark Edward Tucker Edmiund Sze-Wing Tes E
Drector hrector E
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HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

47. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
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Ameusls
refecied
Employes in olber
Share  phare-based Oher Retsingd  comprebeasive Talal
LSEm cagilal Erusis ESErYES TG income sty
Balance at 1 December 2014 13,762 (286} 13y 202 & 15,921
Met profit - - - 1,497 - 1,497
Cash flow hedges - - - - 5 H
Fair value losses on available for
sale financial assels - - - - {31} {31
Dividends - - - {B14) - 141
Shares issued under share oplion scheme
and agency share purchase plan 9 - - - - k]
Share-based compensation - - 7 - - i}
Purchase of shares held by employee
share-based trusts - 198} - - - (78]
Transfer of vested shares Irom employes
share-based trusts - 63 163} - - -
Balance at 30 November 2015 13,971 321} 155 2,TBS 122) 16,548
AMCUTRE
4
Effpliyas
share: Dixgad nignly Prtne e ot
(=5 Irusts b e AATTE G, L] DTy
Balance at 1 Decomber 2013 13558 2741 135 1,652 - 15471
Net profit - 1.13% 118
Cash flow hedges & &
Dividends - - [65%) - 15B7)
Shares issued under share option scheme 4 - - - i
Share-base d compensation - - fix] - - B3
Purchase of shares held by employes
share-based trusts - 1) o La f]
Transter of vested shares from employee
share-based trusts i {79
Balance at 30 November 2014 13,962 286 139 2102 ] 15,921
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OVERVIEW

4B. EFFECT OF ADOPTIOM OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES
‘With effect froen 1 December 2015, the Group revised #s accounting pelicies for real estate as fallows:

+  Property held for own use ks carred at fair value a1 last valuation date less accumulated depreciation. Previously, property beld
for own use was carried at historical cost less accumislated depreciation. When an asset is adjusted for the latest fair valus, any
accumubated depreciation at the date of valuation s eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset The movement of
fair values is generally recognised in other comprehensive income, When such properties are sald, the amounts accumulated in
other comprehensive income are transferred to retained earnings. The revised accounting policy is applied prospectively from the
date of adoption. resulting in increases of US$450m and US$259m in total assets and total equity, respectively, as of | December
2015.

Property hild for cwn use i valued by independent professsonal valuation firm at least annually to ensuse that fair valise of the
revalued asset doesnot differ materially from its carrying value. Changesin fair values are recognised in the other compre hensive
inceme and reported in the consclidated statement of financial position as property revaluation resere.

FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REVIEW

In conjunction with the revised real estate accounting policies, depreciation expense for property held for own use is presented as
‘cther expenses’ for IFRS reporting and this presentation change will be applied retrospectively. Operating leasehold land relating
ta property held for own use will continue to be carrsed at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (if any! and
be reporited as part of ‘oiher assets” on the consolidated statement of financial position,

*  Imvestment praperty, mcluding land and buildings, is inmially recognised at cost with changes in fair valves in subsequent perrods
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Operating leasehold land relating to investment properties is reclassified from
‘sthér assets to investment properties’ accordingly on the consolidated statement of financial position. The rewsed secounting
policy will be applied retrospectively.

The Group believes measuring property held for own use and investment property in accordance with the revised accounting polecies
(based on gquidance in LAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 145 40 Inve stiment Peaperty, respectivelyl provide reliable and mare
relevant information to the users of the financial statements than that measured based on cost model under the current accounting
palicy
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

48. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcesnmd)
The guantitative effect of the adoption of the abeve revised accounting policies on the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
years ended 30 Hovember 2015, 2014 and 2013 as well as the six months ended 31 May 2015 and 2014 are set out as follows:

{a) Conzelidated income statement

Vear ended
30 Hovember Fear ended
i 1 Redrosgeciive 3 Hewimber
(s previously adjustmenis for s
L repertedd  Reoassilicaiions LS 40 {As adpsied}
Revenue
Terrmoeer
Pramiums and fad incama 19,781 - - 19,781
Premiums ceded to resnsurers {1,165) - - [1,145)
Net premiums and fee income 18,4614 = = 18,614
e stment return &, Lb2 - 73 4,535
Other operating revenus 194 - - 194
Total revenue 23,174 - 73 23,3147
Expenses
Insurance and investment contract benefits 16,124 - 2 16,134
Insurance and investment contract benefits ceded (7421 - - (Fa2)
Mk imsurance and irvestment contract banafits 15,192 - 2 15,194
Commission and other acquisition expenses 2,L68 - = 2468
QOperating expenses 1,658 (20 - 1,638
Frnance costs 182 - - 152
Other expenses 45 ) @6 ws
Tetal sxpenses 19,924 - [24) 19,400
Profit befere share of profit from asseciates and
joint venture 3,350 - 7T 34T
Share of profit from associates and joint venture - - - -
Profit befors tax 3,350 - 7 3L47
Ineome tax expenss sttributabie to policyholders’ returns (33} - - (13
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ profits 3,17 - 97 34614
Tax expense 16381 - 119 [&55)
Tax attributable to policyholders returns 13 - = Bx
Tayx expense attributable to shareholders’ profits {&03) - 1% [&22)
MNat profit 2714 - 78 2,772
Net provit ahiributable to:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 2,671 - Th 2,Te5
Non-controlling intérests 23 - 4 27
Earnings per share (U535}
Basic 0.1z - . 0.13
Difiated 0.22 - G 0.23
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OVERVIEW

4B. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES dinrnrmad)
{a) Consolidated income statement (cooiruea

onded
I My =
it -
A provicasly >
LIS rigorte  RedimaSoaliors L
£
Rovenua E
Tust rerind B
Premiums and fee intame 9,381 - - 9,341 %
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (565] - 1565) o
Net premiums and fes income BT B.774 E
Investment Feturn 5.051 - (L] 5,070 z
Other operating revenue m - - m
Total revenus 13538 - 17 13,947
Expenses
Insurance and investment confract benehits 9 4ES - 1 9 4ET .
Insurance and investment contract benefits ceded &771 - - &7 E
Met insurance and investment contract benefits '?‘B[I'? 1 ‘?‘EIII:I &
Commission and other acquisition éxpenses 1168 1,148 g
Oparating expenses 801 (1 791 =
Finance costs EO = &0 %
Other expenses 212 10 3 209 g
Total expenses 11270 (2h 11,258
Praofit bafore share of profit from associates
and joint venture 2456 H 2,569
Share of proht from associates and jgint venture
Profit bafore tax 2458 3 2589
Ineeme tax expenss attributable to policyholders” returns 1803 - - {80}
Profit befere tax attributable to sharehelders’ profits 2558 - 1l 2629 E
Tax expanse 465) 183 e S
Tax attributable to palicyholders” returns ] - - 40 'E_
Tax gxpense attributable to shareholders’ profits |405) &) {411) =
Nat profit 2193 : 5 2218 s
Net profit 2t ributakbie to: E
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 2,180 - 24 2.204
Maon-contrelling interests 13 - 1 14
Earnings per share (US55}
Basic 01e 0g
Diluted 018 018
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HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L8. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcer sl
{a) Conselidated income statement (corinues
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Wiar eniod
Ratrosnec v 30 Movermbar
amimends for 14
Lisgen R gl o 1AS &l A% sl gt
Revenus
Terrmawer
Fremiums and fee incoma 16,225 18,225
Fremiums ceded to reinsurers .73 11,1730
Met premiums and fee income 17.052 - - 17,052
Investment return 8,204 - 0 B 424
Other operating revenus 177 - 177
Totsl revanue 25.433 20 25,6532
Expenies
Insurance and investment contract benefits 17 5826 - & 17,834
Insurance and investment contract benefits ceded 110241 (1,024
Mat insur ance and investment contract banefits o B0 & 16,510
Commission and other acquisition expenses 2,139 - - 113
Operating expenses La3b nm 1419
Finance costs 03 - - 103
Other expenses “20 17 (24} 413
Total axpenses 21,102 - [18) 21,084
Profit befere share of profit from asseclates
and jint venture 433 - 238 4569
Share of profit from asspciaves and joint venture 14 - - 14
Profit bafors tax 4,345 - 138 4563
Inceme tax expense attributabie to policyholders’ returns (125 {1254
Profit bafore tax attributable te sharehelders’ profits 4220 138 & A5E
Tax expénse BN - (62} 219
Tax attributable to policyholders returns 125 - - 125
Tax expense attributable bo shareholders’ profits (52 - (420 (794}
Mat profit 3488 - 194 3554
Ner profit ahirbotalbe to:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 3,450 - 194 644
Non-contredling interests 18 - 2 0
Earnings per thare (USS)
Basic 029 - ot 0.30
Diluted 029 - oo 0.30
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OVERVIEW

4B. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES dinrnrmad)
{a) Consolidated income statement (cooiruea

S o
ki
:
[ A provcasly =
LIS rigorte  RedimaSoaliors L
£
Ravenua E
Tust rerind B
Premiums and fee intame B,407 - - E.407 %
Premiums ceded to reinsurers {552) - {552) o
Net premiums and fes income 7555 7.555 E
Investment Feturn 3425 - 44 3,671 z
Other operating revenue (] - - ]
Total revenus 11,569 - 1] 11,615
Expenses
Insurance and investment confract benehits 8,119 - 4 8,123 .
Insurance and investment contract benefits ceded 1487 - - 1487} E
Met insurance and investment contr act benafits 7432 & 7634 &
Commission and ather FCquisition sxpenses L] - 893 g
Dparating expenses 785 9 56 =
Finance costs 40 = e 40 %
Other expenses 17% 8 3 175 g
Total expenses 7409 %) 9,500
Praofit bafore share of profit from associates
and joint venture 1.760 55 2.015
Share of proht from associates and jgint venture k] &
Profit bafore tax 1.965 55 2020
Ineeme tax expenss attributable to policyholders” returns 7 - - {71}
Profit befere tax attributable to sharehelders’ profits LB%4 - 55 1,949 E
Tax expanse & (3 wy S
Tax attributable to palicyholders” returns T - - T 'E_
Tax gxpense attributable to shareholders’ profits 1339 - (13 {352) =
Nat profit 1555 : 2 1597 s
Net profit 2t ributakbie to: E
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 1.546 - 41 1587
Maon-contrelling interests () - 1 LU
Earnings per share (US55}
Basic 013 012
Diluted 013 0132
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L8. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcer sl
{a) Conselidated income statement (corinues
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Yaur orded
0 Mo e g i @i
204 Rabrospoctive ) Mowambar
ke g QPR sl vioch
Revenus
Terrmawer
Fremiums and fee incoma 16 466 16,568
Fremiums ceded to reinsurers 1959) {739
Met premiums and fee income 15,707 - - 15,707
Investment return 6,030 - 124 6,154
Other operating revenus 155 - 155
Total revenua 1 892 124 22014
Expenies
Insurance and investment contract benefits i5.299 - {1 15,298
Insurance and investment contract benefits ceded {8141 [T
Met insur ance and investment contract banafits 14 4B2 (1% 14,482
Commission and other acquisition expenses 1.934 - - 15934
Operating expenses 1537 {163 1519
Finance costs m - - m
Other expenses 340 18 (21} 37
Total axpenses 18365 - [22) 18,343
Profit befere share of profit from asseclates
and jint venture 3927 - 146 3473
Share of profit from asspciaves and joint venture 14 - - 14
Profit bafors tax 3540 - 144 BLBT
Inceme tax expense attributabie to policyholders’ returns &7 (L]
Profit bafore tax attributable te sharehelders’ profits JA454 144 35640
Tax expénse (6921 - (24} {118}
Tax attributable to policyholders returns 47 - - 4T
Tax expense attributable bo shareholders’ profits (4453 - (24 (T3]
Mat profit 24849 - 122 257
Ner profit ahirbotalbe to:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 2,824 - 115 290
Non-contredling interests 5 - T e
Earnings per thare (USS)
Basic 024 - ot 0.25
Diluted 024 024
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4B. EFFECT OF ADOPTIOMN OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES {enemrmiad)

{b) Consolidated statement of financial position

i

Assats
Intangible assers
Inve stments in associabes and joint venture
Property. plant and equipment
Inwe stment propercty
Reimsurance assets
Dederrod acquisition and origimation Costs
Financial investment s:
Loans and deposits
Bailable for sale
Diebit securities
At fair value through prafit or Lass
Debt securities
Equity securities
Derivative financial instruments

Deferred tax assets
Current tax recoverable
Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Liabflities

Insurance contract liabilities
Investment contract liabilities
Borrowings

Obligations under securities lending and
repurchase agreements

Derrvative financial sstruments
Provisions

Deterred tax labilitogs

Current tax Liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Labilities

Equity
Share capital
Employee share -based trusts
Other reserves
Retained earnings
Fair value reserve
Fareign currency translation reserve
Froperty revaluation reserve
Others

Amounts reflected in other comprehensive income

Total equity attnbutabie to:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited
Naon-controlling interasts

Tatal equity
Tetal liabilities and aquity

enmasly
riparieds Reclasilcalions

EDINETOOOO

000000000000 0O(E24847)

st
Retrospasclive ) Movember
adjusimenis bor M

A5 &0 1 sl slodi

1834 - - 1,834
127 - - 137
500 - 79 579

1,384 244 2,029 3,459

1,852 - N 1,452

17,092 - - 17,092
7211 = - 7211
80,940 = - 80,940
23,700 - - 23,700
27,159 - = 27,159
73 - - 73
139,081 = = 139,083
L] = <l 9

&5 - - 45
3892 {244} 28 34674
1992 - = 1992
167 622 - 2,13 169,758
115,570 - 9% 115,949

7114 - - 7014

3,195 - - 3195

3,085 - = 3,085
455 N - £95
245 - - 245

2,964 - 155 3,109
245 = - 245

4,857 - - 4,657

138,082 - 254 138,334
13,5871 = - 13,9
(321 - - (321)
(11,978 - % (11,978
24,708 - 1586 26,294
4414 - - FAATS
{1,381} - 183 {1,38%)
= = 140 140

4] - - (12
3,021 = 132 3.15%
29,401 = 1,718 31,119
138 - 184 03
29540 = 1882 L2z
187,822 - 2,134 168,758
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

48. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcesramd
{b) Consolidated statement of financial position (contruad)

s ot
H May g at
015 TR e e T My
[z prosrcusly acrimants for e
LPSn mgorted  Retosfesion 105 &0 [ sttt
Aagets
Intangible assets 2134 - 2135
Investments in associates and joint venture 141 - 141
Praperty. plant and equipment 517 L 37 574
I stment property 1432 220 mm A543
Reinsurance assels 1436 - 1,625
Deferred acquisition and origination costs 16,909 16,509
Financial investments:
Leans and depasits TATY TATH
furailable for sale
Debt securities 50,309 80,309
Az fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities 24379 24,319
Equity securities 31332 nan
Derivative inancial instruments 168 168
143,459 143,659
Deferred tax assets il 1
Current tax recoverable 3® - - 38
Other assets 3927 (320} 24 amm
Cash and cash equivalents 1.655 : i 1.455
Total assets 172,060 7092 174,152
Liabilities
Insurance contract Labilites 116,463 103 114,704
Iveestment contract liabilities B.050 - 8050
Borrowings 3193 - 3193
Obligations under securities lending and
repurchase agreements 3554 3654
Derivative financial instrumants an an
Provisions Fal - 218
Deferred tax liabilities 3154 147 3am
Current tax liabilities 347 T
Other liabilities 4192 : 4292
Tetal liabilRies 140, 162 50 140,412
Equity
Sharé eapital 13,957 - 13947
Employes share-based trusts (3211 [
Other reserves {12.m3 - 112013
Retained earnings 24 488 153 26022
Fair value reserve 5830 - - 5,830
Fareign currancy translation reser (194} 3 {19%]
Fraperty revaluation resercg - - 141 141
Others 21 - (21
Amaudnts rellected in other comprehensne incame 5534 = 144 57
Tuontad enguity st b fadie fov
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 3,712 1,460 33432
Hen-controlling mnterests 146 162 108
Total equity 31,898 : 1862 33740
Total liabilities and equity 172,060 2,092 174,152
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4B. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES fiornmad)
{b) Consolidated statement of financial position (cooined

Retrotpactm >
{As promcesly sdpstmants (o =
LS remortad - el EeaSeatiors 145 &0 -
Assats E
Intanaible assets 2,152 > : z.152 =
Inve stments in associabes and joint venture 131 - - 12 g
Property. plant and equipment 541 - 57 568 -]
Inwe stment propercty 1,364 KT 1.7 1639 ;
Reimsurance assets 1457 - - 1,657 g
Deterred acquisition and origination costs 165%3 . 16,593 é
Financial investmants: =
Loans and deposits 1654 - - 7,654
dvaitable for sale
Debit securities TR 44 - - T E4
At fair value through prafit or Lass L
Debt securities 24.31% - - 24,319 ]
Equity securities a7 - ~ 28 521 E
Derivative financial instruments 265 - - 265 z
138 809 - - 135 509 -
Deferred tax assets L] - - ] =
Current tax recoverable 54 = * 54 §
Other assets o B (244 2 351 E
Cash and cash equivalents ) 1835 - = 1835
Total assets 166,919 - 2,070 168,969
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 183097 - 105 113,202
Investmant contract liabilities 1837 7937
Borrowings 2934 - 2.934
Obligations under securities lending and i
repurchase agreements 3.753 3,753 E
Derivatie financial nstruments 21 - - 21 -
Frovisions 213 - 213 ‘E
Deferred tax liabitities 307 - 143 322 3
Current tax Labilities 198 - - 198 %
Other liabilities 4542 - - 4,542 E
Total liabil#es 135,964 = 248 136,212
Equity
Share capital 13942 - - 135962
Employee share-based trusts e ] - - {2B4)
Other reserves {11.994) - - (11,594
Retained earnings 228N - 1512 24,343
Fair value reserve 6078 - 4,078 E
Foreign currency transiation reserve 227 - 7 234 E
Property revaluation reserie - - 142 142 2
Others i - - 110 =
Amounts reflected in other comprehensive income 8293 - 149 6,442 "E‘
Totad egrity @t nibutabie o =
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 20,805 1681 FLALT E
Non-contrelling interests 14% - 141 310
Tatal eguity 30,955 - 1522 ».777
Tatal Liabiitie s and equity 166,91% - 2,07 164,969
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

48. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcesramd
{b) Consolidated statement of financial position (contruad)

Bt
I My FL Rt v As
s pevreicsty afumtmands lor o iy 0L
LS reportedl  Rec pesfications 185 L0 [Ax mcjsshadh
Assets
Intangible assets 2015 - 2115
Investments in associates and joint venture 2 - nz
Property, plant and equipment Lhi - 55 519
Ivvestment property 1375 a7 1B 4531
Reinsurance assets 1.623 - - 1623
Deferred acquisition and origination costs 16,250 15,250
Financial invastments:
Leans and depasits 1378 1374
fvallable for sale
Dehbt securities TG T Mé
At fair value through profit or loss
[ebt securities 23971 23,57
Equity securities 27234 - 27,234
Derivative financial instruments 359 39
130,708 - 130,704
Deferred tax assets 1] 10
Current tax recoverable &3 - - b3
Other assets 3808 1337h % JABE
Cash and cash equivalents 2039 - 2,039
Tetal assets 195,553 1,699 160,448
Liabilities
Insurance contract babilites 108710 LIk 108,819
Incestmant centract liabilities B57S 8575
Borrowings 2932 P r)
Obligations under securities lending and
repurchase agreements 2,908 - 25906
Derivative financial instruments 113 - 13
Frovisians 184 - 184
Deferred tax liabilities 2482 114 25%8
Current tax liabilities 47 - 7
Other liabilities 4121 - 4121
Tatal liabil#ties 130,374 23 130,557
Equity
Share capital 13961 13941
Employee share-based trusts (2921 e
Other reserves (12,025} - (12,023
Retained earnings 2174 1,359 2533
Fair value reserve &5%0 - &350
Fareign currency translation resene b22 9 431
Froparty revaluation reseros 143 143
Qthers -
Amounts reflected in other comprehensive incarme 5212 152 5,384
otz equity attributalibe to:
Shareholders of ALA Group Limited 5,030 1311 9,941
Nen-controlling inlerests 149 161 30
Tatal equity 517 1672 23,851
Total liabilities and equity 158,553 1,695 160,448
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{b) Consolidated statement of financial position (cooined
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OVERVIEW

N

(e, prrvd cueily dit
(1= "0 reportedy  Recdmsdeutiorn 1A & Az adpuatady
Assats
Intangible assets 1,321 1,321
Investments in associates and joint venture %3 - 73
Property. plant and equipment LB - 48 528
Inve stment property 1.12% N7 1,735 2180
Reinsurance assets 1.7 - 137
Deferred acquisition and originalion Costs 1575 15,734
Financial investment s:
Loans and deposits TAEL 7464
Available for sale
Debt securities 54,763 44,743
At fair value through profit of loss
Dbt securities 22560 22,560
Equity securities 26,102 26,102
Derivative financial instruments Lt &5
121,354 121,354
Deferred tax assets b 4
Current tax recoverable 4 - '
Other assets A543 N7 & 3242
Cash and cash equivalents 2.4 1314
Total assets 147,402 1,79% 149,201
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 103438 ED 103,514
Ivwestment contract liabilities BATE B.49E
Borrowings 1.950 1.950
Oblbgations under securities lending and
repurchase agreements 1.88% 1.66%
Derivative financial instruments B9 B9
Pravisians 187 - 187
Deferred tax liabilities 2030 w8 2028
Current tax Liabilities. 242 - 242
Cther liabilities 4054 &, 054
Total liabilities 122575 178 122,753
Equity
Share capital 12044 12,044
Share premium 1214 1916
Employes share-based trusts 274) 1274
Qther reserves 111,995 111.995)
Retained sarnings H.070 1318 21,388
Fair value reserve 2270 2270
Farsign currency tran#ation resere 457 12 5E9
Property revaluation reserve iy 1
Others 41 [£4]
Amaounts reflected in other comprehenssve income 2912 143 J0&s
Todial inguidy it ribntalio to;
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 24,482 1,441 28,143
Nan-contrelling interests 145 140 305
Total equity 24,827 1,621 4,448
Tatal Lisbilitias and squity 147,402 1.799 149,201
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L%. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPOMN LOMNG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS
Effective fram 1 December 2015, the Group revised its definition of operating profit to include the expected long-term investrment
returns for equitie s and real estate. The change does not affect net profit or shareholders’ agquity

The long-term nature of much of the Group's operations means that, for management's decision-making and internal performance
management purposes, the Group evaluates its ro sults and 1S operating segments using a financial performance measure réferred to
as” operating profit”, Under the revised definition, operating profit mc ludes the expected long-term investment returns for investments
in equities and real estate based on the assumptions used by the Group in the Supplementary Embe dded Yalue Information

The Group delines operating profi afer tax as net profit excluding the fallewing non- operating ie s

= short-term Auctuations between expected and actval investment returns related to equities and real astate;
* pther investment expersence (including short-term Fluctuations due to market factors); and

+ other significant items that management cansiders to be non-aperating income and expenses.

The Group considers that the revised presentation of sperating profit enhancesthe understanding and comparability of its performance
and that of its pperating segments. The Group considers that trends can be more clearly ide ntshed without the fuctuating effects of
these nan-aperating items, many of which are largely dependent on market factors.

QOparating profit is provided as additional information to assist in the comparison of business trends in different reporting perads on
8 consistent basis and enhance overall understanding of financial performance. The revised definition will be applied retrospectively
when presenting in future reporting pericds,

In addetion, the Group revised certain aspects of its segment reporting as follows:
* Shareholders allocated equity for each repartable segment includes foreign currency translation reserve and others; and
*  Goodwill is included in the Greup Corporate Centre segment as oppesed 1o being allocated to the other reportabile segments.

The tables below set aut the impacts of including the expected long-term investment returns in operating profit is as fallows:

Vour ended

20 Movemnbar Impact &l Year ended

2015 ehangd il 3 Hevimbir

s previously preparalios 015

L= reporbed basis 1A wdjmsindh

Oparating profit bafore tax ER: LG 4,320

Tax on cperating profit befors tax (456} {80} [T35)

Opar ating profit after tax 3,229 54 3585

Dperaling profit after tax attributabie to:

Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 3,209 T 3554

Wan-controlling interests 20 ) Fi
Operating profit after tax per share (US$H

Basic 0.z7 003 0.30

Dituted 0.27 .03 0.30
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49. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPOMN LONG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS (cortirean E
S Ml
3 e
o 51 My
utl z
Ly eI Az ndusstngd =
Oparating profit before tax 1780 2n FAL A E
Tax gn cperating profit before tax l:ff-Bl (391 13_':73?_ E
Operating profit after tax 1440 L 1,812 E
L=
Chperriadineg proded afer tax smfrlutsle to: 3
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 1430 148 1,798 E
Non-controlling interests 10 & 14 E
Operating profit after tax per share (U5%)
Basic 014 0.0 0.15
Difuted [T ) 0.0 015
Yo arvied E
L E
Fatit r
s prreioosly 4
Ushm e tted) _g
Oparating profit befors tax 3504 414 3918 ‘E
Tax en operating profit before tax (574 [LE] 16471 E
Operating profit after tax 2925 Jab 3.271 B
Dpivrabwy profed atter fax mfnbotadle fo
Shareholdaers of AlA Group Limited 2910 338 3,248
NHon-contrelling interests 18 B 23
Operating profit after tax per share (US$)
Basic 0.24 0.03 0.2
Dituted [F ) 0.3 027

382/664
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L%. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPOM LOMG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS {-ortirus
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S endinid e

raies] Sy mohte

51 May Inmpact of andad

T (e i 1 May

s provously presaratior ML

I.-ﬂ:'n r::-_.'\-'.h"ml (=11 I;A-:'.r_sp.'iw-:l?

Oparating profit belors tax 1760 190 1,950

Tax en operating profit before tax [295) (28} {323}

Operating profit after tax 1445 182 1,627

Cyrerading profi atfer fax strbtaie to:

Sharehelders of AlA Group Limited 1457 158 1,415

Haon-controtling interests B 4 2
Dperating profit after tax per share (US$)

Basic 012 o 013

Diluted 0.2 om 013

Y anaed

50 AR ITier | v o e

bl ] Chafgif 0 NervaiiLaF

s prdreously préparation 204

LS repearyid] i (A chumtidd

Oparating profit bafore tax 1082 408 3,490

Tax on operating profit before tax 15441 a7 {633}

Oparating profit after tax 2514 341 2,657

Operating profd after tax mtnibutalie te:

Sharahalders of AlA Group Limited 2506 ks 283

Hon-cantrotling interests i B 18
Oporating profit after tax per share (US$h

Basic 021 0103 024

Diluted .21 a3 024
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OVERVIEW

L9. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPOMN LONG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS (cortiran
& reconciliation of operating profit after tax reflecting the expected long-term investment returns to net profit (including impacts
described in note 48] 15 a5 Follows:

Your saded tgar andad Tiar dsafigdt
30 M be S0 Wk i b ) Mo x
s s 2013 -
LSt As adfjusbed) 1As omtadh Az ocdpmstodh >
Oparating profit after tax 1585 an 2E57 E
MNon-operating items, net of related changes in insurance and E
imvestrment cantract liabilities %
Short-term Ructuations in investment experience related bo equities and %
real estate (net of tax of: 20015: USETm; 2014: USHEELIm; 2013 USELTmE TT e 148 ]
Other neon-operating investment experience and other items E
inet of tax of: 2015 US$36m; 2014; US$i63im; 2013, US$12m) 78} __8l B z
Net profit 2792 3464 257 N
Cperating profet after tax attrnbu tabie to:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limbted 1555 3248 2,839
Non-contralling intérests Fi) 23 18
e el 3 frabul g Foe
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 2,765 ERT 293
Heon-controlling interasts 27 20 xn

-
=)
x

-
x

g
o]

=

e

é
o
"
=]

i

205
LS s pdpsied

Operating profit after tax 1812 1627

Nan-cperating items, nat of related changes in insurance and investmaent
contract l:abilithes:

Shert-term fluctuations in investment expersence related to equities and

real astate [net of tax of: #ix moenths ended 31 May 2015: US§HEELm; b

six months ended 31 May 2014: USE2im} il 1] é
Other non-operateng investment experience and other iems =
{net af tax of- six months ended 31 May 2015: US$34m; E

six months ended 31 May 2014 USE2Tim) 131 58 <

Mat profit 2218 1597 kS
:

e

Cperating profd alter fax afnbutae to:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 1.7%8 1418
M-un-rqnl:r\nEling interests 14 12

Wi sl 3P riteif el Po
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 2204 1567
Non-contrelling interests 14 1}

:
-
o
I
&
]
o
z
o
i
z
o
=
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS AKD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L%. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPOM LOMG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS {-crtirusi)
The tables below set out the segment anatysis of including the long-term investment returns in eperating profits:

Group
Heng Other Corporabe
Lisgen Kong  Thailand Sisgapore Halaysia China Korea  Markets  Centre Tolal
Year ended 3 Hovember 200%
A adpested
ANP 1,263 520 471 b Fd 438 248 T5E - 3
TWFRI 5118 3324 2,283 1826 2028 208 32W0 = 1RETE
Nat premiums, fee income and
other operating revenus
(net af reinsurance cedod) 5,040 3,320 3,356 1,479 1.710 1,502 2,004 1 18812
Investment return 1,!56-&_ 1,090 '5'56 ; E_E-l!n a4 -:.53 ; 564 3_11' 8,143
Tetal ravenue 406 4410 L3117 2236 28551 1956 2548 ER{ T
Net insurance and investment
contract benefits L4671 2686 3258 1558 1494 1,312 1,248 2y 16,232
Commission and ather acquisition
[ e B5E 1 81 183 145 mn T - 2448
Operating expenses 248 177 154 154 224 143 b 169 1438
Finance costs and other expenses 74 7 14 i1 Lk ¥ a7 a2 297
Total expanses 5362 3494 3BO0% 1908 20TL 1495 2044 24% 20435
Share of proft from associates
and joint venture - - - - - - - - d
Operating profit befors tax 1,242 P8 GOz nr &77 281 524 71 4320
Tax on operating profit before tax [1-14] [235) (78} (58} {#3) {603 [RRL ] (8] (735)
Operating profit after tax 1,156 681 L6 169 384 b )] 405 63 3585
Oporating profit after tax wtrbutabio fo.
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 1147 481 L2 287 384 m 287 43 3558
Man-cantralling interests k] - - F - - 18 - 2%
Koy operating ratios:
Expense ratie L% 5% &T% 85%  11.40% T0%  11.2% - 8%
Dperating margin 26.3%  2T.46% 22.0%  179% Z3S% 12.9% 160% - 21.T%
Operating return on shareholders’
allocated equity 20.2%  16E%  1B2%  1TT% 161%  TLI% 148% = 13.4%
Group
Heag Other Corporais
=l Keag Thailand Sngepere Malaya China Korea  Markets Comlre Talal
Year ended 30 Hoverrder 2015
- e s Bl
Assets belore investmentsin
associates and joint venture 45,2656 24,788 30,133 12473 17091 14245 16006  9.450 149421
Investments in associates and
jeint venture - - 1 B - - 130 - 137
Total assats 45,265 24758 30,135 12467% 17091 14245 14,136 9.450 169758
Tetal liabilities 3,135 200246 ITEFI 1T 14033 11683 12402 2,960 138,338
Tetal equity TAH O A 2480 1372 308% 2B&2 73 L4M0 31.432
Shareholders’ allocated equity 5713 3479 2247 1,362 &4 1B 2424 4,502 26,706
Het capital fouthfin flows (850] [708) 132%) {183) 1) a1 {8g 1,371 {B24)
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OVERVIEW

49. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPON LONG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS (coreiread)

Harg Dirar Corporte
LiS&m Hong Thadard Sngeeom’  Masyma Crira Moren Marsats Cardra Tipin
Sax months ended 31 My 2015 ;‘
- A adjrsted =
ANP 540 254 X5 138 b} 132 387 - 1,878 E
TWPRI 22N 14632 1,141 250 Ll 1065 1573 - 5433 E
Net premiums, fee income and g
other operating revenus 2
[net of reinsurance ceded 2,170 1623 1.540 522 vl | m 340 2}  BETT =
I stment return 767 557 457 294 38 228 290 158 3,070 E
Total ravenus 2937 2180 1,997 11684 1,237 1003 1,250 157 11,947 E
Net insurance and imvestment “
contract benefits 1,506 1311 151 B2E EB15 ) &05 (X 7652
Commission and ather acquisition
GEPINSES a3 303 143 £l 7 118 177 1,145
Operating expenses 17 B9 5 Ed 103 M 176 &0 ™
Finance costs and other expenses 45 19 ] & 4 5 17 41 145 ¥
Total expentes 2,307 1,72 1,757 1,005 Ll 873 375 e %754 E
Share of profit from associates E
and joint venture - - - - - - - - -
Operating profit before bax 430 458 240 181 138 13 s » L E
Tax on eperating profit before tax 140 {115} {39} k] 147} {21 471 (41 {379} =
Opaerating profit after tax se0 3 20 145 " 79 208 B 1812 b
perating profit aiter fax attrdndable fo:
Shareholders of AlA Growp Limited 565 343 201 144 k| ¥ 200 o 1,798
Hon-contralling interests 5 - 1 g 14
Koy operating ratios:
Expense ratio 5% 55% b.6% B3N 104% L7 112% - 5.2% an
Dperating margin 27TR  IE1%  210% 1B 240% 12I%  175% 2. i
Cperating return on sharcholders’ =
allocated equity 0.1 15%%  161%  1B4%  161%  10E%m  4%% = 13 [
e ‘E
Hewes 8 e I'J:.-rn.::e':&.{l i
(1.5 Worey  Traland  Sirgapors - Molmyes Chira Korea  Markotz Gankrg Tirtal E
Pernod ended 31 May 2015
= Mg adjusbed
Assets before investments in
associates and joint ventura §54877 25930 20483 WAL 1T0E1  M44E2 186X 8846 1T40M
lrwé strments in 4 ssociatés and
Jeink venture - - 1 7 - - 133 - 141 =z
Total assets 45672 25910 30484 14731 17081 1444627 TETEE BE4E 174152 -
Total liabilities IA84 20758 2TMET 13212 14280 11841 12ab4 2742 140412 %
Tatal equity _BSIE BITE 2303 1,519 280 2621 4002 &106 33,740 z
Shareholders’ allocated equity 5000  &201 2567 1,479 2.622 1873  274% 61011 27402 2‘
Het capital louthin flows (&2 1400} {168} {21} 21 a4l (8751 E
=
o
-
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4%. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPON LOMNG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS (comiruss)

Group
Fang tar Corporata
g Kong  Tholand Sngepore  Malaysa China Worea  Marets Carnire Total
Year ended 30 Movember 2004
- s adpstod
ANP 952 572 489 20 m 380 474 - 3,700
TWPI 4330 333 33 2084 1,784 2.205 3133 - 192
Net premiums, fee income and
other operating revenue
[net af reinsurance ceded) 136 31mMm 2.685 1886 1,665 1402 1,655 2 1n2e
Iegstment return 1.3 1,084 215 424 545 459 E3 2N 5564
Tetal revenue 551% 4477 3800 2512 2213 2,061 2,438 2 23093
Net insurance and investment
contract benefits 3435 2817 L&47 1836 1,494 1.403 1,301 {2} 15,153
Commission and other acquisition
RXPEN S0 473 375 285 141 144 240 am - 2,139
Operating expenses kL] 172 153 175 210 155 a3 162 1,619
Frnance costs and other expenses a7 et 17 15 g B 34 T2 78
Total axpenses L4046  3.600 3z 2147 1,659 1,804 2009 232 19.18%
Share of profit/iless) From associates
and joant venture - - - 1 - - 17 (4] 14
Operating profit befors bax 1. 105 a77 496 s aEd 255 b 7 a9is
Tax en cperating profit before tax 1M {298} k7] (54) =8} [:21] (9&) (7 1647}
Oparating profit after tax 1024 £59 426 240 96 194 350 w3
Operating profit after tax atributahie fo:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 1014 459 426 269 196 184 338 . 3248
Hon-contralling interests it} - 1 12 - 1
ey operating ratios:
Expensa ratia 5.1% 5% 65% Bi%  116% TH%  119% - B.&%
QOperating margin [BE% M 21.3%  16Ae%m  19ER 1A% 142% = A%
Operatng return on shareholders’
allocated equity 183 1501% 154% 1B0% 164% 110% 141% - 12%%
GO
Hira Oirsir  Corposate
(h= Mong | Thaland Srgesos  Meilmaa CHng Woras  Mariphs Carkns Tobal
Year ended 30 Novembar 2014
= A i bl
Assets belore investments in
associates and joint venture 42,993 2628 30206 15512 15481 13TRE 1633 B30T 14B.ESE
Inv@ dments in assaciates and
jeint venture - - 1 T - - 123 - M
Total assets 42993 2628 30207 15519 15441 13T7BA  1h4BE BT T14E9ES
Total lizbilities 34504 20589 27430 13831 13T G348 12803 2402 136212
Tetal equity BARY  5AI9 217 1668 2264 2,440 3%63 5707 32TT
Sharehelders’ allocated equity 5,638 h Ak 2AT4 1658 2112 1,803 1el% 5700 26.3%1
Het capital touthin flows 1758 18410 [2&T1 1112} 100 (243 22 1022 167G}
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OVERVIEW

49. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPON LONG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS (coreiread)

Harg Dirar Corporte
LiS&m Hong Thadard Sngeeom’  Masyma Crira Moren Marsats Cardra Tipin
Sax months ended 31 My 2004 ;‘
- A adjrsted =
ANP 401 254 214 161 152 189 ang - 1.690 E
TWPRI 1829 1,555 1134 1027 B50 1087 14622 - 5.004 E
Net premiums, fee income and g
other operating revenus 2
[net of reinsurance ceded 1,605 1597 .19 220 7 KFA =l ] 3 7544 =
Ivee stment Feturn A7é 530 L] a0z 261 220 200 128 2857 E
Total ravenus 2,481 2127 1,647 1,223 1,038 LLs ] 1,154 132 10,801 E
Net insurance and imvestment “
contract benefits 1577 1,310 1211 879 9% o0 &05 {6580
Commission and ather acquisition
GxpRNLES 205 Fal 1z &2 &5 7 1458 3
Operating expenses L B5 Th =1 100 M 173 mn 04
Finance costs and other expenses 40 14 & T 4 'y 1& an 127 ¥
Total expentes 1918 1,705 1406 1.034 B48 a&2 42 1o 8,654 E
Chare of profit/iless! from asscciates E
and jaint venture - - - - - - g 14} 5 o
Operating profit before bax 563 422 241 189 146 17 X3 27 1,954 E
Tax on eperating profit before tax 135 (o9} (36} 43 129 27 1491 (3 [Ered =
Opaerating profit after tax 528 323 203 148 1% %0 174 24 18627 b
perating profit aiter fax attrdndable fo:
Shareholders of AlA Growp Limited 523 323 203 145 139 1] 148 24 1,615
Hon-contralling interests 5 - 1 & 12
Koy operating ratios:
Expense ratio 5.0% 55% 6.5% B4% 118% 55% 123% - B4% an
Dperating margin 92% I7T0% I13% 154% 1WE%R  10E% 15TR 21T i
Cperating return on sharcholders’ =
allocated equity 04% 150% 174% 1B4% 173% 101 % = 13M% [
e E
Hewes 8 e I'J:.-rn.::e':&.{l i
(1.5 Worey  Traland  Sirgapors - Molmyes Chira Korea  Markotz Gankrg Tirtal E

Pernod ended 31 May 2014

= Mg adjusbed
Assets before investments in
associates and joint ventura 40,377 24523 InTEL 15507 12ERE 13BR0  15.E28 TAEY 140344
lrwé strments in 4 ssociatés and
Jeink venture - - 1 7 - - kL - oz =z
Total assets £0.377 24523 B.NS 1553 1RERE 13ES0 15922 V44T 140448 -
Total liabilities 32843 t?,é-ﬂ-: 267 13835 10,302 11832 12028 2AB4 130597 %
Tatal equity TR &FYE 2T 1,569 1524 2218 3884 L4977 29851 z
Shareholders’ allocated equity 5356 43 2504 1597 1. 706 1846 2565 5087 24951 2‘
Het capital louthin flows (377 {292} {108} [24) 17 295 (8T E
=
o
=

ANMUAL REPORT 2015 | 263
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4%. OPERATING PROFIT BASED UPON LOMNG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURNS (comiruss)

Group
Hang Oitar Cadporata
g Kong  Tholand Sngepore  Malaysa China Worea  Marets Carnire Total
Year ended 30 Movember 2003
- s adpstod
ANP 781 565 400 ne 249 I3 4EF - 3341
TWPI 37T 3354 2050 2036 1,599 2048 2840 - 17508
Nat premiums, fee income and
other operating revenue
[net af reinsurance ceded) IMe 4R 29 1899 1,495 1504 1,740 1| 15662
Ivestmant retwrn 1.238 1,110 E77 585 464 400 SEd 07 ST
Tetal revenue 4582 4408 3248 2484 1,562 1504 2,326 17 3w
Net insurance and investment
contract benefits 2958 2599 2438 1827 1,357 1.345 1,269 {2 1472
Commission and other acquisition
HEpENSes Bl 559 M Tak 145 208 308 - 1934
Operating expenses 189 183 146 168 194 138 380 141 151%
Frnance costs and other expenses TE 34 14 14 7 & ¥ 42 8
Total axpenses 3407 3735 2.8 2153 1,703 1,455 1.%%0 181 17,853
Share of profit/iless) From associates
and joant venture - - - 1 - - 19 (141 14
Operating profit befors bax o 873 457 2 259 209 1] . 3400
Tax en cperating profit before tax 168) 217 1591 (74} (3&} {51y 82} {41 1633
Oparating profit after tax 208 &54 ] 258 223 156 Fi1] 1 2857
Operating profit after tax atributahie fo:
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 859 454 ] 158 k] 158 rit] iy 283
Hon-contralling interests il . : B - 12}
ey operating ratios:
Expensa ratia 5.0% 5.4% & 5% 3% 121% 5 12T - E5%
QOperating margin [BY% MO% 21.3%  163% W3R W0I%  115% - 4%
Operabng return on shareholders
allocated equity I6é% 148% 157 26% 149% Fe&%  125% - 124%
GO
Hira Oirsir  Corposate
(h= Mong | Thaland Srgesos  Meilmaa CHng Woras  Mariphs Carkns Tobal
Year ended 30 Novembar 2013
= A i bl
fssers before investments in
associates and joint venture 44D 24085 27487 LB L T2E 1248670 14209 7207 149,108
Inv@ dments in assaciates and
jeint venture - - 1 T - - 81 i "
Total assets 460 24045 27488 4EM 11728 1243 WD 7211 148,20
Total lizbilities 30529 19445 25405 13278 10401 0TS 10,550 1869 122,753
Tetal equity 6,131 4,620 2262 1,550 1127 1.5954 3460 534F 26448
Sharehelders’ allocated equity 4509 G294 2,163 1,549 1,505 1,727 2177 554% Z3RT3
Het capital touthin flows 1839 {700} 23 146X a1 27 183 (T4E) 1616}

264 | A& BROUP LIMITED
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B. 2014 11 30

€Y
11 30
2014 2013
( )

18,225 | 2,065,075 16,666 | 1,888,424
(1,173) | (132,913) (959) |  (108,664)
17,052 | 1,932,162 15,707 | 1,779,760
8,204 929,595 6,030 683,259
177 20,056 155 17,563
25,433 | 2,881,813 21,892 | 2,480,583
17,828 | 2,020,091 15,299 | 1,733,530
(1,024) | (116,029) (816) (92,461)
16,804 | 1,904,061 14,483 | 1,641,069
2,139 242,370 1,934 219,142
1,636 185,375 1,537 174,157
103 11,671 71 8,045
420 47,590 340 38,525
10 21,102 | 2,391,068 18,365 | 2,080,938
4,331 490,746 3,527 399,644
14 1,586 14 1,586
4,345 492,332 3,541 401,231
(125) (14,164) 7 (5,326)
4,220 478,168 3,494 395,905
11 (877) (99,373) (692) (78,411)
125 14,164 47 5,326
(752) (85,209) (645) (73,085)
3,468 392,959 2,849 322,820
AlA 3,450 390,920 2,824 319,987
18 2,040 25 2,833

12 | 0.29 33 0.24 27

12 | 0.29 33 0.24 27
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11 30
2014 2013
16.00
(2013 13.93 13 247 27,988 215 24,362
)
34.00 (2013 28.62 13 525 59,488 442 50,083
)
772 87,475 657 74,445
@
11 30
2014 2013
C
3,468 392,959 2,849 322,820
C )
« D
( 3,813 432,051 (3.671) |  (415,961)
2014 (694) ((78,637) )
2013 555 ( 62,887 ))
( (29) (3,286) (23) (2,606)
2014 (340 )
2013 (227 ))
(433) (49,063) (505) (57,222)
4 453
( 22 2,493 (23) (2,606)
3,377 382,648 4,222)|  (478,395)
(10) (1,133) 29 3,286
(
2014 () ((113) )
2013 () ((340) )
(10) (1,133) 29 3,286
«C ) 3,367 381,515 4,193)|  (475,109)
«C ) 6,835 774,474 @1,348) |  (152,289)
(
AIA 6,821 772,888 (1,367) | (154,895)
14 1,586 23 2,606
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11 30
2014 2013
( )
14 2,152 243,843 1,321 149,683
15 131 14,844 93 10,538
16 541 61,301 480 54,389
17,18 1,384 156,821 1,128 127,814
19 1,657 187,755 1,379 156,254
20 16,593 1,880,153 15,738 1,783,273
21,23
7,654 867,275 7,484 848,012
77,744 8,809,173 64,763 7,338,296
24,319 2,755,586 22,560 2,556,274
28,827 3,266,387 26,102 2,957,618
22 265 30,027 445 50,423
138,809 15,728,448 121,354 13,750,622
11 10 1,133 6 680
54 6,119 44 4,986
24 3,753 425,252 3,543 401,457
26 1,835 207,924 2,316 262,426
166,919 18,913,592 147,402 16,702,121
27 113,097 12,815,021 103,436 11,720,333
28 7,937 899,341 8,698 985,570
30 2,934 332,452 1,950 220,955
31 3,753 425,252 1,889 214,043
22 211 23,908 89 10,085
33 213 24,135 187 21,189
11 3,079 348,881 2,030 230,019
198 22,435 242 27,421
34 4,542 514,654 4,054 459,359
135,964 15,406,081 122,575 13,888,973
35 13,962 1,582,034 12,044 1,364,706
35 1,914 216,875
35 (286) (32,407), 274) (31,047)
35 (11,994) (1,359,040) (11,995), (1,359,153)
22,831 2,586,981 20,070 2,274,132
35 6,076 688,472 2,270 257,214
35 227 25,721 657 74,445
(10) (1,133), ) (453)
6,293 713,060 2,923 331,205
AlA 30,806 3,490,628 24,682 2,796,717
36 149 16,883 145 16,430
30,955 3,507,511 24,827 2,813,147
166,919 18,913,592 147,402 16,702,121

2015 26
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“)
2013 12 1 13,958 em)|  (1,98) 20,070 2,270 657 145 24,831
1AS 19
(2011 ) ©) )
013 121 13,958 e  @,95) 20,070 2,270 657 o) 145 24,827
3,450 18 3,468
14 1 1
( ) 3,8 (€Y 3,813
(29) (29)
(430) @) (433)
4 4
22 22
(10) (10)
¢ ) 3,450 3,807 (430) ) 14 6,835
13 (689) an (700)
4 4
@ 1
83 83
(91) (91)
79 79)
®) 3)
2014 11 30 13,962 @86)| (11,904 22,831 6,076 227 (10) 149 30,955
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2012 12 1 13,958 @ss)|  (12,060)( 17,843 5,979 1,165 131 26,828
1AS 19

ot ) (@) (33) (35

2012 12 1 13,958 @ss)| (12,060) 17,841 5,979 1,165 (€5) 131 26,793

2,824 25 2,849

3,676 5 3,671

¢ ) ( ) ( )

(23) (23)

(498) @) (505)

(13) (10)| (23)

29 29

(G 2,824 (3,712) (508) 29 23 (1,344)

13 (595), ©) (604)

16 16

®) 3 (16) @D

75 75

87 87

1 1

() ()

2013 1130 13,958 @) (11,995)| 20,070 2,270 657 (©) 145 24,827
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2013 12 1

1,581,581 | (31,047)| (1,359,153)| 2,274,132 | 257,214 74,445 16,430 | 2,813,601
1AS 19
(2011 ) (453) (453)
2013 121 1,581,581 | (31,047)| (2,359,153)| 2,274,132 | 257,214 74,445 (453) 16,430 | 2,813,147
390,920 2,040 | 392,959
( 432,164 113)| 432,051
)
(3,286), (3,286)
(48,723) (340)[  (49,063)
453 453
2,493 2,493
(1,133) (1,133)
(S 390,920 | 431,371 |  (48,723) (680) 1,586 | 774,474
13 (78,071) (1,246)|  (79,317)
453 453
(113) 113
9,405 9,405
(10,311) (10,311)
8,951 (8,951)

(340) (340)

2014 11 30
1,582,034 | (32,407)( (1,359,040)| 2,586,981 | 688,472 25,721 (1,133) 16,883 | 3,507,511
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2012 12 1

1,581,581 [ (21,302)| (1,366,519)| 2,021,790 | 677,480 | 132,006 14,844 | 3,039,881
1AS 19

Qo1 ) 227) (3.,739) (3,966)
2012 12 1 1,581,581 [ (21,302)| (1,366,519)| 2,021,564 | 677,480 | 132,006 3,739 14,844 | 3,035,915
319,987 2,833 | 322,820
D) (416,528) 567 | (415,961)
(2,606) (2,606)
(56,428) @93)|  (57,222)
@.473)  (1,133) (2,606)
3,286 3,286
(S 319,987 | (420,607)|  (57,561) 3,286 2,606 | (152,289)
13 (67,419) @,020)|  (68,439)
1,813 1,813
(906), 340 (1,813) (2,380)
8,498 8,498
(9,858) (9,858)
113 113
227) 27)

2013 11 30
1,581,581 [ (31,047)| (1,359,153)| 2,274,132 | 257,214 74,445 @53)| 16,430 | 2,813,147
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®)
11 30
2014 2013
( )

4,345 492,332 3,541 401,231
(15,479) | (1,753,925) (10,190) | (1,154,629)
10,430 | 1,181,823 8,342 945,232
31 1,892 214,383 121 13,711
) ( (5.,084) (576,068) (5,052) (572,442)
4,678 530,064 4,330 490,632
535 60,621 472 53,482
(57) (6,459) 47) (5.326)
(516) (58,468) (451) (51,103)
744 84,303 1,066 120,788
14 (911) (103,225) (65) (7,365)
15 (30) (3,399)

(16) (1,813)
15 1 113
16,17 (456) (51,669) (176) (19,943)
24 (296) (33,540)
35 3,966 82 9,291
( ) (1,802) (204,185)
(1,348) (152,742) (2,286) (259,027)
30 990 112,177 2,868 324,973
30 (1,725) (195, 460)
(49) (5.,552) (23) (2.,606)
30 347 39,319 324 36,712
30 (348) (39,432) ®) (906)
(700) (79,317) (604) (68,439)
1) (10,311) 87) (9,858)

4 453
(1) (2,380)
153 17,336 724 82,036
(451) (51,103) (496) (56,202)
2,140 242,483 2,709 306,957
(58) (6,572) (73) (8,272)
1,631 184,809 2,140 242,483

11 30
2014 2013
( | )
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1,835 207,924 2,316 262,426
(204) (23,115) (176) (19,943)
1,631 184,809 2,140 242,483
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35/F
AlA

AAGIY )

AlA
17

2.1

HKFRS )

IFRS
IAS ) IFRS
HKFRS
( HK (IFRIC)-

2015 21

176
2013 11 30
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) 2009 24
AlA
1299
(
( AlIA )
( IFRS ) (
( 622
( 32
11 76 87 HKFRS
IFRS HKFRS
IFRS (
( IFRSIC )
( HKAS ) (IFRIC)
)
IFRS HKFRS
2013 11 30

37
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(b)

IFRS 10

IAS 19

IAS 27

IFRS 10

809

2013 11 30

2013 11 30

(
IFRS 11

IFRS 12
IFRS 13
IAS 27
IAS 28
IAS

IAS 32
IAS 36
IFRS
IFRS 10

IFRS 13
IFRS 13

(

)

46

IFRS 11

34

(2011 )

29

2013 12
IAS 36

(2011 )

IFRS 12
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sic 12
IFRS 10
2013 11 30
30
«( )
2013 11 30
(
( )
)
)
(2011 )



(©)

(d)

IFRIC 21 (2015 )
IFRS 15
IAS
IAS 16 IAS 38
)
IAS 19
IAS 24
IAS 27
IAS 32
IAS 34
(2017 )
IAS 40
IFRS IAS 40
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
(2017 )
IFRS
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2014 11 30

(2018 )
(2017 )
(2017

(2017 )
(2015 )
(2017 )
(2015 )

(2015 )
(2015 )
(2015 )

IFRS

(2017 )

IFRS

IFRS 10 IAS 28
(2017 )
IFRS 11
( 622 )
2014

IFRS
IFRS

IAS 39

(2015 )

(2017 )
358

2014 11 30
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IAS 39

2018
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2.2

2.3

24
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210 )



20

50

50

IFRS 10
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2.4
( DPF )
DPF
(
)
DPF IAS 39

IAS 18 IFRS DPF

DPF
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IFRS DPF
(DPF

IFRS DPF

241 24.2
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2.4.1 DPF
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2.4.2
IAS 39 DPF
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2.4.3

( VOBA )
VOBA

VOBA

VOBA
VOBA
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VOBA DPF

2.5
2.5.1
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2.5.2

23
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2.5.3
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2.5.4

IFRS

IAS 39

2.6

( Exco )

417/664



2.7

2.8

418/664

2.19

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

20 40



2.9

40

2.10

(IFRS
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2.11

2.12

2.13
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2.14

2.15

2.16
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2.17

RSU
ASPP

)

(
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2.19

2.20

2.21
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2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25
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3.1

3.2 (DPF
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(DPF )

24 27 29

3.3

24.1

241

3.2

24 20
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3.4

3.5

DPF
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3.6

3.7

3.8

430/664

25

217

40

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

14



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

2014 11 30 2013 11 30

7.75 7.76

32.43 30.58

1.26 1.25

3.25 3.13

6.15 6.16

1,048.22 1,095.29

2014 11 30 2013 11 30

7.75 7.75

32.82 32.10

1.30 1.25

3.38 3.22

6.15 6.09

1,107.65 1,058.51
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2014 11 30
2014 AlA Bhd. 10
( )
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
2,925 2,516
508 424
(
2014 (111)
2013 (89) )
35 (91)
(
2014 (62)
2013 11 )
3,468 2,849
AlA 2,910 2,506
15 10
AIA 3,450 2,824
18 25
( TWPI
)
( ANP )
TWPI 100 100
10
TWPI
ANP 100
10 ANP
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( )
WP 2014 11 30 2013 11 30
TWPI
4,330 3,770
3,334 3,364
2,339 2,150
2,084 2,036
1,786 1,599
2,205 2,049
3,133 2,840
19,211 17,808
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( )
TPl 2014 11 30 2013 11 30
772 659
498 501
300 257
259 241
297 233
286 256
675 668
3,087 2,815
1,585 897
209 285
1,684 1,079
202 193
27 29
309 201
481 641
4,497 3,325
3,400 3,021
2,816 2,834
1,870 1,785
1,804 1,776
1,486 1,363
1,888 1,773
2,410 2,108
15,674 14,660
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( )
ANP 2014 11 30 2013 11 30
ANP
952 781
572 565
489 400
320 319
311 249
380 338
676 689
3,700 3,341
Exco

( ) ( )

ANP

TWPI

( )
AlA
TWPI
( ) TWHI
AlA (
(
)
)
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)
2014 11 30
ANP 952 572 489 320 311 380 676 3,700
TWPI 4,330 3,334 2,339 2,084 1,786 2,205 3,133 19,211
4,138 3,391 2,685 1,888 1,668 1,602 1,855 2 17,229
( )
) 1,280 933 838 552 536 426 555 232 5,352
5,418 4,324 3,523 2,440 2,204 2,028 2,410 234 22,581
@ 3,635 2,817 2,579 1,764 1,486 1,403 1,298 (2 14,90
473 575 265 141 144 240 301 2,139
223 174 158 180 210 155 373 163 1,636
® 99 44 20 22 27 13 37 74 336
4,430 3,610 3,022 2,107 1,867 1,811 2,009 235 19,001
1 17 ) 14
C )
) ( 988 714 501 334 337 217 418 (5) 3,504
) ( (79) (170) 72) (53) (54) (52) (94) (5) (579)
) ( 909 544 429 281 283 165 324 10) 2,925
« )
AlA
905 544 429 280 283 165 314 10) 2,910
4 1 10 15
5.2 5.2 6.8 8.6 11.8 7.0 11.9 8.5
22.8 21.4 21.4 16.0 18.9 9.8 13.3 18.2
21.6 13.1 21.9 10.8 17.1 9.0 12.1 12.6
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

EREW

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
AlA Group Limited (the ~Company ™) was sstablishéd gs-3 company with hrmited labiity incorpomated in Hong Kong on
24 August 2005, The address of 43 regitensd oflice & 35% AlA Cantral, No. 1 Connsuwah! Road Cantral, Hong Yong.

Al Group Limied & sted on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limaed Under tha stock cods 1293" with
American Dapostaty Receipts (Level 1) being traded on the evar-Tha counler market (tickar syrbol; "G )

AR Grip: Limified and s subsaiiorms (cofctivaly “AIA" or This “Group®) & & Me meursnce based fnancal sarvices providr
aperating in 17 jrsdictions throughou the Asia-Faciic region. The Groups prmcoal ad ity &5 the witting of [fe nsurance —
Dusiness, prowding Iife msurance, acckbant and heafth insurance and savings plans thwooghout, Asia, and dEnbuting rakaied
investinant and other financial senvices products to (18 customers

2.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance
The consoldated finanaal stataments have bean prepated in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS), Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HIFRS) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance: Hong Kong Companies
Ondinance fo thes tmancal year and tha cormpaEtvg ponad contings ta ba thoss of the predecessor Corrganss Ordinance (Cap
32), In socondance wah tranational and sving anangements for Fan 2 of the Hong ¥ong Companies Omdinance (Cap. £22),
"Arcedinds and Addit', which e w6t ot in ssctions 76 to 87 of Schadile 17 to that Drdinancs. HEFRS & substantially corsstent
willh IFRS and the accounting palicy selections that the Group has mada in prepanng these conschidated financiz| satements ar
such that 1he Group & abike 10 cormply wah both IFRS and HEFRS Feferances to IFRS, International Accounting Standards (145)
andl Infagiretations divilaped by the IFRS Intepratations Committes (FRS KC) in these consolidated tinancal statemants should
be read as mefarnng 1o the equvalent HEKFRS, Hong Keng Accounting Slandamds (HXAS) and Hong Kong (IFREC) inafpretatons
(HEGFRIC) ~ Inf) 35 the case may be Accordingly, there are no differances of accouniting practice between IFRS and HEFRS
-afincling thase consolidated financial statemin s

The tonsolidsted frmanceal statements have beon approved for ssue by the Board of Divectors on @6 February 2015

This consolidated financial statements have been prepared using this historical cost convention, a5 modified by the revaluation
of available:for sale financial assets. certain financial assats and labiliies desigrated a1 fair value through profit or joss and
dervatie inanciad instroments. all of which am carmied at fain vaiue

teme Included in the coreatidated financal statements of each of the Groups entitiss are messured in 1he currency of tha
primany. goonomic Grvirenment in whech that antity. cpaerates (the funciicnal curency). The consolidated linancal Aatements
are presanted in milkons of LS doltars (USEm) unkess othenwse stated, which & the. Company'’s functional ourrency and the
presantation cuneny of the Company and the Group

Thi accounting policies adopted are corsistant with those of the prviotsfinantiad year, sxcept a5 descnbed Defow! Inaddition,
he Group rectysstied bank overdratts of USSIT76m liom "Bamowings® 1o “Other labdties® in the consoldated satamant of
financiak position 85 of 30 Mevembar 2013 and expenses of USS37m from “Dperating expensas® 10 “Ofhas cxpensas” in tha
consclidated ncome Satemant (o 1he year anded 30 Movemnbar 2013 1o be congsstent wilh current year presantation. In prior
years, cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated siatemant of cash flows was the same a3 cash and cash equavalents in tha
comolidated satement of financial postion The Group has reassessed the compostion of cash and cash equivalents in the
consobdated statemaent of cash fiows and included bank overdrafts within the definition of cash-and cash equivatants in the
consolidated statement of cash Tlows

1) Mew and revessd standands sdopted by the Gioup

= IFRS 10, Comsobdnted Francial Statements, raplaces the consolidation guidance in 145 27, Consclidatad and seoarale
financal statemants and S 12, Cansolidation — Spacal pumass entties. i bullds on @disting prinoples. by idant fying
the cancept of control as the dutﬂ'rrnlmnn factae i whether an antity should be included within the consolidated
financal gaterments of the parant company. The dandard provides additienal guidance fo assist i the détermination
of contral whede this & ditficull fo assess The adopton of IFRS. 10 resuftad in'the corsclidation of canan funds and
deconsolidation of cartain others which led 1o a net Inosase of USSB09m m total assets and total 1abiities with no
irnpact Gn sharehokdats’ equity a5 at 30 Nevambar 2013, It ako led 1o 8 nal decrease ol UIS$34m in investrment fetimn, 2
decreasi of LSS 30m in ot her spenses and 2 decmase of LS $4m m net insurance and investmant contract benefits with
fio ifnpact on the et profit lor the yeat ended 30 Novarrber 2013

FuHLIAL A% D DETRATING BEVIEW

CORPORATE SONTRMANCE

[=
E
T
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8, SEGMENT INFORMATION |cantiniedl
Alocated eguity may be analysed as follows

Group
Hong Other Corporats
LISEm Eong Thaland Singapore Malaysia China Korea Markets Cantre Total
30 Mowrmiberr 3078
Aszats baf afe investmants i -
Famooatas and joint venture 41,687 25530 30,030 16,460 15661 13768 16411 6,851 166,768 .
Irvedmants in assocates u
and joint venfure - - 1 7 - = 123 - 131 B
Total assets 41,687 25,920 30,031 16467 15661 13,768 16534 6,851 166,919 =
Total liabilities 34477 20567 27317 13,8217 13397 11342 12,484 2,555 135,964 i
Totsl wguity Jal0 G553 2730 2640 2208 M0 A0 4290 30,995 BN
Allocated equity 4497 4243 2120 2679 1,865 1,902 2,851 4,256 24,513 %
Nt capital (outhin flows {(752) (691} (267) (112) W0 (24}  {22) 1022 (696) g
=
Segiment information may be reconclad fo the consolidated income Saterment B shown below
ekt b Bt 111
IR ard e dmen
pontmt bl -
Wrersrtment
L A ] Thisd party =
i g Othaed ndormbm =
mledio aelsbod o T unmilated  onskibad
Soqprinl  Erweglomey urd-Bokoed e dnded  opeiating  Ued-inked  fan st pen T -
3 mloqmatisn  expedean ool caniai Herme  monins sk Fonds  wlabpamnd e
B
i vl ) Pt 210 I
Tatal revenue 22581 1634 218 - - - - - 25433  Towmlrevenus (=
Of wituch O whwih
et s, fee Nt posrraurme, fee
wcome and othar g and other
SEETIFIOG A 1729 - - - - - - - ATIH O eV
I | rehurn 5152 1614 FAL - - - - - B04 | Isectiment cetum
Total expendes 19,041 - - 103 (s 12 G4 41 W2 Tothl expenies ':;
A
0 whidhy 04 which =
Hetirmuranee Hiét wslimance
v e TR vl Y ERTWANT
conirat b 14,980 - - - ry 13m ] 10 16804 contract bmefity
Remuoumg Befiuhreg
wnd cother v etheer
noneopaTating ool - - - - 55 - - - 55 FROMNET M) COOTE
e iirnerit IFresirment
Frn gt e
e aned apenes and
finance Losta 1% - - 103 [L]] - - - 430 fmahoe cods
Chanage in thnd-paity Changs in thackgaety -
WIS intesemyin <
conckined ongokdaed E
v funekl - - - - - - - k) n Ivestrnienl funds 3
“Shiare of profin from iz o prodit from &=
mseaaey aEaEte '
anid joint werstune 1 - - - - - - - 14 v ot Ve =
Cpsrating profit B
Balore tux 3504 1E8H g (103} 17 11,261} (504 L] 4,345 Profit befors b =

Oihar nen-opamting Nems in 2018 consst of restructuning and othsr non-opsmiing costs of USE55Sm (see note 10)

ARMULLHEPDHT 204 )
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NERVEW

i

23. FAIR YALUE MEASUREMENT kentinuedl

Valuation processes |contnued!

Thia o Lael 3 input used by thee Group pertans 1o the decount rmte Tor tha fhed indorme seounlas and iwestimant cont facts

The unabsansable inputs todatarrmining the fair value of thess instrements include the oblgors crade spread andior the quidty
spread A sgnificant Increasetdacnease) in-amy of th uncGseivabk input may esult in & sgnfcantly lowarihighar. 3l vahs
rreasurensant. The Group has subecriptions 1o prvate prcng services for gathering such miommatian I the infesmation from
praate proing sivices & ok avaliEble, the Group wees the presy pricing method bassd on mmlriailyduwlwﬁd valugtion mputs

1]

Fair value for assets and liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed at reporting date

A suminary of fair valus hlerarchy of assets and lobilities not camied.at fair value but tar which tha fair vatie & dichosed a5 3t 30 o
Mewambier 2014 & aven balow -
Faar walus hisrarchy -:_::I:

LI Level 1 Lewel 2 Lowal ] Tokal 'E
30 Mowsmber 2014 ﬂ;
Assets for which the fair value is disclosed B
Financial assats ]
Loans and deposts 632 3,293 3.750 7,675
‘Reirsurancs recehablks - 240 - 240 (-
Othar recevablas - 1,534 55 1,632 W
Aceried investmant incame 5 1,330 - 1,345 z
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,835 - - 1,835
Investment property and property held for use E
Investment property (includng iBnd) - - 3,639 3,635 =
Propoity hald for usa (incloding kind) - - 1,482 1,492 o
Total assets for which the fair value is disclosed 2,482 6,397 5,979 17,858
Liabilitses for which the fair value is disclosed
Financial labilities
Irvestmant contiaet bt - - 622 B2
Bomowings 2,046 959 - 3,005
Citiligations under securties kEnding and repunchass

agraaments e 3,753 = 3,753
Cther bl s 204 3,027 o0 3321
Total liabilities for which the fair value is dischosed 2,250 1,739 712 10,701

The Group engsged eddmal, Independent and qualified valuers to determing the Tair value of the Groups: properies at the
and of every financal year The valeation on open markst value bass by independant profassional valuer for cersn investresnt
properiss was calcubied by referance 1o net rental incorme allowing for meersionary ncome potantal The fair values: of
other properties were darved using the Marke! Data Approach In this approach, the valuas are based on sales and lsting of
comparabke proparty registezed in the vicindy

In valuing the pesiment properes and properies in use, the current use of the properes are conmdensd to be ds hghest ard
best use) ieconds of redent sales and offerings of Smily prooerty are analysed and compansen mads lor such factons a8 sl
location, guainy and prospeciive wss

Tha mvestmant properdies and propertses in use are vakued on the bass of the hahest and best usa. of tha propesties thay
i physcally posmible, legally permissible’ and linancialy feasible’ Recoids of moent sales and cifenngs of aimilar propery am
-analyzed and comparisan made for such factors as size; location, qually and prospecing Use In Nrited, occasions, poiential
redavelopment of the properties in usewoukd be taken nto account whan they woubd raxirmisa 1he fair vatue-of the proparies
1he Gioagy is aocupying hese properss for opanational puposs

-
3
=B
T
3
=

ANNUALAEPDHTZML 175
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45, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
026 February 2015, the Boasd of Dimdors proposed 3 final dhvidend of 34.00 Hong Kong cenlts per share (2013. 1367 Hong
Kong cints par share)

46. EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Thea nas and mvised sccounting standaids adoptad by the Grolp in 2013 are axplainad in node 2 1{a). The tables balow show
the guantitaive effect of the adoption of Thesa rew and revised standards on the consolidated {inancial statements

{a) Consolidated Income Statement

‘fear ended :'.
30 Mlowermiber Yo ended 3
. mwi‘Tﬂi Feaapdctive adunmenis for Mﬁﬁﬂzﬁtﬁ: E
ustm reported)  Redafcanons FRE 10 B9 (e aduned n
Revenue
Turvar "
Pramiuns and fea incoma 16665 - - - 16,666 3
Framiuns caded 10 Binsumrs (959) - - - (495G} i
Nt pra i and {ee income 15,707 - - - 12707
Imvestmant return G064 - (34) - 6,030 it
Ohercparaling Fev i 155 = = = {55
Total revenue 21,826 - (34 - 1,852
Expenses B
Insirance and imvestrent confract benefits 15303 - (4] - 15058 _'
Insurance and inestrent contrac banofits coded LE16) = - - (E16) =
Net insurance and investhent contract benefits 14,487 - {4 ~ 14,483 i
Conmission and athar aoguission expenses 1834 - - - 1,534
OpiaEling Sensss 1,577 (=7} = (2 1,537
Firiance tosts 71 = - - 71
Other expenses 333 a7 i30) - 340
Total expenses 15402 - G4 B 15365 £
Profit before share of profit frony associztes o
and joint venture 524 E - 3 3,537 E
Shars of prolin from essocates and joint ventum 14 - - - 14 -,'
Profit before tax 3.533 - = 3 3,541 z
IR e i e attrbutatde 1o &
peticyholders” rtums {47 - - - ]
Profit befone tax attributable to
shameholders' profits 3491 = = 3 3424
T Epensa {551) = ~ (1) feen)
T sttributable 1o policyholders etunng AT - - - a7
Tax Epense attribatable (o shasholde 1™ profds (644 - - 1) (545) z
Net profit a7 - = 2 e
Mt profit athibutsbie b 2
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 2822 = = ? A =}
Non<conumling Intemsts 25 - - - 25 :
The adoplion of new accounting poficy had an immatenal impad on eamings per shate for the comparalive yaar anded 30 -;
MNousrniber 2012

ASMUALREPDRT 2008207
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2015 11 30 50 GMTN
30 750 4.500
2015 11 30 AIA AlA 26 49
A. 2015 11 30
45
AlA
AlA
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HKFRS

HKFRS IFRS

DPF

DPF IAS 39
IFRS

GAAP

HKFRS IFRS

GAAP

HKFRS IFRS

GAAP

HKFRS IFRS

GAAP

DPF

69

87
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115

HKFRS IFRS

HKFRS IFRS

GAAP 80 1

HKFRS IFRS

GAAP

HKFRS IFRS

GAAP
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HKFRS IFRS

GAAP

HKFRS IFRS

GAAP
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25 49 12 31
2.1

20.315 15.315

27 55.945

28 1 1

20.315 15.315

NISA
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15.315
24
25 12 26 11 30 27 28
26 12 27 31 27 27
24 19
27 25
24 19
27 13
24 19
28 22
24 19
28 19
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« D
AIA
(
)
IASB

103

HKICPA

213

(

)

HKICPA

)
2014 11 30
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HKICPA IASB
2014 11 30

2015 26
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AIA GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AIA Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 103 to 213, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 November 2014, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the

consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
and with the International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
November 2014 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with both Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the IASB and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 February 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AIA GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AIA Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages
119 to 244, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 November 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), and with the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB)
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 30 November 2015 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with both
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 February 2016
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